


2016 was a remarkable year for Scripps Networks Interactive. Our strong networks and content 
have never been more in demand or accessible over a variety of distribution methods, devices, or 
geographies, than they are today. We have reinforced our future by investing in our brands and 
content, enabling us to produce the best results in our company’s history.

The results we reported in 2016 underscore the strength of our strategy and content. In 2016, Scripps 
Networks Interactive delivered:

• Record consolidated revenues of $3.4 billion, an increase of 13%;

• Record consolidated advertising revenues of $2.4 billion, an increase of 17%; 

• Consolidated operating income of $1.1 billion, an increase of 4%; and

This standout performance is a direct result of our relentless focus on operational execution and the 
deliberate investments we’ve made in content, our international businesses and at Scripps Lifestyle 
Studios.

In the United States, our television networks enjoyed another great year, outperforming the majority 
of our peer group in advertising revenue growth. Outside the United States, we saw incredible 
growth for our brands in 2016. TVN, Poland’s leading multi-platform media business delivered 
a trifecta of higher revenue in local currency, higher ratings and increased market share. We also 
increased distribution in other parts of the world, including Europe, Latin and South America and 

building reach and engagement every single day.

In this swiftly transforming and competitive media landscape, strong brands built on appealing 
content, win. That is why we stick with our simple, but highly effective game plan:

• First, strengthen and grow our core business;

• Second, expand our reach to new markets and emerging platforms; and

• Third, maximize monetization with our advertising and distribution    
partners.

To Our Shareholders
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Consolidated Revenue by Brand 
32%   HGTV

27%   Food Network

9%     Travel Channel

10%   DIY Network, Cooking Channel,
Great American Country
16%   International 

6%     Digital and Other 

STRENGTHEN AND GROW OUR CORE BUSINESS

Our lifestyle brands in the United States have strong appeal with consumers. The shows we air are consistent, 
relevant, family friendly and promote co-viewing, where families engage in our content together.

Our strategy to strengthen our brands is working. All six of our U.S. networks were up for total day in the C-3
viewing window, a key metric for our advertisers. Our family of networks was the only U.S. media group to 
have ALL of its networks improve in this timeslot, something we’re incredibly proud of.

For powerhouse brand HGTV, 2016 was the network’s highest rated and most watched year ever. HGTV 

in its history. Also, for the tenth consecutive year HGTV was the number one cable network among upscale 
women. Driven by premieres of hit shows like Fixer Upper, Flip or Flop, Brother vs. Brother and Beachfront d
Bargain Hunt, HGTV continues to lead the way for engaging and entertaining lifestyle programming.

Food Network, our most widely distributed brand, claimed a Top 10 position in 2016 for its target audience
of women aged 25 to 54. Additionally, the network grew its total-day ratings for adults. Food Network gained 
momentum in the fourth quarter as ratings for adults 25 to 54 improved 2%. Top-rated programs on Food 
Network in 2016 were Worst Cooks in America, Food Network Star, Kids Baking Championship and Halloweend
Wars.

Travel Channel delivered an 11% increase in adult 25 to 54 ratings and a 3% increase in impressions compared 
to 2015. Travel Channel’s programming, which takes its inspiration from virtual and active travelers and their 

Strong showings of Expedition Unknown, Mysteries at the Museum and Bizarre Foods with Andrew Zimmern
helped drive Travel Channel’s growth.

DIY Network delivered its highest rated and most watched year ever in 2016. Ratings for adults 25 to 54 
improved 12% and ratings for women 25 to 54 surged 24%. Top performing programs included Texas Flip N 
Move, Tiny Luxury and Barnwood Builders.

Cooking Channel continued its strong growth as adult 25 to 54 ratings were up 13% compared to 2015
while impressions delivery grew 36%. Top-rated shows in 2016 included popular re-airs of Food Network 
programming such as Holiday Baking Championship, Halloween Wars and Worst Cooks in America. Original 
series Cake Hunters, Cheap Eats and Food, Fact or Fictiond  also helped drive ratings gains.
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Great American Country delivered its highest-rated year since 2007. Ratings for adults 25 to 54 improved 36%
compared to the prior year while ratings for women 25 to 54 grew 41%. Content including Flea Market Flip,
Going RV and V Living Alaska were among the network’s most watched shows.

charted a course that will keep our networks at the forefront of lifestyle for years to come.

EXPAND OUR REACH TO NEW MARKETS AND EMERGING PLATFORMS

Leveraging our long-standing commitment to developing and owning all of our own content regardless of 
platform, our second strategic building block is to expand our reach to new markets and on emerging platforms.

Internationally we are reaching new audiences and connecting them with our core brands. At TVN in Poland, 
ratings improved 4% in 2016. The infusion of our lifestyle formats over the last several quarters has also 

is the ability to leverage TVN’s production capabilities to create further value in our U.S. networks business. 
We’re collaborating with the Polish production teams to commission lower-cost seasons of existing shows and 
short-form digital content and seeing some good results from those synergies.

network’s largest international launch to date. HGTV has already secured a strong position, earning the second 
highest market share for lifestyle channels in Poland, behind our own TVN Style.

TVN makes up the lion’s share of our international business, but the company also experienced growth and 
increased distribution in other parts of the world. Our strong brands are now available to millions of new 
audiences in New Zealand, Brazil, Mexico, Europe, the Middle East and Northern Africa, and other prominent 
markets. Expanding our portfolio of strong networks outside the United States is a critical business objective 
and one that we will continue to emphasize.

In addition to new markets, we’re taking full advantage of newer platforms to reach audiences. Where once we 

video across all platforms.

Scripps Networks Interactive is 100% committed to providing the right content to the right audience at the right 
time. We deliver high-quality, multi-format content that integrates advertising into our storytelling, and digital
provides a great opportunity for growth. Additionally, since we own virtually all of our own content, this places 
us in a unique position among media companies to seize the opportunity provided by new platforms.

$1,041 $1,102 $1,122 $1,246 $1,401 

$2,307 $2,531 $2,665 
$3,018 

$3,401
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Consolidated Results* 
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Since its launch in late 2015, Scripps Lifestyle Studios’ focus on increasing social media and online engagement 
has contributed to our growing digital businesses. Monetizing our content on digital platforms is not just a key
strategic priority for the future, but something we are delivering on today. In 2016, Scripps Lifestyle Studios

Studios produced about 5,000 new content videos, equivalent to 125 hours of programming. We are delivering 
our lifestyle content to consumers anytime, anywhere, and on any platform through the creative teams at Scripps 
Lifestyle Studios.

Collaboration across departments and geographies is at its highest level ever. We’ve bridged our linear and 
digital businesses, and are realizing synergies and exchanging ideas. The results – our engaging brands are in 
demand, on-demand, and reaching more new audiences than ever. We’ve met the challenge of changing media 
consumption habits and transformed it into an opportunity with incredible potential. 

MAXIMIZE MONETIZATION WITH OUR ADVERTISING AND DISTRIBUTION PARTNERS

Finally, among our strategic pillars, we remain strongly focused on building deeper and more valuable 
partnerships with our advertisers and distributors. The key to our success is content and strong brands built on
appealing content, win. At Scripps Networks Interactive, we believe creating great content is the best method to 
accumulate and monetize sustainable returns. Because we own our content, we can more effectively utilize our 
programming across all platforms, a tremendous value proposition to our advertising and distribution partners.

For our advertisers, our content delivers an upscale and highly engaged audience. We work closely with our 
advertising partners to provide an effective, economical and reliable way for their messaging to reach their 
customers. Our viewers are engaged and they are watching live. This is a clear point of differentiation, and has 
contributed to our ability to outpace the industry for advertising revenue growth.

For our distributors, we deliver clear value on both price and popularity. Our viewing audience is among the 
most loyal in the industry and they look for our strong networks in their programming packages. Our lifestyle 
brands are must-haves for consumers, which also makes them invaluable to our distribution partners.

Over the past 23 years, our company has grown to be one of the most trusted and respected content producers 

We have incredible passion for what we do – delivering superior lifestyle content to audiences worldwide, in 
a manner that enhances long-term shareholder value. I know we have the right strategic priorities and team to 
continue driving increased shareholder value and returns. 

We have great momentum heading into 2017 and every member of our dedicated team is working hard to 

Si lSincerely,

Kenneth W. LoweK th W L



SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC. 
9721 Sherrill Blvd. 

Knoxville, TN 37932 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 
TO BE HELD MAY 9, 2017 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC. 

The Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. (the “Company”) will be held at 502 E. Lamar 
Alexander Parkway, Maryville, TN 37804, on Tuesday, May 9, 2017, at 2:30 p.m., local time, to consider: 

1. The election of the 12 director nominees identified in the proxy statement;

2. Advisory approval of the compensation of the Company’s named executive officers;   

3. Advisory approval of the frequency of the shareholder vote on the compensation of the Company’s named executive officers; 

4. Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP to serve as our independent auditor for the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2017; and

5. Such other business as may properly come before the meeting. 

The Board of Directors has set the close of business on March 13, 2017 as the record date for the determination of shareholders
who are entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting and any adjournment thereof. 

We are furnishing our proxy materials to you under U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission rules that allow companies to 
deliver proxy materials to their shareholders on the Internet. On or about March 29, 2017, we began mailing a Notice of Internet
Availability of Proxy Materials (the “Notice”) and provided access to our proxy materials on the Internet. The proxy materials include
the 2016 Annual Report to Shareholders and the Proxy Statement. 

We encourage you to attend the Annual Meeting. However, it is important that your shares be represented whether or not you 
are personally able to attend. Even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, please vote as instructed in the Notice, via the Internet or 
the telephone as promptly as possible to ensure that your vote is recorded. Alternatively, you may follow the procedures outlined in 
the Notice to request a paper proxy card to submit your vote by mail. If you attend the meeting and your shares are registered in your 
name, you may withdraw your proxy at that time and vote your shares in person. 

Your proxy is being solicited by the Board of Directors. 

By order of the Board of Directors,

Eleni Vatsis Stratigeas 
Senior Vice President, 
Business and Legal Affairs and Corporate Secretary 

March 29, 2017 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL 
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 9, 2017.
The Proxy Statement and Annual Report to Shareholders are available without charge at http://www.proxyvote.com

 



SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC.
9721 Sherrill Blvd.

Knoxville, TN 37932

PROXY STATEMENT
2016 ANNUAL MEETING

May 9, 2017

This Proxy Statement is being furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of 
Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc., an Ohio corporation (the “Company”), for use at the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders 
(the “Annual Meeting”), which will be held on Tuesday, May 9, 2017, at 502 E. Lamar Alexander Parkway, Maryville, TN 37804, at
2:30 p.m., local time. 

The close of business on March 13, 2017, has been set as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice 
of and to vote at the Annual Meeting.

ADMISSION PROCEDURES

As we are committed to providing a safe, secure environment for our shareholders, employees, and guests, we kindly ask that 
you observe the following procedures if you planf  to attend the Annual Meeting:

• Before the meeting: Please register on or before May 7, 2017, by contacting Eleni Stratigeas, our Senior Vice
President, Business and Legal Affairs and Corporate Secretary, at (865) 560-3326
or estratigeas@scrippsnetworks.com. If you plan to attend the meeting and need special assistance because of a
disability, please contact the corporate secretary’s office.

• When you arrive: Company representatives will be available to direct you to the meeting room where you can
check in at the registration table beginning at 2:00 p.m. local time.

• What to bring: If your shares are registered in the name of a bank, broker, or other holder of record, please bring
both a photo ID and documentation of your stock ownership as of March 13, 2017 (such as a brokerage statement). 
If your shares are registered in your name, either solely or jointly with one or more co-owners, you will just need a
photo ID.

INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS

We are furnishing proxy materials to our shareholders primarily via the Internet under rules adopted by the U.S. Securities and 
Exchange Commission, instead of mailing printed copies of those materials to each shareholder. On March 29, 2017, we mailed to our 
shareholders a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials containing instructions on how to access our proxy materials, 
including our Proxy Statement and our Annual Report to Shareholders. The Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials also
instructs you on how to access your proxy card or to vote via the Internet or by telephone.

This process is designed to expedite the shareholders’ receipt of proxy materials, lower the cost of the Annual Meeting and help 
conserve natural resources. Shareholders who would prefer to continue to receive printed proxy materials should follow the
instructions included in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials.

VOTING PROCEDURES 

On March 13, 2017, the Company had outstanding 95,858,201 Class A Common Shares, $.01 par value per share (“Class A
Common Shares”), and 33,850,481 Common Voting Shares, $.01 par value per share (“Common Voting Shares”). Holders of Class A
Common Shares are entitled to elect the greater of three or one-third (or the nearest smaller whole number if such fraction is not a
whole number) of the directors of the Company but are not entitled to vote on any other matters except as required by Ohio law. 
Holders of Common Voting Shares are entitled to elect all remaining directors and to vote on all other matters requiring a vote of 
shareholders. Each Class A Common Share and Common Voting Share is entitled to one vote upon matters on which such class of
shares is entitled to vote. Holders of Class A Common Shares and Common Voting Shares do not have cumulative voting.
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A quorum of shareholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting. The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority
of the outstanding Class A Common Shares is necessary for the election of the four directors to be elected by the holders of the 
Class A Common Shares and the presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Common Voting
Shares is necessary for any other action to be taken at the meeting. r

With respect to the election of directors, when a quorum of holders of Class A Common Shares and Common Voting Shares, 
respectively, is present at an annual meeting in which directors are elected, directors shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast.
Under this standard, the eight (8) director nominees to be elected by the holders of Common Voting Shares (voting separately as a 
class) and four (4) director nominees to be elected by the holders of Class A Common Shares (voting separately as a class), in each
case who receive the greatest number of votes will become directors of thef  Company.

With respect to any other matter to be voted upon, when a quorum of holders of Common Voting Shares is present at an annual 
meeting, the vote of the holders of a majority of the Common Voting Shares, issued and outstanding and entitled to vote there at, 
present in person or by proxy, shall decide any question brought before suchr  meeting.  

With respect to the election of directors, a shareholder may vote “for” a director nominee or may “withhold” such shareholder’s 
vote for a director nominee.  Withheld votes will be treated as present at the meeting for purposes of establishing a quorum for the 
meeting and for purposes of the vote on a particular matter. A withheld vote will have no effect on the matter.

With respect to any other matter to be voted upon, a shareholder may vote “for” or “against” such matter or may “abstain” from 
voting for such matter. Abstentions will be treated as present at the meeting for purposes of establishing a quorum for the meeting and 
for purposes of the vote on the particular matter. Abstentions will have the same effect as a vote against the matter.

Broker non-votes also will be treated as present at the meeting for purposes of establishing a quorum for the meeting, but will 
not be treated as shares present for purposes of the vote on the particular matter. A broker non-vote will have no effect on the matter.
A broker non-vote occurs when a broker or other nominee does not vote shares on a “non-routine” matter, such as the election of 
directors, because the broker or nominee does not have discretionary voting power for the particular matter and has not received 
voting instructions from the beneficial owner of the shares.r

The presence of any shareholder at the meeting will not operate to revoke his or her proxy. A proxy may be revoked at any time, 
if it has not been exercised, by giving written notice to the Company or in open meeting. If a shareholder signs and submits such
shareholder’s proxy without voting instructions with respect to the proposals contained herein, the proxy will be voted “for” such
proposals. 

If you are a shareholder of record (i.e., if your shares are registered directly in your name in the records of our transfer agent, 
Wells Fargo), you can vote using one of the methods described below. If you are a beneficial owner (i.e., you indirectly hold your 
shares through a nominee such as a bank or broker), you can vote using the methods provided by your nominee. 

VOTE BY INTERNET

www.proxyvote.comp y

Have your 16-Digit Control Number 
(printed in the box marked by the arrow 
on the notice or proxyr  card) and follow
the instructions.

VOTE BY PHONE

1-800-690-6903

Use any touch-tone
telephone to transmit
your voting 
instructions.

TO REQUEST A PAPER OR E-MAIL COPY

If you want to receive a paper or email copy of these documents,
you must request one. There is NO charge for requesting a copy.
Please choose one of the following methods to make your 
request:

1) BY INTERNET: www.proxyvote.comp y
2) BY TELEPHONE: 1-800-579-1639
3) BY EMAIL*: sendmaterial@proxyvote.com@p y
*  If requesting materials by email, please send a blank email 

with your 16-Digit Control Number in the subject line (your 
Control Number can be found in the box marked by the arrow
on the notice or proxy card). Requests, instructions and other 
inquiries sent to this email address will NOT be forwarded to 
your investment advisor. Please make the request as instructed
above on or before April 25, 2017 to facilitate timely delivery.
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PROXY SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this proxy statement. It does not contain all of the information that 
you should consider in voting your shares. You should read the entire proxy statement, as well as our Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, carefully before voting.r

Voting Matters and Board Recommendations

Proposal
Board Voting

Recommendation
Page

Reference

I. Election of 12 directors For each nominee 7

II. Consider an advisory vote on approval of the compensation of the Company’s
named executive officers For 55

III. Consider an advisory vote on the frequency of the advisory vote on approval of the 
compensation of the Company’s named executive officers For every 3 years 56

IV. Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent 
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2017 For 57

Select Performance and Business Highlights

• 2016 showed strong increases from the prior year in key financial metrics:

o Operating Revenue $3.4 billion – up 12.7%

o Segment Profit1 $1.4 billion – up 12.5%

o Diluted Earnings per Share $5.18 – up 11.2%

• HGTV had its highest-rated and most watched year ever, finishing 2016 ranked #3 among all cable networks for total
adult viewers.

• Food Network ranked #13 among ad-supported cable networks for adultsr  aged 25-54.d

• TVN continued to grow market share in 2016, achieving a 23% share while ratings at TVN Group improved 4% with its
target audience.

• Travel Channel’s ratings improved 11% in 2016 for adult viewers aged 25-54.

• Scripps Lifestyle Studios delivered more than 5 billion video views across all digital platforms in 2016.

• Continued growth in international businesses with networks expanding distribution in numerous markets, including 
Argentina, Brazil, Canada, Mexico, the Middle East and North Africa and New Zealand.d

1 See reconciliation of Segment Profit to GAAP measure in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2016.
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Corporate Governance Highlights

We believe that good corporate governance is integral to our business, and the Board monitors developments in governance best 
practices to assure that it continues meeting its commitment to representation of shareholder interests. Below is a summary of certain 
corporate governance practices and facts:

●       Annual election of directors

●       Independent lead director

●       Strong risk management program

●       11 of ourf  12 director nominees are independentr

●       Regular executive sessions of the Board and board 
committees

●       Active shareholder outreach

●       Annual board and committee evaluations ●       Comprehensive Code of Ethics and Corporatef
Governance Principles

●       Global ethics and corporate compliance program ●       Robust executive succession planning process

●       Incentive plan alignment between pay and 
performance

●       Clawback policy providing for return of cash and 
equity based incentive compensation

●       Commitment to seeking diversity on the Board

●       Stock ownership guidelines for executive officers and 
non-employee directors

●       Active Board oversight of Company strategy and risk 
management

Shareholder Engagement

We value our shareholders’ perspective on our business and each year regularly engage with shareholders through a variety of 
engagement activities to stay informed on the evolving perspectives of the investor community. We engage with shareholders on 
various matters, including industry trends, Company performance, corporate governance, and executive compensation. In 2016, our 
key shareholder engagement activities included investor road shows in twelve U.S. and international cities, eight investor conferences
in the U.S., and our 2016 annualr  meeting of shareholders.
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Director Nominees

The following table provides summary information regarding each nominee to the Board. Information about each director’s 
experience, qualifications and skills can be found in the Report on Nominees for Election of the Board of Directors.

Committee Memberships2

NAME AGE
DIRECTOR

SINCE
DIRECTOR

CATEGORY3
PRINCIPAL

OCCUPATION
INDE-

PENDENT AC EC CC NGC

OTHER
PUBLIC CO.

BOARDS
Jarl Mohn
Industry 65 2008 A President and 

CEO, NPR √ Chair None

Nicholas B.
Paumgarten
Non-Industry

71 2008 A Founder, Corsair
Capital LLC √ √ √ None

Jeffrey 
Sagansky
Industry

65 2008 A

Chairman and
CEO, Double 
Eagle Acquisition
Corp.

√ √ Chair

3 (Double
Eagle

Acquisition
Corp., Global

Eagle
Entertainment,
Inc., Videocon
d2H Limited)

Ronald W.
Tysoe
Non-Industry

63 2008 A

Former Senior
Advisor, Perella 
Weinberg 
Partners LP;
Former Vice
Chairman, 
Federated 
Department 
Stores, Inc. (now 
Macy’s Inc.)

√ Chair √

4 (Canadian
Imperial Bank 
of Commerce, 

Cintas
Corporation, J.

C. Penney
Company, Inc.,

Taubman
Centers, Inc.)

Gina L.
Bianchini
Industry

44 2012 CV
Founder and 
CEO, Mighty
Software, Inc.

√ √ √ None

Michael R. 
Costa
Non-Industry

59 2009 CV

Former Head of
Mergers and 
Acquisitions and
Vice Chairman of 
Investment 
Banking, Cowen 
and Company

√ √ √ None

Philip I. Kent
Industry 62 - CV

Former Chairman
and CEO, Turner
Broadcasting
System, Inc.

√ √ None

Kenneth W.
Lowe
Industry

66 2008 CV

Chairman, 
President, and 
CEO, Scripps
Networks
Interactive, Inc.

Chair None

Donald E. 
Meihaus
Industry 62 2015 CV

Former President,
Miramar 
Services, Inc.

√ √ √ None

2 Audit Committee (“AC”); Executive Committee (“EC”); Compensation Committee (“CC”); Nominating and Governance 
Committee (“NGC”). The Company also maintains a Pricing Committee, a Digital Advisory Committee, and a Special 
Committee, as described herein in further detail.

3 Class A Common Shares (“A”); Common Voting Shares (“CV”).
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Committee Memberships2

NAME AGE
DIRECTOR

SINCE
DIRECTOR

CATEGORY3
PRINCIPAL

OCCUPATION
INDE-

PENDENT AC EC CC NGC

OTHER
PUBLIC CO.

BOARDS

Richelle P. 
Parham
Industry

49 2012 CV General Partner, 
Camden Partners √ √

1 (Laboratory 
Corporation of

America
Holdings)

Mary 
McCabe 
Peirce
Industry

68 2008 CV
Former Trustee,
The Edward W.
Scripps Trust

√ √ √
1 (The E. W. 

Scripps
Company)

Wesley W.
Scripps
Industry

34 2014 CV
Founder and 
Owner, Forlio
Designs LLC

√ √ None

Number of 
Meetings in 2016 7 0 4 4

Executive Compensation Highlights

The Company seeks to align the interests of our named executive officers (“NEOs”) with the interests of the Company’s
shareholders. Certain important features of our executive compensation program include:

• The program is designed to align financial results and sustainable shareholder value creation with the compensation of our 
executives.

• Pay is tied to performance. Approximately 84% of our Chief Executive Officer’s and approximately 68% of the other 
NEOs’ fiscal 2016 target total direct compensation was based on “variable” (or “at risk”) pay elements.

o 100% of each NEO’s annual incentive award and 30% of each NEO’s long-term incentive award is subject to
achievement of short-term and long-term financial and business objectives, with the remainder of the long-term
incentive award comprised of stock options and restricted stock units (“RSUs”), designed to reward the NEOs for 
increasing the Company’s stock price and enhancing long-term value.

o Strong 2016 performance resulted in above-target payouts under the NEO’s 2016 annual incentive awards and for 
the performance-based restricted share units (“PBRSUs”) award portion of their 2015 long-term incentive awards 
(with a performance period endedd  December 31, 2016).d

• The Company maintains stock ownership guidelines that apply to all executive officers and directors.

• The Company has strong governance policies related to executive compensation, and we employ appropriate 
compensation risk mitigating features.
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PROPOSAL 1

Election of Directorsf

A board of 12 directors is to be elected, four by the holders of Class A Common Shares voting separately as a class and eight by
the holders of Common Voting Shares voting separately as a class.  In the election, the nominees receiving the greatest number of 
votes will be elected. Withheld votes and broker non-votes will have no effect on this proposal.

Each proxy for Class A Common Shares executed and returned by a holder of such shares will be voted for the election of the 
four directors hereinafter shown as nominees for such class of shares, unless otherwise indicated on such proxy. Each proxy for
Common Voting Shares executed and returned by a holder of such shares will be voted for the election of the eight directors
hereinafter shown as nominees for such class of shares, unless otherwise indicated on such proxy. Although the Board does not
contemplate that any of the nominees hereinafter named will be unavailable for election, in the event that any such nominee is unable 
to serve, the proxies will be voted for the remaining nominees and for such otherd  person(s),r  if any, as the Board may propose.

Mr. Paumgarten will turn 72 years old before the 2017 annual meeting. As set forth in the Company’s Corporate Governance
Principles, it is the general policy of the Company that the retirement age for directors is 72 years of age. However, the Board, upon
the recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee, has decided to make an exception to this retirement policy for
Mr. Paumgarten until the 2017 annual meeting of shareholders due to Mr. Paumgarten’s extensive knowledge, experience and his
deep understanding of the media industry, and has concluded that the Company would benefit from his continued service as a member 
of the Board. 

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote “FOR” the election of the nominated directors.
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REPORT ON THE NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The following table sets forth certain information as to each of the nominees for election to the Board of Directors. Each of the 
nominees, other than Philp I. Kent, is currently serving as a director of the Company and has been previously elected by our 
shareholders. 

Name Ageg
Director

Since
Principal Occupation or Occupation/Business

Experience for Past Five Years

Nominees for Election by Holders of Class A Common Shares

Jarl Mohn(1) ................................................................... 65 2008 President and CEO of NPR since July 2014; Trustee
of the Mohn Family Trust since September 1991, 
Interim CEO at MobiTV, Inc. (a converged media 
platform) from May 2007 to October 2007; President
and Chief Executive Officer of Liberty Digital, Inc. 
(a media company) from January 1999 to March 
2002; President and CEO of E! Entertainment 
Television (a network with programming dedicated 
to the world of entertainment) from January 1990 to 
December 1998.
Mr. Mohn brings more than forty years’ experience
in the media industry through his prior positions as
Chief Executive Officer of several major media 
companies. Additionally, he has 25 years’ experience 
in the cable TV industry. He is known for his vast
and extensive industry knowledge, innovative
thinking and expertise as well as a thorough 
understanding of the challenges and opportunities
faced by the Company. Additionally, he served as a
director of The E. W. Scripps Company (a publicly 
traded media company with interests in television
stations, newspapers and local news and information
Web sites), which provided him with institutional 
knowledge of the Company.

Nicholas B. Paumgarten(2) ............................................ 71 2008 Founder, Corsair Capital LLC (an investment firm) 
since March 2006; Managing Director of J.P. Morgan
Chase and Chairman of J.P. Morgan Corsair II 
Capital Partners L.P. (an investment banking firm
and an investment fund) from February 1992 to 
March 2006.
Mr. Paumgarten has extensive financial industry
experience and brings both financial services and 
corporate governance perspective to the Company as
the Founder of Corsair Capital, a former Managing
Director of J.P. Morgan Chase, and the former 
Chairman of J.P. Morgan Corsair II Capital Partners 
L.P. His prior service as a director of The E. W. 
Scripps Company provided him with institutional 
knowledge and expertise in the media industry.
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Name Ageg
Director

Since
Principal Occupation or Occupation/Business

Experience for Past Five Years

Jeffrey Sagansky(3)........................................................ 65 2008 Chairman and CEO of Double Eagle Acquisition
Corp. (a publicly traded company founded for the
purpose of effecting business combinations) since 
July 2015; President of Silver Eagle Acquisition
Corp. from July 2013 to March 2015; President of 
Global Eagle Acquisition Corp. from 2011 to 
February 2013; Chairman of RHI Entertainment LLC
(a producer and distributor of long-form television 
content) from February 2009 to December 2010.
Mr. Sagansky brings more than 35 years of 
experience managing television operations and 
investing in television distribution and production 
companies, which enables him to provide critical
insights into the media industry and how best to 
position the Company for success. He also holds an
MBA from Harvard Business School. From his long-
term experience in the media industry, he brings 
expertise and industry knowledge to the Board. Also,
as a former director of The E. W. Scripps Company,
he brings historical knowledge of the Company and
its strengths, challenges and opportunities.

Ronald W. Tysoe(4) ....................................................... 63 2008 Senior Advisor of Perella Weinberg Partners LP (a
global, independent advisory and asset management 
firm) from October 2006 to September 2007; Vice 
Chairman of Federated Department Stores, Inc.
(now Macy’s Inc.), a retail organization operating
stores and Internet websites, from April 1990 to 
October 2006.
Mr. Tysoe brings significant experience in 
accounting and finance, including serving on a
number of audit committees of public companies and 
as a former Chief Financial Officer of a large public 
company. Mr. Tysoe is an audit committee financial 
expert as defined in the SEC rules adopted under the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Additionally, he served as a 
director of The E. W. Scripps Company, which
provided him with institutional knowledge and 
insight into the challenges and opportunities of the
Company.

Nominees for Election by Holders of Common Voting Sharesf

Gina L. Bianchini ........................................................... 44 2012 Founder and CEO of Mighty Software, Inc. (provider 
of social software solutions) since September 2010.
CEO of Ning, Inc. (platform for creating social
websites) from 2004 to March 2010. Co-Founder and 
President of Harmonic Communications (an
advertising tracking, measurement, and optimization
software company) from March 2000 to July 2003.
Ms. Bianchini’s expertise, vision and creativity in the 
rapidly evolving world of social networking make her 
uniquely qualified to serve the Company. Her 
valuable insight and guidance will benefit the 
Company as it develops new interactive businesses 
and explores opportunities to create and deliver our 
brand of lifestyle content on innovative digital
platforms.
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Name Ageg
Director

Since
Principal Occupation or Occupation/Business

Experience for Past Five Years

Michael R. Costa ............................................................ 59 2009 Head of Mergers and Acquisitions and Vice 
Chairman of Investment Banking, Cowen and 
Company (a diversified financial services firm) from 
2010 to 2011; Former Managing Director, Global
Markets and Investment Banking/Mergers and 
Acquisitions of Merrill Lynch & Co. (provider of 
wealth management, securities trading and sales,
corporate finance and investment banking services)
from 1989 through 2008.
Mr. Costa brings more than twenty-five years of 
finance/investment banking experience to the Board.
His prior work experience includes serving as a
financial advisor to numerous corporations/boards in 
the media and communications industries in 
connection with mergers, acquisitions and corporate 
restructurings.

Philip I. Kent .................................................................. 62 - Non-executive Chairman, Vevo, LLC since 
September 2015; Chairman, Turner Broadcasting
System, Inc. from 2013 to 2014; Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer of Turner Broadcasting Systems, 
Inc. from 2003 until his retirement in 2013; President 
and Chief Operating Officer of CNN News Group
from 2000 to 2001; and President, International, 
Turner Broadcasting, Inc. from 1996 to 2000. 
Mr. Kent brings over thirty-five years of media 
industry experience to the Company, including 
nineteen years in the cable television industry. His
previous role as Chief Executive Officer provides
him with knowledge, experience and insight into
international expansion as well as oversight,
governance and management of complex media
organizations. Mr. Kent has served on the board of
directors of the National Cable & 
Telecommunications Association and was past Chair 
of the Advertising Council. He is a member of the 
Broadcasting & Cable Hall of Fame.

Kenneth W. Lowe .......................................................... 66 2008 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company since July 2008; President and Chief 
Executive Officer of The E. W. Scripps Company
from October 2000 to June 2008; President and Chief 
Operating Officer from January 2000 to September 
2000 of The E. W. Scripps Company.
From his service as the current Chairman, President 
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and his
prior service as President and Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Operating Officer of The E. W.
Scripps Company, Mr. Lowe brings deep institutional 
knowledge and perspective regarding the Company’s
strengths, challenges and opportunities. He possesses
extensive public company and media industry
experience.
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Name Ageg
Director

Since
Principal Occupation or Occupation/Business

Experience for Past Five Years
Donald E. Meihaus ......................................................... 62 2015 Secretary and Treasurer of The Edward W. Scripps

Trust from 1990 until his retirement in
2013; President of Miramar Services, Inc. (the 
Scripps family office) from 2002 to 2012.
Mr. Meihaus brings institutional knowledge to the 
Company from his service as the former President of 
the Scripps family office and as Secretary and
Treasurer of The Edward W. Scripps Trust.

Richelle P. Parham(5) .................................................... 49 2012 General Partner, Camden Partners, since 2016; Chief 
Marketing Officer of eBay Marketplaces, North
America (Ecommerce company) from 2010 to 
February 2015; Head of Global Marketing Innovation 
and Initiatives and Head of Global Marketing
Services for Visa, Inc. (global financial technology
company) from 2008 to 2010. Ms. Parham also held a
variety of senior leadership roles at Digitas, Inc.
(global integrated advertising agency) from 1994 to 
2007 including serving as Senior Vice President and
General Manager of the agency’s Chicago office.
Ms. Parham has more than 20 years of global 
marketing experience. Her experience developing 
strategies that deliver strong return on marketing 
investments becomes increasingly important as we
create lifestyle content services for consumers on 
emerging interactive media platforms.

Mary McCabe Peirce(6)(7) ............................................ 68 2008 Ms. Peirce brings institutional knowledge to the
Company through her service as a trustee of The
Edward W. Scripps Trust and as a director of The E. 
W. Scripps Company. As a result of this experience,
she has a thorough understanding of the Company’s 
history and vision.

Wesley W. Scripps(7) .................................................... 34 2014 Founder and owner of Forlio Designs LLC (a web
design firm) since 2008.
Mr. Scripps’ experience in owning and operating a
web design firm provides real-time, valuable insight
and guidance to the Company as it develops new
interactive businesses and promotes its brands on 
various platforms.

(1) Mr. Mohn was previously a director of CNET Networks, Inc. (a then-publicly traded interactive media company) and XM Satellite 
Radio Holdings, Inc. (a then-publicly traded satellite radio provider).

(2) Mr. Paumgarten was previously a director of United Community Banks, Inc. (a publicly traded bank holding company).
(3) Mr. Sagansky is a director of Global Eagle Entertainment, Inc. (a publicly traded airline supplier of entertainment and connectivity to

the worldwide airline business) and a non-executive director of Videocon d2H Limited (a publicly traded provider of direct to home
digital satellite services in India.). He was previously a director of RHI Entertainment, Inc. (a then-publicly traded broadcast media
producer), American Media, Inc. (a publicly traded magazine company), and Starz (a then-publicly traded pay television company).

(4) Mr. Tysoe is a director of Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Cintas Corporation (a publicly traded company providing specialized
services, including uniform programs and other products, to businesses), J. C. Penney Company, Inc. (a publicly traded apparel and 
home furnishing retailer), and Taubman Centers, Inc. (a publicly traded real estate company that owns and operates regional shopping 
centers). He was previously a director of NRDC Acquisition Corporation, Ohio Casualty Corporation (a then-publicly traded casualty
insurance company) and Pzena Investment Management, Inc. (a publicly traded investment management company). 

(5) Ms. Parham is a director of Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings (a publicly traded independent clinical laboratory company).
(6) Ms. Peirce is a director of The E. W. Scripps Company.
(7) Mr. Scripps is a first cousin once removed of Ms. Peirce. 
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REPORT ON THE SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to persons known to management to be the beneficial owners, as 
of January 31, 2017, unless indicated otherwise in the footnotes below, of more than 5 percent of the Company’s outstanding Class A
Common Shares or Common Voting Shares. Unless otherwise indicated, the persons named in the table have sole voting and 
investment power with respect to all shares shown therein as being beneficially owned by them. 

Total Shares to be
Beneficially Owned Percentage of Total(1)

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Class A
Common

Shares

Common
Voting
Shares

Class A
Common

Shares

Common
Voting
Shares

GREATER THAN FIVE PERCENT SHAREHOLDERS
Signatories to Scripps Family Agreement(2) — 31,066,422 — 91.8%

c/o Tracy Tunney Ward Miramar Services, Inc. 250
   Grandview Ave., Suite 400 Fort Mitchell, KYt  41017

Southeastern Asset Management, Inc.(3) 10,065,833 — 10.5% —
6410 Poplar Ave., Suite 900 Memphis, TN 38119

BlackRock, Inc.(4) 7,162,185 — 7.5% —
55 East 52nd Street New York, NY 10022

The Vanguard Group(5) 7,884,635 — 8.3% —
100 Vanguard Blvd. Malvern, PA 19355

y g

(1) Percentage of class is based on 95,530,861 Class A Common Shares and 33,850,481 Common Voting Shares outstanding as of 
January 31, 2017. Subject to the Scripps Family Agreement, each Common Voting Share is convertible at no cost and at any
time into one Class A Common Share. The Percentage of Total Class A Common Shares does not give effect to the conversion
of any Common Voting Shares into Class A Common Shares.

(2) Certain descendants of Robert P. Scripps, descendants of John P. Scripps, certain trusts of which descendants of John P. Scripps 
or Robert P. Scripps are trustees or beneficiaries and an estate of a descendent of Robert P. Scripps are signatories to the
Amended and Restated Scripps Family Agreement, dated May 19, 2015 (the “Scripps Family Agreement”), which governs the
transfer and voting of all Common Voting Shares held by such signatories. The information in the table and this footnote is
based on Amendment No. 12 to a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on January 4, 2017 by the signatories to the Scripps Family
Agreement. The signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement report shared voting power with each other with respect to the 
Common Voting Shares shown in the table because such shares will be voted as instructed by a vote conducted in accordance
with the procedures set forth in the Scripps Family Agreement. The shares shown in the table do not include the following 
Common Voting Shares (the “Minors’ Shares”) that are held on behalf of persons who were minors at the time such shares were 
distributed from The Edward W. Scripps Trust (each, a “Minor”), and are not parties or subject to the Scripps Family 
Agreement: (a) 1,604,000 Common Voting Shares held by two signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement as co-guardians for 
a Minor and (b) 801,999 Common Voting Shares held by trusts for the benefit of Minors with respect to which another signatory
to the Scripps Family Agreement serves as trust advisor.
The signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement also report that they individually beneficially own, in the aggregate, an 
additional 9,739,785 Class A Common Shares (10.20% of the outstanding Class A Common Shares), including an additional
48,147 Class A Common Shares, 15,118 Class A Common Shares,  41,689 Class A Common Shares, 8,568 Class A Common
Shares, and 8,568 Class A Common Shares, respectively, that Mary McCabe Peirce and Wesley W. Scripps (each of whom is a
director of the Company), Nackey Scagliotti, Edward W. Scripps, Jr. and Paul K. Scripps have the right to acquire within 60 
days pursuant to outstanding stock options. None of the Class A Common Shares are subject to the Scripps Family Agreement. 
If the Scripps Family Agreement is not considered, none of the signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement currently 
beneficially owns more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding Class A Common Shares or Common Voting Shares, other than: 
(i) Virginia S. Vasquez and Rebecca Scripps Brickner, who beneficially own 2,405,650 and 2,405,850 Common Voting Shares, 
respectively (7.1% of the outstanding Common Voting Shares each), including for each of them all the shares held by the Estate
of Robert P. Scripps, Jr., of which they are co-executors, (ii) Mary McCabe Peirce, who beneficially owns 2,404,000 Common 
Voting Shares (7.1% of the outstanding Common Voting Shares), including 1,604,000 Minor’s Shares as to which she and 
Elizabeth A. Logan may be deemed to share beneficial ownership as co-guardians (which are not subject to the Scripps Family 
Agreement), (iii) Eaton M. Scripps, who beneficially owns 2,283,289 Common Voting Shares (6.7% of the outstanding
Common Voting Shares), (iv) Charles Kyne McCabe, who beneficially owns 2,269,000 Common Voting Shares (6.7% of the
outstanding Common Voting Shares), and (v) Edward W. Scripps, Jr., who beneficially owns 1,713,211 Common Voting Shares
(5.1% of outstanding Common Voting Shares).f
The signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement filing the Amendment No. 12 to Schedule 13D were Adam R. Scripps, Anne 
La Dow, Anne M. La Dow Trust under Agreement dated 10/27/2011, Anthony S. Granado, Austin S. Heidt, Barbara Victoria
Scripps Evans, Careen Cardin, Charles E. Scripps, Jr., Charles Kyne McCabe, Charles L. Barmonde, Cody Dubuc, Corina S.
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Granado, Crystal Vasquez Lozano, Cynthia J. Scripps, Douglas A. Evans, Douglas A. Evans 1983 Trust, Eaton M. Scripps, 
Edward W. Scripps, Jr., Eli W. Scripps, Elizabeth A. Logan, Elizabeth Scripps, Ellen B. Granado, Ellen M. Scripps Kaheny, 
Ellen M. Scripps Kaheny Revocable Trust dated April 17, 2014, Estate of Robert P. Scripps, Jr., Eva Scripps Attal, Gerald J.
Scripps, Geraldine Scripps Granado, J. Sebastian Scripps, James Bryce Vasquez, Jenny Sue Scripps Mitchell, Jessica L. Scripps, 
Jimmy R. Scripps, John P. Scripps, John P. Scripps Trust Exempt Trust under agreement dated 2/10/77, John P. Scripps Trust 
under agreement dated 2/10/77 FBO Barbara Scripps Evans, John P. Scripps Trust FBO Douglas A. Evans under agreement 
dated 12/28/84, John P. Scripps Trust FBO Ellen McRae Scripps under agreement dated 12/28/84, John P. Scripps Trust FBO
Paul K. Scripps under agreement dated 2/10/77, John P. Scripps Trust under agreement dated 2/10/77 FBO Peter M. Scripps, 
John Patrick Scripps, John Peter Scripps 2013 Revocable Trust dated December 30, 2013, Jonathan L. Scripps, Julia Scripps 
Heidt, Kendall S. Barmonde, Keon Korey Vasquez, La Dow Family Trust under agreement dated 6/29/2004, Manuel E.
Granado, Margaret Scripps Klenzing, Marilyn J. Scripps, Mary Ann S. Sanchez, Mary 
Peirce, Maxwell Christopher Logan, Megan Scripps Tagliaferri, R. Michael Scagliotti, Molly E. McCabe, Monica Holcomb,
Nackey E. Scagliotti, Nathaniel W. Heidt, Paul K. Scripps, Peggy Scripps Evans, Peter M. Scripps, Peter R. La Dow, Raymundo 
H. Granado, Jr., Rebecca Scripps Brickner, Robert S. Heidt III, Samantha J. Brickner, Savannah Brickner, The Marital Trust of 
the La Dow Family Trust (subtrust of La Dow Family Trust), The Paul K. Scripps Family Revocable Trust, The Peter M. 
Scripps Trust under agreement dated 11/13/2002, Thomas S. Evans, Thomas S. Evans Irrevocable Trust under agreement dated 
11/13/12, Victoria S. Evans Trust under agreement dated 5/19/2004, Virginia S. Vasquez, Wendy E. Scripps, William A.
Scripps, William H. Scripps, Kathy Scripps, Scripps Family 1992 Revocable Trust, dated 06-09-92, Sam D.F. Scripps, Samuel 
Joseph Logan, Welland H. Scripps, Wesley W. Scripps and William A. Scripps Jr.

(3) This information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC by Southeastern Asset Management, Inc. on February 14,
2017. According to the filing, Southeastern Asset Management, Inc. holds sole voting power with respect to 4,629,182 Class A
Common Shares, shared voting power with respect to 5,002,112 Class A Common Shares, sole dispositive power with respect to
5,063,721 Class A Common Shares and shared dispositive power with respect to 5,002,112 Class A Common Shares.

(4) This information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC by BlackRock, Inc. on January 27, 2017. According to the
filing, BlackRock, Inc. holds sole voting power with respect to 6,426,917 Class A Common Shares and sole dispositive power 
with respect to 7,162,185 Class A Common Shares.

(5) This information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC by The Vanguard Group on February 13, 2017. According to
the filing, The Vanguard Group holds sole voting power with respect to 146,285 Class A Common Shares, sole dispositive 
power with respect to 7,730,327 Class A Common Shares, shared voting power with respect to 12,616 Class A Common Shares, 
and shared dispositive power with respect to 154,308 Class A Common Shares.

The Scripps Family Agreement 

General.     The Edward W. Scripps Trust (the “Trust”), the former controlling shareholder of the Company, ended on 
October 18, 2012 upon the death of Robert P. Scripps, a grandson of the founder. He was the last of Edward W. Scripps’
grandchildren upon whom the duration of the Trust was based. In March and September of 2013, the Trust distributed the Class A
Common Shares and Common Voting Shares held by the Trust to the beneficiaries of the Trust and to trust and guardian arrangements
on behalf of thef Minors.

Certain beneficiaries of the Trust and their descendants and certain members of the John P. Scripps family and trusts for their 
benefit are signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement, which governs the transfer and voting of Commonr  Voting Shares. 

The Minors’ Shares are not subject to the Scripps Family Agreement, and the Minors may or may not become parties in the 
future. 

Voting Provisions of the Scripps Family Agreement.    Section 9 of the Scripps Family Agreement provides that the Company
will call a meeting of the signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement (the “Signatories”) prior to each annual or special meeting of
the shareholders of the Company. At each of these meetings, the Company will discuss with the Signatories each matter, including
election of directors, that the Company will submit to the holders of Common Voting Shares at the annual meeting or special meeting
with respect to which the meeting under the Scripps Family Agreement has been called. Each Signatory is entitled, either in person or
by proxy, to cast one vote for each Common Voting Share owned of record or beneficially by the Signatory on each matter brought for 
a vote at the meeting. Each Signatory is bound by the decision reached by majority vote with respect to each such matter, and at the
related annual or special meeting of the shareholders of the Company each Signatory is required to vote the Signatory’s Common 
Voting Shares in accordance with the decisions reached at the meeting of thef  Signatories.

The Signatories have informed the Company that at a March 10, 2017 meeting of the Signatories held pursuant to the Scripps 
Family Agreement, the Signatories approved election of the eight director nominees to be voted on by the holders of Common Voting
Shares and approved Proposals 2, 3 and 4. Accordingly, based on such approval, the Signatories have informed the Company that they 
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will vote the Common Voting Shares held of record by them in favor of such nominees and for Proposals 2, 3 and 4 at the annual 
meeting of shareholders.

Transfer Restrictions of the Scripps Family Agreement.    Signatories cannot dispose of any Common Voting Shares (except as
otherwise summarized below) without first giving other Signatories and the Company the opportunity to purchase the shares. 
Signatories cannot convert Common Voting Shares into Class A Common Shares except for a limited period of time after giving other 
Signatories and the Company the opportunity to purchase such shares and ind  certain other limited circumstances. 

Signatories are permitted to transfer Common Voting Shares to (a) their lineal descendants, and (b) certain charitable
organizations, trusts and entities that are controlled by, or for which the power to vote and dispose of the Common Voting Shares is
directed by, descendants of Robert P. Scripps or John P. Scripps. Descendants to whom the shares are sold or transferred outright, and 
trustees and other persons with voting and dispositive power with respect to charitable organizations, trusts and entities into which
such shares are transferred, must become parties to the Scripps Family Agreement or the shares will be deemed to be offered for sale 
pursuant to the Scripps Family Agreement. Signatories also are permitted to transfer Common Voting Shares by testamentary transfer 
to their spouses provided the shares are converted to Class A Common Shares and to pledge the shares as collateral security provided
that the pledgee agrees to be bound by the terms of the Scripps Family Agreement. If title to any such shares subject to any trust is
transferred to anyone other than a descendant of Robert P. Scripps or John P. Scripps, or if a person who is a descendant of Robert P. 
Scripps or John P. Scripps acquires outright any such shares held in trust but is not or does not become a party to the Scripps Family 
Agreement, such shares will be deemed to be offered for sale pursuant to the Scripps Family Agreement. Any valid transfer of 
Common Voting Shares made by Signatories without compliance with the Scripps Family Agreement will result in automatic
conversion of such shares to Classf  A Common Shares. 

Duration of the Scripps Family Agreement. The provisions restricting transfer of Common Voting Shares under the Scripps
Family Agreement will continue until 21 years after the death of the last survivor of the descendants of Robert P. Scripps and John P.
Scripps alive when the Trust terminated. The provisions of the Scripps Family Agreement governing the voting of Common Voting 
Shares will be effective for a 10-year period after termination of the Trust and may be renewed for additional 10-year periods.
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Beneficial Ownership by Executive Officers and Directors 

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of Class A Common Shares and 
Common Voting Shares by the Company’s executive officers and directors as of January 31, 2017.*

Percentage of
Total(1)

Name of Beneficial Owner:

Class A
Common
Shares(1)

Exercisable
Options(2)

Vested
Restricted

Stock
Units(3)

Total Class A
Common Shares(4)

Common
Voting

Shares(1)

Class A
Common

Shares

Common
Voting
Shares

Gina L. Bianchini 4,714 24,051 1,159 29,924 0 * *
Michael R. Costa 8,039 28,345 1,159 37,543 0 * *
David A. Galloway 2,000 48,147 1,159 51,306 0 * *
Cynthia L. Gibson 18,269 89,284 7,264 114,817 0 * *
Mark S. Hale 20,596 122,686 6,534 149,816 0 * *
Lori A. Hickok 20,403 112,736 12,519 145,658 0 * *
Burton F. Jablin 38,108 187,709 39,173 264,990 0 * *
Kenneth W. Lowe 209,833 687,745 79,881 977,459 0 1.0% *
Donald E. Meihaus 1,077 10,742 1,159 12,978 0 * *
Jarl Mohn(5) 23,476 48,147 1,159 72,782 0 * *
Richelle P. Parham 2,460 24,051 1,159 27,670 0 * *
NNicholas B. Paumgarten(6) 26,183 54,996 1,159 82,338 0 * *
Mary McCabe Peirce(7) 182,292 48,147 1,159 231,598 32,670,422 * 96.5%
NNello-John Pesci, Jr. 5,919 39,545 6,285 51,749 0 * *
Jeffrey Sagansky 11,457 24,051 1,159 36,667 0 * *
Wesley W. Scripps(7) 2,276 15,118 1,159 18,553 31,066,422 * 91.8%
Ronald W. Tysoe 4,714 33,576 1,159 39,449 * *
All directors & executive 581,816 1,599,076 164,405 2,345,297 32,670,422 2.5% 96.5%
officers as a group (17 persons)

* Shares owned represent less than 1% of the outstanding shares of such class off  stock.f
(1) The shares listed for each of the officers and directors represent his or her direct or indirect beneficial ownership of Class A

Common Shares and Common Voting Shares. None of the shares listed for any officer or director is pledged as security for any 
obligation, such as pursuant to a loan arrangement or agreement or pursuant to any margin account agreement. Percentage of 
class is based on 95,530,861 Class A Common Shares and 33,850,481 Common Voting Shares outstanding as of January 31,
2017. Subject to the Scripps Family Agreement, each Common Voting Share is convertible at no cost and at any time into one 
Class A Common Share. The Percentage of Total Class A Common Shares does not give effect to the conversion of any 
Common Voting Shares into Class A Common Shares.

(2) The shares listed for each of the executive officers and directors include Class A Common Shares underlying exercisable 
options at January 31, 2017, options that will be exercisable within 60 days after January 31, 2017 and options that will vest
upon retirement.

(3) The shares listed for each of the executive officers and directors include Class A Common Shares underlying RSUs at 
January 31, 2017, RSUs that will be vested within 60 days of January 31, 2017 and RSUs thatf  will vest upon retirement.

(4) The shares listed do not include any phantom share units held by a director in a phantom share account under the 2008 Deferred 
Compensation Plan for Directors. The following directors have been credited with the following number of phantom share units 
in such accounts as of December 31, 2016: Mr. Galloway — 24,929.95; Mr. Paumgarten — 18,568.00 and Mr. Tysoe — 
28,264.68. The directors do not have voting or investment power with respect to any of these phantom share units. 

(5) The shares for Mr. Mohn include 100 shares held in an S corporation that is 100 percentr  controlled by The Mohn Family Trust.
(6) The shares listed for Mr. Paumgarten include 1,700 shares owned by his wife. Mr. Paumgarten disclaims beneficial ownership

of such shares.
(7) The shares listed for Ms. Peirce include 1,604,000 Common Voting Shares held as co-trustee of a trust for the benefit of a

family member. Ms. Peirce and Mr. Scripps are signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement. See “The Scripps Family
Agreement” and footnote (2) to the preceding table.
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REPORT ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

2016 Board Meetings 

During 2016, the Board held four regularly scheduled meetings and two special meetings. All directors attended at least 75
percent of the meetings of the Board and of the committees on which they served during thef  year ended December 31, 2016. 

Executive Sessions of Directors 

The independent directors of the Board met in executive session four times in 2016. Nicholas B. Paumgarten, who currently is
serving as the lead director, presided at each of the meetings. t

Committee Charters

The charters of the audit, compensation and nominating and governance committees are available for review on the Company’s
website at www.scrippsnetworksinteractive.com by first clicking on “Investors,” then “Corporate Governance,” then “Governance 
Highlights,” and then on each committee’s name. Copies are available in print to any shareholder who requests a copy by contacting
the corporate secretary at 9721 Sherrill Blvd., Knoxville, TN 37932.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Executive Committee.    Kenneth W. Lowe, Chair, Nicholas B. Paumgarten and Mary McCabe Peirce are the members of the 
Executive Committee. The Board may delegate authority to the Executive Committee to exercise certain powers of the Board in the 
management of the business and affairs of thef Company between Board meetings. The Executive Committee did not meet in 2016.

Audit Committee.    Ronald W. Tysoe, Chair, Michael R. Costa, Donald E. Meihaus, Richelle P. Parham and Jeffrey Sagansky 
are the members of the Audit Committee. The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibility relating to: (1) the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and financial reporting process and the Company’s 
systems of internal accounting and financial controls; (2) the performance of the internal audit services function; (3) the annual
independent audit of the Company’s financial statements, the engagement of the independent auditors and the evaluation of the
independent auditors’ qualifications, independence, performance and fees; (4) the compliance by the Company with legal and 
regulatory requirements, including the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures; (5) the evaluation of enterprise risk issues; and
(6) the fulfillment of all other responsibilities as outlined in its charter. The internal and independent auditors have unrestricted access 
to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee meets privately with each of the independent auditors, the internal auditors and
management. During 2016, the Audit Committee held seven meetings. Each member of the Audit Committee is financially literate,
under applicable Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and NASDAQ Global Select Market (“NASDAQ”) standards. In
addition, Messrs. Tysoe and Costa each is an audit committee financial expert, as defined under SEC regulations. No member of the
Audit Committee may receive any compensation, consulting, advisory or other fee from the Company, other than the Board 
compensation described elsewhere in this proxy statement, as determined in accordance with applicable SEC and NASDAQ rules.

The Company does not limit the number of other audit committees on which the members serve; however, in each case, the 
Board evaluates and determines whether commitments to serve on other audit committees impairs such member’s effective service to
the Company. Messrs. Tysoe and Sagansky currently serve on the audit committees of two public companies, in addition to service on 
the Audit Committee of the Company. The Company’s Board reviewed these service commitments and determined that such 
simultaneous service does not impair their ability to effectively serve on the Company’s Audit Committee. 

Compensation Committee.    Jarl Mohn, Chair, Gina L. Bianchini, Michael R. Costa, Ronald W. Tysoe, and David A. Galloway
are the members of the Compensation Committee. Mr. Kent,f  if elected, will be a member of the Compensation Committee.

The Compensation Committee is appointed by the Board to discharge the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation of 
the Company’s officers. The Compensation Committee reviews and approves the Company’s goals and objectives relevant to 
compensation of senior management and evaluates the performance of senior management in light of those goals and objectives. With
respect to the senior managers, the Compensation Committee establishes base compensation levels, the terms of incentive 
compensation plans and equity-based plans and post-service arrangements. The Compensation Committee approves all awards under 
the Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plan and approves awards under the Company’s Executive Annual Incentive Plan. The
Compensation Committee reviews all of the components of the chief executive officer’s compensation, including goals and objectives,
and makes recommendations to the Board.
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With respect to any funded employee benefit plans, the Compensation Committee appoints and monitors named fiduciaries. On
an annual basis, the Compensation Committee reviews the operation of the Company’s compensation program to evaluate its
coordination and execution and reviews any management perquisites. The Compensation Committee reviews succession planning 
relating to positions held by senior officers and makes recommendations with respect thereto to the Board. The Compensation
Committee has the authority to engage outside consultants to assist in determining appropriate compensation levels for the chief 
executive officer, other senior managers and directors. The Compensation Committee is also responsible for producing an annual 
report for inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement and for reviewing and approving the Compensation Discussion & Analysis and 
related compensation disclosure. During 2016, the Compensation Committee held four meetings.d

Nominating and Governance Committee.    Jeffrey Sagansky, Chair, Gina L. Bianchini, Donald E. Meihaus, Nicholas B.
Paumgarten, Mary McCabe Peirce and Wesley W. Scripps are the members of the Nominating and Governance Committee. The 
purpose is to: (1) to assist the Board by identifying individuals qualified to become board members and to recommend director 
nominees to the Board and to the signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement; (2) to recommend to the Board the Corporate
Governance Principles applicable to the Company; (3) to lead the Board in its annual review of the Board’s performance; (4) to 
recommend to the Board nominees for each committee of the Board; and (5) to review and make recommendations with respect to 
director compensation to the Board. During 2016, the Nominating and Governance Committee held four meetings.d

Pricing Committee.    Ronald W. Tysoe, Jarl Mohn and Michael R. Costa are the members of a special Pricing Committee 
appointed by the Board to reviewd  material distribution agreements. The Pricing Committee did not meet in 2016. 

Digital Advisory Committee.    Gina L. Bianchini, Chair, Jarl Mohn, Richelle P. Parham and Wesley W. Scripps are the 
members of the ad hoc Digital Advisory Committee appointed by the Board in November 2012 to further the Company’s on-going 
commitment to create viable, profitable and growing interactive content strategies and businesses. The Digital Advisory Committee
did not meet in 2016.

Special Committee.    A special committee of the Board, consisting of Jarl Mohn, Nicholas B. Paumgarten, Jeffrey Sagansky and 
Ronald W. Tysoe (each of the directors elected by the holders of the Class A Common Shares), was appointed by the Board in
December 2014 to review and approve the purchase by the Company pursuant to the Company’s ongoing share repurchase program of 
Class A Common Shares offered for sale by certain signatories to the Scripps Family Agreement. The special committee did not meet 
in 2016. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Board is committed to good corporate governance, good business practices and transparency in financial reporting. The
Nominating and Governance Committee annually reviews the Company’s Corporate Governance Principles, a copy of which is 
available on the Company’s website by clicking on “Investors,” then “Corporate Governance,” and “Governance Highlights.” Copies
are available in print to any shareholder who requests a copy by contacting the corporate secretary at 9721 Sherrill Blvd., Knoxville, 
TN 37932.

Code of Ethicsf

The Company demonstrates its commitment to operate at the highest ethical standards by enforcing the principles in its Code of
Ethics which is applicable to all employees. The Company’s Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer is responsible for implementation 
and oversight of the ethics program. Additionally, the Company has in place a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the Chief 
Executive Officer and the Senior Financial Officers. It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee and the Chief Financial Officer to
make sure that this policy is operative and has effective reporting and enforcement mechanisms. The Code of Business Conduct and 
Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers is available for review on the Company’s website and to any
shareholder who requests a printed copy. Amendments to the policies and waivers of provisions applicable to executive officers or 
directors may only be made by the Board or an authorized committee of the Board. Any such amendment or waiver will be promptly 
disclosed on the Company’s website within four business days.

The Company believes it has an obligation to provide employees with the guidance and support needed to ensure that the best,
most ethical choices are made at work. To support this commitment, the Company established a means for employees to submit 
confidential and anonymous reports of suspected or actual violations of the Company’s Code of Ethics relating, among other things, 
to: accounting and auditing matters; antitrust activity; confidentiality and misappropriation; conflicts of interest, discrimination or 
harassment; diverting of product or business activity; embezzlement; falsification of contracts, reports or records; gifts or 
entertainment; improper supplier or contractor activity; securities violations; sexual harassment; substance abuse; theft; or unsafe
working conditions. To submit a report, an employee may call a toll-free number that is answered by a trained professional of 
EthicsPoint, an independent firm. This number (888-258-3507) is operational 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Employees may also 
raise questions online through the Internet (www.ethicspoint.com). 

Charitable Contributions 

The Company has not made any charitable contributions, where the amount has exceeded $1 million or 2 percent of such
charity’s consolidated gross revenues, to any charitable organization of which a directorf  is an executive officer.

Board Leadership Structure

Kenneth W. Lowe serves as both the Chairman of the Company’s Board and as its President and Chief Executive Officer. The
Board has also appointed an independent lead director, Nicholas B. Paumgarten, who presides at all meetings of the Board at which 
the chairman is not present, including executive sessions of the independent directors. The lead director also serves as a liaison
between the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer and the independent directors, which includes sharing with the
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer such observations, comments or concerns as he and the other independent directors
deem appropriate, reviews with the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer matters to be presented to the Board and has the
authority to call meetings of the independent directors. The Company’s enterprise risk issues are reviewed by the Audit Committee,
which reports on such issues to the Board based on periodic reports from management. The Chairman, President and Chief Executive 
Officer’s performance is reviewed annually by the Compensation Committee, which reports such determinations to the Board. The
Company deems this leadership structure appropriate as it promotes efficiency in communications between the Chairman, President 
and Chief Executive Officer and the Board while monitoring effective independent board oversight over the President and Chief 
Executive Officer. The Company also believes that its leadership structure supports the risk oversight function of the Board described
in more detail below.

Board Role in Risk Oversight

Risk oversight is primarily the responsibility of Company management, while the Board has ultimate responsibility for
overseeing management’s risk management processes. The Board uses various means to fulfill this responsibility. Certain risks that 
fall under the purview of a particular committee are monitored by that committee, which then reports to the full Board as appropriate. 
Each of the committees of the Board addresses risks that fall within the committee’s areas of responsibility. For example, the Audit 
Committee reviews management’s enterprise risk management report, management’s audit plan and reports, legal and regulatory 
reports, treasury and insurance operations, the Company’s information technology risks and mitigation strategies, the tax function, and
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the Company's business code of conduct and compliance program. These management reports address significant risks such as
operational, strategic, legal, regulatory, financial, technological, and reputational risks. The Compensation Committee addresses risks
arising out of the Company’s executive compensationf  programs.

Certain risks which may relate to various market and economic assumptions that might be key risk indicators to the Company’s
growth and strategic plans are addressed in connection with the Board’s annual review of the Company’s strategic plan and planning 
process. The Board also has the opportunity to address such risks at each Board meeting in connection with its regular review of 
significant business and financial developments as presented by management. The Board also reviews risks arising out of specific
significant transactions when these transactions are presented to the Board for review or approval.d

Communications with the Board

Shareholders and other interested parties wishing to communicate with the independent directors as a group or with any
individual director (including the lead director) may do so by addressing a letter to the independent directors or to the individual
director and sending it to them in care of the corporate secretary at 9721 Sherrill Blvd., Knoxville, TN 37932. For those who wish to 
send such communications via e-mail, they can do so to estratigeas@scrippsnetworks.com. A majority of the independent directors
have instructed the corporate secretary to review all communications so received, and to forward directly to the independent directors
or the individual director all such communications, except for communications unrelated to the function of the Board. Any
communications not forwarded will be retained for one year, and any independent director may request the corporate secretary to
forward to the independent director any such communication. The corporate secretary will not share direct communications to the
independent directors or an individual director with any other member of management unless instructed to do so by the lead director 
or the independent director to whom the communication was addressed.

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings of Shareholders 

The Company does not have a policy with regard to attendance by the directors at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders. At last 
year’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders, two directors were present.

Director Education

New directors attend one or more orientation sessions that introduce them to the Company’s operations and to the members of 
management. New directors also attend a formal director training program. Thereafter, directors are informed on a regular basis of 
various director educational programs offered by governance and director organizations. The Company pays for the continuing 
education of its directors. The director orientationf  policy is reviewed by the Nominating and Governance Committee annually.

Director Independence — Audit Committee

The Board of the Company has determined that none of the current members of the Audit Committee has any relationship with
the Company that could interfere with his or her exercise of independence from management and the Company. Each of the members
satisfies the definitions of independence set forth in the rules promulgated under the applicable rules of the SEC, the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act and in the listing standards of NASDAQ.f

Director Independence — Controlled Company Status

NASDAQ requires listed companies to have a majority of independent directors on their board of directors and to ensure that
their audit committee and compensation committee are composed solely of independent directors. Director nominees must either be 
selected or recommended for the board of directors’ selection by a nominating committee composed solely of independent directors
or, if no such committee exists, a majority of the independent directors in a vote in which only the independent directors participate. In
addition, independent directors must meet regularly in executive sessions at which only independent directors are present. A company
that qualifies as a “controlled company” does not have to comply with these requirements, other than the audit committee
independence and executive sessions requirements, so long as the company discloses to shareholders that the company qualifies as a
“controlled company” and is relying on this exemption in not having a majority of independent directors on the Board or solely
independent directors on the compensation committee. A “controlled company” is a listed company of which more than 50 percent of 
the voting power for the election of directors is held by an individual, a group, or another company. Signatories to the Scripps Family 
Agreement hold a majority of the Company’s outstanding Common Voting Shares and as such the Company qualifies as a “controlled 
company” and may rely on the NASDAQ exemption. The Company is not relyingt  at present on that exemption.
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Director Independence

The Company has determined that all of the directors, other than Kenneth W. Lowe, have no material relationship with the 
Company and are independent under the criteria set forth in applicable rules of the SEC, the listing standards of NASDAQ and the
Company’s Corporate Governance Principles. Additionally, all of the members of the Audit Committee, Nominating and Governance 
Committee and the Compensation Committee are independent under such standards.

Nominations for Directors 

The Nominating and Governance Committee will review any candidate recommended by a shareholder of the Company in light 
of the Nominating and Governance Committee’s criteria for selection of new directors. If a shareholder wishes to recommend a
candidate, he or she should send the recommendation, with a description of the candidate’s qualifications, to: Chair, Nominating and 
Governance Committee, c/o Ms. Eleni Vatsis Stratigeas, Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc., 9721 Sherrill Blvd., Knoxville, TN 
37932. 

In the past, the Nominating and Governance Committee has hired an independent consultant to assist with the identification and 
evaluation of director nominees and may do so in the future.f

Nomination for Directors — Qualification Standards

When selecting new director nominees, the Nominating and Governance Committee considers requirements of applicable law 
and listing standards, as well as the director qualification standards highlighted in the Company’s Corporate Governance Principles.
The Nominating and Governance Committee seeks diversity on the Board in terms of skills, experience and other factors. The
Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing with the Board the experience, qualifications, attributes and 
skills of nominees as well as the diversity and composition of the Board as a whole. A person considered for nomination to the Board
must be a person of high integrity. Other factors considered are independence, age, skills, and experience in the context of the needs of 
the Board. The Nominating and Governance Committee makes recommendations to the Board regarding the selection of director 
nominees. The Nominating and Governance Committee is required to review annually the effectiveness of the Company’s Corporate
Governance Principles, including the provisions regarding director qualifications (including diversity) that are part of the Corporate
Governance Principles.
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

In this section, we describe our compensation philosophy objectives and programs for our Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) and our otherr  NEOs. The Compensationr  Discussion & Analysis (“CD&A”) provides:

• A summary of our business results and the alignment between executive pay, short-term and long-term Company 
performance; 

• How our Board’s Compensation Committee determines compensation design and pay levels for specific 2016 decisions,
including our compensation governance approach; and

• A detailed description of the elements of the Company’s executive compensation program.

Executive Summary

Our executive compensation programs are designed to reward financial results and effective strategic leadership to build 
sustainable value for shareholders by correlating the timing and amount of actual pay with performance goals over various time 
horizons without excessive risk-taking. 

As part of our annual compensation governance process, we review the appropriate group of peer companies against which we
benchmark all elements of compensation program design and company-wide pay levels. Our compensation decisions and program
designs for our NEOs, as discussed in this section, are intended to focus on both the short-term and long-term growth of the 
organization.

Our NEOs for Fiscal 2016 were:

Name Current Title
Kenneth W. Lowe Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officerf
Lori A. Hickok Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Burton F. Jablin Chief Operating Officer, Scripps Networks Interactive
Cynthia L. Gibson Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer
Mark S. Hale Executive Vice President, Global Operations & Chief Technology Officer

Fiscal 2016 Business Review

We are a global media company with respected high-profile brands and are a leading developer of lifestyle-oriented content, 
providing primarily home, food, travel and other lifestyle-related programming. Our content is distributed via multiple methods,
including television, the internet, digital platforms and licensing arrangements. The SNI portfolio of networks includes HGTV, Food 
Network, Travel Channel, DIY Network, Cooking Channel and Great American Country within and outside the United States
(“U.S.”), with the exception of Great American Country, which is distributed in the United States, and Fine Living, Asian Food 
Channel (“AFC”) and TVN S.A.’s (“TVN”) portfolio of networks outside the United States. Additionally, outside the United States,
we participate in UKTV, a joint venture with BBC Worldwide Limited (the “BBC”). Our businesses engage audiences and efficiently
serve advertisers by producing and delivering entertaining and highly-useful content that focuses on specifically-defined topics of
interest. 

We intend to expand and enhance our lifestyle brands by: growing our brands through the creation of popular new programming 
and content; reaching additional demographics; extending distribution on various platforms, such as over-the-top and non-linear 
entrants providing streaming and/or on-demand services; and increasing our international footprint. We have a large library of content 
that we own the rights to indefinitely, enabling us to exploit original programming quickly and/or repackage content in a cost effective 
manner.

We are focused on strengthening our linear networks and expanding reach, in both the digital arena and international market. As 
part of our effort to expand in the digital arena, we launched Scripps Lifestyle Studios in the fourth quarter of 2015. 

The growth of our international business, through acquisition and joint ventures, as well as organically, has been, and continues
to be, a strategic priority for the Company. During the fourth quarter of 2016, we launched Cooking Channel in Canada, marking the 
first time we distributed this network outside the United States and Caribbean. Also during the fourth quarter of 2016, we launched 
HGTV in the Middle East and North Africa. In the second quarter of 2016, we launched HGTV as a free-to-air channel in New
Zealand which is a first of its kind offering in the region. During 2015, we acquired TVN, a Polish media company, which operates a
portfolio of 13 free-to-air and pay-TV lifestyle and entertainment networks; launched Travel Channel as a 24/7 free-to-air channel in
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the UK; expanded distribution of Food Network across Latin America and HGTV in Asia Pacific (“APAC”); launched Food Network 
in Australia as part of a commercial arrangement with Special Broadcasting Service (“SBS”); and secured a large volume output deal 
with Nine in Australia to launch Food Network and HGTV-branded programming blocks on newly-launched 9LIFE, Australia’s first 
free-to-air lifestyle network.

We have two reportable segments: U.S. Networks and International Networks.

U.S. Networks includes our six national television networks: HGTV, Food Network, Travel Channel, DIY Network, Cooking
Channel and Great American Country. Additionally, U.S. Networks includes websites associated with the aforementioned television
brands and other internet and mobile businesses serving home, food, travel and other lifestyle-related categories. U.S. Networks also
includes our digital content studio, Scripps Lifestyle Studios. We own 100.0 percent of each of our networks, with the exception of 
Food Network and Cooking Channel, of which we own 68.7 percent. Each of our networks is distributed by cable and satellite
operators, telecommunication suppliers and other distributors, including non-linear service providers. 

International Networks includes the TVN portfolio of networks and other lifestyle-oriented networks available in the United 
Kingdom (“UK”), other European markets, the Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”), APAC and Latin America. We currently broadcast 
42 international unique feeds, reaching approximately 310 million subscribers under the HGTV, DIY, Food Network, AFC, Cooking
Channel, Fine Living, Travel Channel brands and TVN network portfolio.

Our businesses earn revenues from advertising sales, affiliate fees and ancillary sales, including licensing of our content to third 
parties and our brands for consumer products. Programming expenses, employee costs and marketing and advertising expenses are our
primary operating costs. 

Consolidated operating revenues were $3,401.4 million in 2016 compared with $3,018.3 million in 2015, an increase of $383.2
million, or 12.7%. Consolidated advertising revenues were $2,416.4 million in 2016, up 17.2% over 2015 driven by the inclusion of 
TVN’s results for the entire twelve months in 2016 as well as strong pricing in the U.S. market, while consolidated affiliate fee
revenues were $894.4 million in 2016, up 2.2% over 2015.

Consolidated segment profit was $1,401.5 million in 2016 compared with $1,245.7 million in 2015, an increase of $155.8
million, or 12.5%.r

Segment profit excludes interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, divested operating units, investment results and 
certain other items included in net income determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP). The Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the operating performance of businesses and 
make decisions about the allocation of resources to our businesses using a non-GAAP measure we refer to as segment profit. Items
excluded from segment profit generally result from decisions made in prior periods or from decisions made by corporate executives
rather than the managers of the business segments. A reconciliation of segment profit to operating income determined in accordance
with GAAP is provided for in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

Consolidated net income attributable to the Company was $673.6 million, or $5.18 per diluted share, in 2016 compared with
$606.8 million, or $4.66 per diluted share, in 2015.
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Key Fiscal 2016 Executive Compensation Decisions

Important decisions and payouts related to 2016 are summarized below, and discussed in greater detail in the following pages.

Base Salary Each NEO received a base salary increase effective January 1, 2016 ranging from 3.7% to
36.3% based on individual contributions to overall corporate results and salary level relative to
market.

Annual Incentives Our financial goals, segment profit (65% weight) and revenued  (35% weight), were achieved at 
104.13% and 100.87% of target respectively, resulting in a weighted average payout of 114.78% of
target. These achievements represent 12.5% growth in segment profit over 2015 and 12.7% growthd
in revenues over 2015. 

Long-term Incentives For the 2015 PBRSU grants the metric was adjusted cash flow. The Company achieved 106.82%, 
which resulted in a payout of 134.10%. All NEOs received a payout under the 2015 PBRSU
grants.

Employment Arrangements We entered into new or amended employment contracts with certain NEOs, including our CEO. r
Given the need to maintain stable leadership in a time of significant change in the media industry,
the Board recognized the importance of Mr. Lowe’s continued leadership as CEO of the company
and as such entered into a new employment contract with him in 2016.  As determined by the
Board, the compensation package provided to Mr. Lowe better aligns his total compensation
opportunity to competitive market levels within the media industry and recognizes his outstanding
performance in shareholder value creation during his time in the CEO position.  During the term, 
Mr. Lowe is entitled to a base salary of not less than $2,000,000, an annual incentive target bonus
opportunity of notf  less thant  200 percent of his salary and participation in all equity incentive, 
employee pension, and welfare benefit plans provided to other senior executives of the Company. 
For additional details regarding Mr. Lowe’s employment agreement, please see the employment
agreement section.  

f

Business Results’ Impact on Compensation

We establish target compensation at the beginning of the performance period. An executive’s actual pay will be above or below 
the target level based on individual, organizational and stock performance. A substantial portion of each NEO’s compensation is in the 
form of equity and correlated with stock price performance so as the stock price rises or falls, so does the NEO’s actual compensation.

We employ a variety of quantitative criteria to assess the performance of our executives. Our objectives include achieving 
segment profit and revenue targets in order to align executive pay with shareholder interests. The chart below illustrates the
relationship between performance and our CEO’s compensation.
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CEO compensation earned was below target total compensation, primarily driven by achievement results associated with PBRUSs and 
vested stock options currently below grant value.

Compensation Process Overview

Below we highlight certain executive compensation practices that we consider instrumental in driving Company performance 
while mitigating risk, as well as practices that we avoid because we do not believe they would serve the interests of our shareholders.

Our Compensation Core Valuesr

Market Competitive
Benchmark pay based on data from 
CTHRA’s Cable Programmer’s and 

Broadcast Networks Compensationt  Survey
and based on size-adjusted median of

companies within our Proxy Peer Group
with which we compete with in business

and for talent 

Review Peer Group
Annually review peer group for 

appropriateness and adjust when necessary 
to ensure a relevant comparison for 
executive compensation decisions

Focus on Performance
Maintain a pay mix that is heavily 

performance-based

Balanced Performance Metrics 
Use performance metrics in annual 

incentive plan and long-term incentive 
plan that balance growing the Company, 
managing expense and generating cash 

flow.

Program Transparency
Fully disclose the financial performance

drivers in numeric terms used in our 
incentive programs

Performance Reviews & Risk 
Consideration

Reviews performance goals for annual and 
long-term incentive awards to confirm the 

use of diversified and rigorous, yet 
attainable targets, while avoiding 

excessive risk taking
Restrictive Covenants 

NEOs are subject to restrictive covenants
upon separation, including non-compete,

non-solicitation and non-disclosure
obligations

Independent Committee Consultant
Retain an independent compensation 
consultant engaged by, and reporting 

directly to, the Compensation Committee

Review Committee Charter
Review charter annually to maintain 

strong oversight and governance protocols

Clawback Policy
Maintain a clawback policy to permit 

repayment or forfeitures of cash and equity  
based compensation based on restated 

financial results

 Hedging
Do not permit hedging transactions or 
short sales by executives or directors

No Excise Tax Gross-Ups for New 
Employees

Eliminated excise tax gross-up provisions 
to new executives

Substantial Stock Ownership Guidelines
Maintain stock ownership guidelines for 

executives

Double Trigger Vesting 
Require double trigger vesting for cash 

severance payments for termination 
following a change in control

Say-on-Pay
Consider the views of holdersf  of Common 
Voting Shares on NEO compensation of

every 3 years

Role of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the Company’s executive compensation policies, plan 
designs and the compensation of our senior officers, including our NEOs. The Compensation Committee considers various factors in
determining compensation levels for NEOs, including the officer’s responsibilities and performance, the effectiveness of our programs
in supporting the Company’s short and long-term strategic objectives, and overall financial performance. Additionally, the 
Compensation Committee coordinates the full Board’s annual review of the CEO’s performance and considers the Board’s assessment 
in its compensation decisions related to the CEO.

To this end, the Compensation Committee conducts an annual review of executive officer pay levels, reviews market data 
provided by the independent consultant, and approves changes to program designs, including post-termination arrangements, based on
an assessment of competitive market practice and emerging trends. Additionally, the Compensation Committee recommends
succession plans to the Board and evaluates the risks associated with the Company’s executive compensation programs.
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Role of the Compensation Consultant

In 2016 the Compensation Committee engaged Meridian Compensation Partners, LLC (“Meridian”) to provide executive 
compensation consulting services. Meridian’s services to the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Governance 
Committee have included updates on best practices and market trends in executive and director compensation, recommendations 
regarding executive and director compensation, and an independent review of compensation proposals by the Company’s senior 
management. Meridian attended meetings at the Compensation Committee’s request and was available to provide guidance as
questions and issues arose. Meridian provides no other services to the Company other than independent compensation advisory
services. The Compensation Committee determined that Meridian is independent after consideration of the SEC independence factors.

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions 

At the request of the Compensation Committee, the CEO presents individual pay recommendations for each of the NEOs, other 
than himself. In forming his recommendations, he is advised by information provided by human resource management (i.e., Executive
Vice President, Chief Human Resource Officer and Senior Vice President, Compensation and Benefits) and the independent 
compensation consultant with regards to assessments of individual contributions, achievement of performance objectives and other 
qualitative factors. The Compensation Committee considers these recommendations in approving the pay levels of each NEO. The
CEO does not make recommendations concerning his own compensation. 

The CEO and members of human resource management regularly attend Compensation Committee meetings. Human resource
management typically presents recommendations for changes to program designs and individual pay levels for executive officers, 
taking into consideration individual performance of each incumbent, appropriate benchmarking information and issues that may arise
from an accounting, legal or tax perspective.

Compensation Program Overview

The Company’s executive compensation program is designed to meet the following three objectives that align with and support 
the Company’s strategic business goals:

• Attract and retain executives who lead the Company’s efforts to build short-term and long-term value for shareholders

• Reward achievement of annual operating performance goals and sustained increases in shareholder value

• Emphasize variable performance-based components of the compensation program more heavily than fixed components

The key elements of the Company’s executive compensation program are base salary, annual incentives, long-term incentives 
consisting of stock options, time-based RSUs and PBRSUs, and retirement benefits. The compensation program also includes certain 
perquisites, but these perquisites are not a significant element of compensation. Each element of compensation is designed to fulfill 
the objectives discussed above.

Program Form
Fixed or
Variable Objectives

Base Salary Cash Fixed ●    Serves as attraction and retention incentive
●   Rewards individual performance

Annual Incentive Cash Variable ●    Rewards annual operating results
●    Emphasizes variable performance-based compensationd

Long-term Incentive, which includes: ●    Serves as attraction and retention incentive 
• Emphasizes variable performance-based compensation
●    Aligns interests with shareholders

Stock Options Equity Variable ●    Rewards for maintaining and increasing stock price and
enhancing long-term value

RSUs Equity Fixed ●    Rewards for maintaining and increasing stock price and
enhancing long-term value

PBRSUs Equity Variable ●    Rewards based on Companyd performance
●    Rewards for maintaining and increasing stock price and

enhancing long-term value
Retirement Benefits Cash Fixed ●    Serves as attraction and retention incentive
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A significant portion of the compensation program for the NEOs is “variable” or “at risk.” This means that it is contingent upon 
achieving specific results that are essential to the Company’s long term success and growth in shareholder value. As described above,
the variable components of the 2016 compensation program include annual incentives and long-term incentives which are comprised
of stock options and PBRSUs. The Compensation Committee has not established a specific formula for the allocation of “fixed” and 
“variable” compensation components and instead retains the discretion to modify the allocation from year to year.

A majority of Mr. Lowe’s total direct compensation is variable. Compared to his total direct compensation in 2015, a larger 
percentage of Mr. Lowe’s total direct compensation is variable in 2016 due to the equity grants associated with his employment 
contract renewal. The Compensation Committee believes this approach directly aligns the CEO with shareholder interests.

As illustrated for the 2016 annual program elements, approximately 68% of the total direct compensation opportunity (i.e., 
“TDC”, or the sum of base salary, annual incentives, fixed equity, and variable equity at target) for the Company’s NEOs (other than r
the CEO) was weighted — assuming payout at target levels — toward variable and equity components. The TDC opportunity for the
CEO was weighted towards variable and equity components at approximately 84%.

To assist in reviewing the levels of compensation in 2016 Meridian collected and analyzed market data, including base salary,
target short  and long term incentive opportunities for each of the NEOs from the following published and proprietary sources:  m

Primary Data Sources. The Compensation Committee relies on data sources from a third-party administered survey sponsored tt
by Cable and Telecommunications Human Resources Association (“CTHRA”) and from publicly available proxy data from a peer 
group of 10 publicly-traded companies in the media industry, including:
  

AMC Networks Inc. Lions Gate Entertainment Corp. Time Warner Inc. 
CBS Corp. Sirius XM Holdings Inc. Twenty-First Century Fox Inc. 
Discovery Communications, Inc. Starz Viacom, Inc. 
Liberty Global, PLC
The companies in this peer group represent some of the many companies in the media industry with which we compete in
business and for talent. All pay opportunities were compared with the size adjusted median of this proxy peer group using
regression analysis based on revenue to reflect pay of similarly situated executives in comparable positions.  
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Data from the CTHRA Cable Programmers, Broadcast Networks Compensation Survey: Includes data from over 40 national 
cable and broadcast networks that participate in the survey each year. 

Secondary Data Sources. To obtain a broader understanding of market pay levels and compensation and benefit practices, the 
Compensation Committee also reviews survey data from the Towers Watson Executive Compensation Database, for both general 
industry and media cuts.

Market data provides an important reference point by indicating what an executive could expect to earn at a similar peer 
company and what the Company might expect to pay if it should have to recruit from the outside. However, market data is only one of 
the many factors that the Compensation Committee considers to assess the reasonableness of pay opportunities provided to the 
Company’s executive officers. The Compensation Committee also considers other relevant factors such as the incumbent’s 
experience, tenure in position, talent supply and demand,d  cost constraints of the Company andt  internal equity.

Tally Sheets

In determining executive compensation for each NEO, the Compensation Committeer  also reviews tally sheets which provide: 

• History of targeted pay for the last five years;

• Value of outstanding equity awards at varioust  stock price levels;

• Present value of accruedf  benefits under each retirement plan and current level of perquisites provided;

• Cumulative stock exercises and stock vesting over time; and 

• Update on stock ownership levels.

Analysis of Each Compensation Element f

Following is a brief summaryf  of each element of the 2016 compensation program for the NEOs. 

Base Salary. After discussing the individual performance, experience, scope of responsibilities, and Mr. Lowe’s
recommendations for the other NEOs, the Compensation Committee established the base salaries for each NEO. In general, the
increases are intended to align base salary levels with the market and to reflect the individual performance and scope of
responsibilities of each NEO.  Mr. Lowe’s salary increase in 2016 was an outcome of him entering a new employment contract with
the Company in 2016. Ms. Hickok’s salary increase in 2016 wan an outcome due to observations in market changes for Chief 
Financial Officer positions.

NEO
2016 Base Salary

Percentage Increase
Mr. Lowe 36.3%
Ms. Hickok 14.8%
Mr. Jablin 5.7%
Ms. Gibson 7.9%
Mr. Hale 3.7%

g

Please refer to the Salary column of the Summary Compensation Table for the 2016 base salaries of the NEOs.

Annual Incentive. The annual incentive payout for the NEOs is based on the extent to which certain pre-established performance 
goals are achieved during the year. The annual incentive program is consistent with the Company’s pay for performance philosophy
and is also “at risk” because the Company must achieve certain performance goals established by the Compensation Committee for
the NEOs to receive an annual incentive payout.

Target Incentive Opportunities. The NEOs had the opportunity to earn targeted incentive cash payments that were expressed as 
a percentage of each executive’s annual base salary. The target annual incentive opportunities were established by the Compensation 
Committee, according to each executive’s position and level of responsibility and positioning versus market. The following table 
shows the target annual incentive opportunity as of December 31, 2016 (expressed as a percentage of base salary) for each NEO.  
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There was no change in the target annual incentive opportunity for the NEOs from 2015 with the exception of Mr. Lowe, whose target
annual incentive opportunity increase in 2016 was an outcome of himf  entering into a new employment contract with the Company. 

NEO
2016 Target Incentive  as
a Percent of Base Salary

Mr. Lowe 200%
Ms. Hickok 65%
Mr. Jablin 100%
Ms. Gibson 65%
Mr. Hale 65%

y

Performance Goals and Actual Results for 2016. The target annual incentives are earned based on the extent to which certain 
performance goals are achieved. The Compensation Committee established two performance goals for the 2016 annual performance
period: segment profit and revenue, which ared  described in more detail below: 

Segment Profit Segment profit is the measure by which the Company evaluates the operating performance of each business 
segment and the measure of performance most frequently used by investors to determine the value of thef
enterprise. The segment profit goal was based on the consolidated performance of the Company.  Segment 
profit is a supplemental non-GAAP financial measure that is defined in our notes to the financial statements.r   
Segment profit for 2016 was adjusted to exclude (i) the effects of currencyf  fluctuations above or belowr
budgeted levels, (ii) programming amortization as a result of purchase accounting (iii), transaction and 
integration costs related to TVN above or below budgeted levels, (iv) expenses related to the reorganization of
Travel Channel and our national television networksr  above or below budgeted levels and (v) unbudgeted 
severance costs.

Revenue Revenue growth is primarily achieved through growth in advertising sales and distribution fee revenues from
our television networks. Continued growth in revenues allows us to invest and grow our existing brands and 
allows us the flexibility to take advantage of promising opportunities in the global media marketplace. The 
revenue goal was based on the Company’s operating revenue as set forth in our financialr  statements.

The above combination of a growth measure (revenue) and a profitability measure (segment profit) creates a balance between
growing the Company and managing expenses. d

The following table provides the weights of each metric, the range of performance and payout, and the actual achievement level 
for each performance goal along with the payout percentage for 2016. All amounts are shown in millions. 

Weights
(% of Total) Threshold Target Maximum Actual Payout

Segment Profit(1) 65% $ 1,095.9 $ 1,353.0 $ 1,623.6 $ 1,408.2 120.40%
Revenue 35% $ 2,731.3 $ 3,372.0 $ 4,046.4 $ 3,401.4 104.35%
Payout Percent of Target 6% 100% 200% 114.78%

g y

(1) Actual segment profit results include adjustments for one-time items noted in the definition above and, therefore, differ from the
reported segment profit in our Annual Report on Form 10-K forr ther  fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

For more information on the 2016 target annual incentive opportunity for the NEOs, please refer to the “Grants of Plan-Based 
Awards” Table. The “Estimated Possible Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards” column of that table provides the
estimated payouts for the NEOs at threshold, target and maximum performance levels for 2016. Please refer to the “Non-Equity 
Incentive Plan Compensation” column of the Summary Compensation Table for the actual amounts earned by each NEO. 

Long-Term Incentives. The Company’s long-term incentive awards are consistent with the Company’s pay for performance
philosophy and are intended to create a direct correlation between the level of compensation paid to the NEOs and the Company’s 
financial performance and stock price. This approach:

• Rewards performance that delivers creation of sustainable shareholder value;
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• Provides a long-term retention incentive for key employees based on the vesting period; and

• Increases stock ownership of the NEOs so that their interests are more closely aligned with the long-term interest of the 
Company’s shareholders.

Long-Term Incentive Opportunities. Under the Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plan, the NEOs were granted equity awards as
recommended by the CEO and approved by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee approved the 2016 target 
value of the equity awards as a percent of base salary for each NEO based on each NEO’s position and level of responsibility.

Decisions regarding long-term incentive grants were made based on role and competitive market data to reward value creation 
and meet retention objectives. The Compensation Committee also determined that it was important to maintain internal equity among 
the NEOs, especially for positions of similar scope and authority in the Company. Therefore, in addition to the other factors cited, the
targets reflect the Compensation Committee’s strategy to ensure proper internal alignment among the NEOs. There was no change to 
the target value of equity awards for the NEOs from 2015 with the exception of Mr. Lowe whose target value of equity awards
increase in 2016 was an outcome of him entering into a new employment contract with the Company. This table shows the 2016 long-
term incentive opportunities (expressed as a percentage of base salary) for each NEO.

NEO

2016 Long-Term
Incentive as a

Percent of Base Salary
Mr. Lowe 275%
Ms. Hickok 125%
Mr. Jablin 225%
Ms. Gibson 125%
Mr. Hale 125%

y

During 2016 we used three long-term incentive vehicles targeting the mix in the table below. 

Form of Equityf

Percent of Target
Long-Term

Incentive Award
Stock Options 40%
Restricted Share Units (RSUs) 30%
Performance-Based Restricted Share Units (PBRSUs) 30%

y

This combination of these forms of equity balances the need for retention with the focus on share price appreciation, both on an
absolute and a relative basis. 

Off-Cycle Grants. From time to time, in response to promotional opportunities, retention concerns, or renewal of employment 
agreements, the Company may provide select key executives with an off-cycle grant. These awards typically vest over multiple years 
either through passage of time or the requirement of various levels of performance achievement. Mr. Lowe received a PBRSU grant of 
$4,000,000 on January 1, 2016 with performance goals tied to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization 
(“EBITDA”) for both 2017 and 2018, with the portion that will be earned vesting 50% on December 31, 2017 and 50% on December 
31, 2018. In connection with his new employment contract, Mr. Lowe received a PBRSU grant of $10,000,000 on August 30, 2016 
with adjusted net income performance goals, with the portion that will be earned vesting 30% on December 31, 2017, 30% on 
December 31, 2018 and 40% on December 31, 2019. Mr. Lowe received a PBRSU grant of $2,500,000 on August 30, 2016 with
performance goals related to succession planning activities, with the portion that will be earned vesting on January 1, 2019. This 
equity structure was put in place as a retention vehicle in order to provide for Mr. Lowe’s continued leadership at the Company and in 
order to allow sufficient opportunity for succession planning.

Stock Options. Stock options only have a value when the Company’s stock price is greater than the options’ exercise price. This
incentivizes NEOs to increase share price which benefits our shareholders. Therefore, stock options help to align the interests of NEOs
with those of shareholders. In addition, stock options serve as an important retention device as they vest over three years and, if not 
vested, are forfeited if the employee voluntarily terminates before retirement.

Stock option grants have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of grant and have
an eight-year term. These grants provide for accelerated vesting on a pro-rata basis for termination without “cause” or for “good 
reason”.
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Time-Based Restricted Share Units. Each RSU corresponds in value to a single share of Company Class A Common Stock.
Therefore, as share price increases, RSUs become more valuable. This creates an incentive for our NEOs to increase share price which
benefits our shareholders. Time-based RSUs also provide NEOs the opportunity to increase their stock ownership levels. In addition,
RSUs serve as an effective retention incentive as they vest over three years and unvested RSUs are forfeited if the employee
voluntarily terminates before retirement. This serves to align the interests of the NEOs with those of our shareholders. These grants
provide for accelerated vesting on pro-rata basis for termination without “cause” or for “good reason”. d

Performance-Based Restricted Share Units (2016 Grants). PBRSU awards provide NEOs with an opportunity to increase their 
stock ownership levels and at the same time serve as retention incentives. The number of shares ultimately earned is dependent upon
the level of thef  Company’s achievement of performance targets.

For the 2016 PBRSU grant, the two-year performance period began on January 1, 2016 and ends on December 31,r 2017. Shares
are earned if thef  targeted adjusted cash flow is achieved by more than the threshold as illustrated in the table below. 

Performance Payout
≤ 80% = 0%
85% = 30%
90% = 60%
95% = 90%
100% = 100%
105% = 125%
110% = 150%
115% = 175%
≥ 120% = 200%

y

The earned units, if any, vest 50% on each of February 28, 2018 and February 28, 2019. These grants provide for accelerated
vesting in full for termination without “cause” or for “good reason”.

Performance-Based Restricted Share Units (2015 Grants). For the 2015 PBRSU grant, the two-year performance period 
began on January 1, 2015 and ended on December, 31, 2016. The Company’s adjusted cash flow was 106.82% of the target for the
performance period, resulting in performance payout of 134.10%.

Additional Information. For more information on the equity awards granted to NEOs in 2016, please refer to the “Grants of 
Plan-Based Awards” table. For information about the total number of stock options, RSUs and PBRSUs outstanding as of the end of
2016 with respect to each NEO, please refer to ther  “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End” table.

Retirement Plans

The Company provides savings and retirement benefits through the Scripps Networks Interactive Pension Plan and the Scripps 
Networks Interactive 401K Savings Plan. 

The pension plan is closed to new participants and the credited service levels used for benefit calculation purposes are frozen; 
however, consideration of salary growth to calculate benefit levels continues for a ten-year transition period that ends December 31,
2019. Plan participants will continue to accrue service for vesting and earlyd  retirement eligibility.

The 401K Savings Plan includes a Company match of 50% of the employee’s contribution up to 6% of eligible compensation, 
and a Company contribution of up to 8% based on a combination of age and service. This Company contribution, which went into
effect on January 1, 2010, was intended to mirror some of the financial benefits available under the defined benefit plan that was 
frozen.
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To attract and retain key executive talent, the Company has determined that it is important to provide the management team, 
including the NEOs, with retirement benefits that are in addition to those generally provided to its employees. These restorative plans
listed below allow the NEOs to receive the same benefit as other plan participants:

• The Company supplements the pension plan for pension-eligible executives whose salary and contributions exceed the 
IRS limitations through the Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”). Consistent with the 
transitional freeze of the defined benefit plan, the SERP was also transitionally frozen, effective January 1, 2010.

• The NEOs may also defer specified portions of their compensation under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, and 
receive matching contributions, in each case in excess of what they are able to defer under the 401K Savings Plan due to
IRS limitations. 

• Due to legal restrictions for plan design, the transitional freeze of the defined benefit pension plan and accompanying
transitional freeze of the Company’s SERP had a disproportionately negative impact on some employees of the Company,
including some of the NEOs. In order to address this disproportionately negative impact, the Company added a
Supplemental Contribution Plan (“SCP”), effective January 1, 2010 to allow for Company contributions based on a 
combination of age and service above the IRS contribution limits. The changes to the Company’s plans also had a 
disproportionately negative impact on employees as their relative ages and length of service increased. To address this
negative impact, the Company contribution to the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan was increased for a group of 
employees based on age and length of service, including the four NEOs who participate in the pension plan. During 2011, 
the SCP was merged into the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan for ease of administration.

The Company believes that the SERP and the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan are important retention tools, as many of 
the companies with which the Company competes for executive talent provide similar benefits tor  their seniorr  executives.r

Perquisites 

The Company provides executives with benefits comparable to those they would receive at other companies within our industry 
and are necessary for us to remain competitive in the marketplace. Our Compensation Committee considers these arrangements to be 
fair and reasonable in light of the relatively low cost to the Company.

In 2016, the NEOs received a financial planning benefit pursuant to the terms of their employment agreements, plus an
additional payment to cover the taxes associated with the compensation value of this benefit. They also received membership in dining 
and business clubs. In addition, Mr. Lowe receives a monthly travel stipend for his trips to New York.

The NEOs are also eligible for an executive physical. Typically, the majority of the cost associated with this benefit is covered
under the healthcare plans offered to the Company’s employees; however, if certain tests or procedures are not covered, the Company
will pay for the difference.

For more information about the perquisites provided in 2016 to each NEO, please refer to the “All Other Compensation” column
of the Summary Compensation Table.

Other Plans and Agreements

Employment Agreements. The Company maintains employment agreements with each of the NEOs. These employment 
agreements enhance retention incentives for the NEOs and also protect the Company’s interests by imposing confidentiality, non-
competition, non-solicitation and other restrictive covenants on the executives.

The Company entered into new employment agreements with two NEOs in 2016. The Company entered into a new employment 
agreement with Mr. Lowe effective August 30, 2016 and the Company exercised the option to extend Mr. Hale’s employment 
agreement through December 31, 2017. For additional details on the employment agreements for our NEOs, please refer to the 
“Employment Agreements” section contained within this CD&A.

Each NEO would be entitled to severance benefits under his/her employment agreement in the event of an involuntary 
termination of employment without “cause” or a termination by the executive for “good reason,” death or disability. Each NEO, other 
than Jablin would also be entitled to certain severance benefits upon a termination of employment following the expiration of the term. 
The severance benefits for each of the NEOs are determined based upon ad  multiple of basef  pay and annual incentive.
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In exchange for the severance benefits, the NEOs agree not to disclose Company confidential information and agree not to 
compete against the Company or solicit its employees or customers for a period of time after termination. These provisions protect the 
Company’s interests and help to ensure its long-term success. 

Executive Severance Plan. Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the Executive Severance Plan, which was most
recently amended and restated in 2014 (“ESP”), that provides severance benefits to certain executives upon involuntary termination,
death and disability. The ESP also provides benefits for termination for “good reason” for executives with employment agreements.
The severance benefits are generally based upon a multiple of base salary and annual incentive, depending upon the level of 
responsibility of the executive. The ESP was adopted to codify existing practices, to ensure consistency in benefits payable upon 
termination and to provide for protection of the Company through the inclusion of confidentiality, non-compete and non-interference
obligations in exchange for ther  receipt of benefits.  All NEOs are covered under the ESP. r

Change in Control Plan. All NEOs are provided change in control protection under the Company’s Executive Change in
Control Plan. Under this plan, a NEO would be entitled to certain severance benefits if a change in control were to occur and the 
Company terminated the executive’s employment without “cause” or the executive terminated his/her employment with the Company
for “good reason” within a two-year period following the change in control. In addition to the benefits available under the Executive 
Change in Control Plan under these circumstances, Mr. Lowe is entitled to certain additional benefits under his employment 
agreement. The severance levels in the Change in Control Plan were adopted by the Compensation Committee in 2008.

This plan was frozen to new participants beginning in 2012. A new plan, 2012 Executive Change in Control Plan, was added for 
new hires beginning in 2012 that is the same as the 2008 plan with the exception that it does not include a gross-up provision.

The Company believes that the occurrence, or potential occurrence, of a change in control transaction will create uncertainty
regarding the continued employment of NEOs. The change in control protections allow NEOs to focus on the Company’s business and 
objectively evaluate the benefits to shareholders of proposed transactions without being distracted by potential job loss. It also 
enhances retention following a change in control, as the severance benefits are payable only if the executive incurs a qualifying
termination within a certain period following a change in control, rather than merely as a result of the change in control. In addition,
the Change in Control Plan conditions the severance benefits upon certain confidentiality, non-compete and non-solicitation 
obligations which further protect the continuity of the Company’s business following a change in control. 

All equity awards held by employees would immediately vest upon a change in control, under the Long-Term Incentive Plan.
Unlike the cash severance described above, the vesting is not contingent upon a qualifying termination within a certain period 
following a change in control. This single trigger is appropriate because the equity of the Company will change and the Company
believes NEOs, along with all participants, should have the same opportunity to realize value as common shareholders.

 Additional Information. Please refer to the “Description of Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control” section
of this proxy statement for information regarding potential payments and benefits, if any, that each NEO is entitled to receive under 
his/her employment agreement and applicable plans in connection with his/her termination of employment as well as in connection 
with a change in control. 

Other Governance Items 

Equity Grant Practices. The Compensation Committee approves annual equity awards at its February meeting, which are
subsequently issued on March 1st based on the closing price of the Company’s Class A Common Shares on such date (or the last 
trading day prior to such date). This meeting date is set typically two years in advance. The Compensation Committee does not grant 
equity compensation awards in anticipation of the release of material nonpublic information. Similarly, the Company does not time the
release of material nonpublic information based on equity award grant dates.
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Stock Ownership Guidelines. Effective November 2011, the Company adopted stock ownership guidelines for all NEOs in
addition to executive officers to encourage ownership in the Company for the executives who have a direct impact on the decisions
that contribute to the long-term success of the Company.

The guidelines give the executive five years to attain the prescribed ownership levels which are established as a target multiple
of base pay. The target multiples for ther  NEOs are on the table to the right.

Multiple of 2016
NEO Salary Ownership

Mr. Lowe 5.0x 8.8x
Ms. Hickok 2.0x 3.0x
Mr. Jablin 3.0x 5.0x
Ms. Gibson 2.0x 2.7x
Mr. Hale 2.0x 3.2x

y

Shares owned outright as well as RSUs are included in the totals. As of December 31, 2016, all of the NEOs have met the target
stock ownership levels.

Mandatory Retirement Policy. Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted a mandatory retirement policy pursuant to 
which all bona fide executives as defined under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, will be required to retire at the age of 65,
unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee. Each of the NEOs qualifies as a bona fide executive and will be subject 
to the policy. Mr. Lowe’s employment agreement, which was approved by the Board, extended his employment until December 31,
2019, which is approximately three years after he turns 65.

Anti-hedging and Prohibition on Pledging Policy. Our policy on insider trading prohibits directors, officers and certain key
employees from engaging in short sales, purchases of puts and calls and other speculative or hedging transactions with respect to 
Company stock, regardless of whether they do or do not hold material, non-public information. In addition, directors, officers and 
certain key employees are prohibited from holding Company stock in a margin account or pledging Company stock to secure a loan 
unless a prior approval is obtained. 

Income Deduction Limitations. Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code generally sets a limit of $1 million on the
amount of non-performance-based compensation that the Company may deduct for federal income tax purposes in any given year with
respect to the compensation of each of the NEOs other than the Chief Financial Officer. Qualifying performance-based compensation 
will not be subject to the deduction limit if certain requirements are met. The Compensation Committee intends to preserve the tax
deductibility of compensation paid to our executive officers to the extent consistent with our overall program objectives and
philosophy, but recognizes that doing so may not always be feasible. In light of the need to maintain flexibility in administering our
executive compensation program, the Compensation Committee retains discretion to recommend to the Board executive compensation 
that may not be deductible.

Compensation Risk Assessment. Members of management from the Company’s human resources, finance and legal groups 
assessed whether the Company’s compensation policies and practices encourage excessive or inappropriate risk taking by our 
employees, including employees other than our NEOsr  and reported the results to the Compensation Committee.

Specifically, the review included a detailed analysis of the following risk factors related to compensation: pay mix, performance 
goals, performance metrics/target, market comparisons and checks and balances. The review also analyzed whether there was any link
between the Company’s key business risks and its compensation programs.

Based upon the review, and in consultation with Meridian, the Compensation Committee determined that its compensation
policies and practices did not create risks that are “reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect” on the Company. 
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES

Summary Compensation Table

The following table presents information concerning compensation paid to the NEOs in 2014, 2015, and 2016. The narrative 
following the tables describes current employment agreements and employment terms with each of our NEOs.

Summary Compensation Table — 2014 to 2016

Name and 
Principal Position Year

Salary
($)

Bonus
($)(1)

Stock
Awards
($)(2)(3)

Option
Awards

($)(4)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

($)(5)

Change in
Pension Value

and
Nonqualified

Deferred
Compensation

Earnings
($)(6)

All Other
Compensation

($)(7)
Total

($)
Kenneth W. Lowe 2016 1,683,858 19,057,503 1,888,955 3,329,010 2,028,569 796,344 28,784,240

Chairman, 
President & 2015 1,467,000 2,420,604 1,573,534 2,039,548 1,315,473 499,158 9,315,318
Chief Executive
Officer 2014 1,420,000 6,398,643 1,566,013 1,785,174 212,433 455,752 11,838,015

Lori A. Hickok 2016 775,000 581,234 429,306 578,218 514,990 184,711 3,063,459
Executive Vice 
President, 2015 675,000 1,506,226 329,101 469,221 96,339 154,590 3,230,476
Chief Financial 
Officer 2014

Burton F. Jablin 2016 1,110,000 1,498,542 1,106,792 1,274,086 889,495 324,577 6,203,492
Chief Operating 
Officer 2015 1,050,000 1,116,022 725,479 1,122,923 197,847 287,837 4,500,109

2014 900,000 1,105,662 721,848 696,276 522,776 219,613 4,166,175
Cynthia L. Gibson 2016 680,000 510,050 376,690 507,340 110,186 2,184,266

Executive Vice 
President, 2015 630,000 472,552 307,159 437,940 99,799 1,947,449
Chief Legal 
Officer 2014 600,000 460,762 300,762 290,115 88,985 1,740,624

Mark S. Hale 2016 600,000 250,000 450,016 332,371 447,652 413,713 151,203 2,644,955
Executive Vice 
President, 2015 578,500 433,944 282,054 402,140 116,444 142,412 1,955,494
Global 
Operations & 
Chief 
Technology
Officer 2014 560,000 250,000 429,989 280,724 270,774 258,511 118,313 2,168,311

(1) Reflects the retention bonus paid to Mr. Hale under the terms of his employment agreement.d
(2) Reflects the aggregate grant date fair value of the PBRSUs granted at target performance payout and the time-based RSUs

granted to our NEOs. The aggregate grant date fair value was determined in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 
Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation (“FASB ASC Topic 718”). See
Note 18 of the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2016 for an explanation of the assumptions made in valuing these awards. For additional information about the 
equity awards granted in 2016, please refer to the “Grants of Plan-Based Awards” section within this CD&A. For information
on all outstanding equity awards as of December 31, 2016, please refer to the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End
table.

(3) In addition to the amounts reflected in the table, the grant date fair value of the PBRSUs granted in 2016 at the maximum
performance payout would be as follows: Mr. Lowe: $19,057,503; Ms. Hickok: $581,234; Mr. Jablin: $1,498,542; Ms. Gibson: 
$510,050 and Mr. Hale: $450,016.

(4) Reflects the aggregate grant date fair value of the stock options granted to our NEOs. The aggregate grant date fair value was 
determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. See Note 18 of the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 for an explanation of the assumptions made in 
valuing these awards.

(5) Reflects the annual incentive earned by each NEO under the Executive Annual Incentive Plan for the applicable calendar year.
For additional information about the 2016 annual incentive opportunities, please refer to the narrative summary on executive
annual incentive plans in this CD&A.
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(6) Reflects the increase in the present value of the accumulated benefits under the pension plan and the SERP for the applicable 
calendar year. Ms. Gibson is not eligible to participate in the pension plan or SERP. For information on these plans, please refer
to the Pension Benefits table. The NEOs did not accrue any preferential or above-market earnings on non-qualified deferred 
compensation.

(7) Reflects the perquisites and other benefits outlined in the table below. For more information about these benefits, refer to the
narrative summary on executive benefits within this CD&A.
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All Other Compensation Table 

Name

Financial
Planning

($)(1)

Legal
Fees
($)

Club
Dues
($)(2)

Tax
Gross-Up

($)(3)

Matching
Contribution

($)(4)

Company
Contribution

($)(5)

Senior
Executive
Physical

($)(6)

Charitable
Matching

Gift
($)(7)

Other
($)(8)

Total
($)

Mr. Lowe 2016 15,000 25,594 10,840 150,386 496,024 2,500 96,000 796,344
2015 15,000 14,942 10,840 105,197 345,180 8,000 499,158
2014 15,000 1,682 15,236 12,054 96,155 315,625

Ms. Hickok 2016 10,000 3,765 40,493 129,953 500 184,711
2015 10,000 3,765 31,287 109,538

Mr. Jablin 2016 10,000 7,227 71,460 233,390 2,500 324,577
2015 10,000 7,227 62,972 205,139 2,500 287,837
2014 10,000 7,227 47,888 154,498

Ms. Gibson 2016 10,000 3,765 35,568 53,353 7,500 110,186
2015 10,000 3,765 32,977 48,057 5,000 99,799
2014 10,000 7,227 26,703 40,055 5,000 88,985

Mr. Hale 2016 10,000 1,799 3,765 31,407 101,732 2,500 151,203
2015 10,000 1,714 3,765 30,493 91,450 4,990 142,412
2014 10,000 1,713 3,765 24,923 77,912

(1) Represents the amount paid to our NEOs for financial planning services.
(2) Represents the amount paid for dining and business clubs.
(3) Represents reimbursement of taxes imposed on the financial planning benefit.
(4) Represents the amount of all matching contributions earned under the Company’s 401(k) Plan and Deferredd  Compensation Plan.
(5) Represents the amount of all age plus service contributions earned under the Company’s 401(k) Plan and Deferred 

Compensation Plan.
(6) Represents the cost of the senior executive physical, if any, that is in excess of the cost of a physical covered under the

Company’s general health plan.
(7) Represents the amount of matching charitable contributions under the Company’s matching gift program.
(8) Represents the amount of a travel stipend.

Employment Agreements

Each of the NEOs has entered into an employment agreement with the Company. These employment agreements enhance
retention of NEOs and also protect the Company’s interests by imposing confidentiality, non-competition, non-solicitation and other 
restrictive covenants on the executives. The employment agreements establish the minimum base salary and target annual incentive 
opportunity for the term of the agreement. Following is a brief summary of the employment agreements.

Employment Agreement for Mr. Lowe. Mr. Lowe serves as Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to an 
employment agreement that was most recently amended in 2016 and extends the term through December 31, 2019. During the term,
Mr. Lowe is entitled to: (i) a base salary of not less than $2,000,000 and an annual incentive target bonus opportunity of not less than
200 percent of his salary; (ii) participate in all equity incentive, employee pension, and welfare benefit plans on a basis no less 
favorable than the most favorable basis provided other senior executives of the Company; (iii) payment of a lump sum equal to 3.0
times his base salary and 2.0 times his target annual incentive upon termination without “cause” or for “good reason”; and 
(iv) reimbursement for tax and financial planning up to maximum of $15,000 per year, the annual membership fees and other dues
associated with one country club and one luncheon club, and the costs of an annual physical examination. Under the terms of the
Agreement, Mr. Lowe will serve in his current roles until the later of January 1, 2019 or the date that the Board appoints a new Chief 
Executive Officer. Following such date, Mr. Lowe will serve as Executive Chairman of the Board until December 31, 2019, at which
date he will retire from the Company.

Employment Agreement for Ms. Hickok. Ms. Hickok serves as the Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer pursuant to an
employment agreement entered into with the Company, effective January 1, 2015 in connection with her promotion to this position, 
which became effective February 19, 2015 and extends through the end of 2017. During the term, Ms. Hickok is entitled to: (i) an
annual base salary that is not less than $675,000 and a target annual incentive opportunity of not less than 65 percent of her salary;
(ii) participate in all equity incentive, employee pension, welfare benefit plans and fringe benefit programs applicable to similarly
situated executives of the Company; (iii) payment of a lump sum equal to 1.5 times her base salary and target annual incentive upon
termination without “cause” or for “good reason”; and (iv) reimbursement for tax and financial planning up to a maximum of $15,000 
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per year and the costs of an annual physical examination; (v) a promotion grant of RSUs valued at $1 million and vesting equally over 
three years and (vi) a pension/SERP bridge providing for a lump sum payment if involuntarily termed, not for cause prior to being
eligible for Early Retirement.  Lump sum will equal the difference between her SERP benefit if employed until eligible for Early
Retirement and the SERP benefit at the time of an involuntarily term, not for cause.

Employment Agreement for Mr. Jablin. Mr. Jablin serves as the Chief Operating Officer pursuant to an employment agreement 
entered into with the Company in 2015 that extends through the end of 2017. During the term, Mr. Jablin is entitled to: (i) an annual 
base salary that is not less than $1,050,000 and a target annual incentive opportunity that is not less than 100 percent of his salary;
(ii) participate in all equity incentive, employee pension, welfare benefit plans and fringe benefit programs applicable to similarly
situated executives of the Company; (iii) payment of a lump sum equal to 2.5 times his base salary and target annual incentive upon
termination without “cause” or for “good reason”; and (iv) reimbursement for tax and financial planning up to a maximum of $15,000 
per year and the costs of an annual physical examination.

Employment Agreement for Ms. Gibson. Ms. Gibson serves as the Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer pursuant to an
employment agreement entered into with the Company in 2012 that extends through the end of 2016, with automatic renewals up to
two one-year terms. During the term, Ms. Gibson is entitled to: (i) an annual base salary that is not less than $500,000 and a target 
annual incentive opportunity of not less than 50 percent of her base salary; (ii) participate in all equity incentive plans, employee 
retirement, welfare benefit plans available to similarly situated executives of the Company; (iii) payment of a lump sum equal to 1.5 
times base salary and annual incentive upon termination without “cause” or for “good reason”; and (iv) reimbursement for tax and 
financial planning up to a maximum of $10,000 per year, the annual membership fees and other dues associated with one luncheon 
club, and the costs of an annual physical examination. 

Employment Agreement for Mr. Hale. Mr. Hale serves as the Executive Vice President, Global Operations and Chief Technology 
Officer pursuant to an employment agreement entered into with the Company in 2015 that extended through the end of 2015 with
renewals up to two one-year terms. Under this employment agreement, Mr. Hale was entitled to: (i) an annual base salary that is not 
less than $560,000 and target annual incentive opportunity that is not less than 50 percent of his base salary; (ii) participate in all 
equity incentive plans, employee retirement, pension and welfare benefit plans available to similarly situated executives of the 
Company; (iii) payment of a lump sum equal to 1.5 times Mr. Hale’s base salary and target annual incentive upon termination without 
“cause” or for “good reason”; and (iv) reimbursement for tax and financial planning up to a maximum of $10,000 per year and the cost
of an annual physical examination. In addition, he received a bonus payment of $250,000 in 2014 for his execution of the new
employment agreement. A second bonus payment of $250,000 was paid on January 1, 2016. Two additional bonuses of $250,000 are
tied to the optional years and are paid if Mr. Hale does not voluntarily terminate his employment through 2017.  

Please refer to the “Description of Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control” section for information
regarding potential payments and benefits, if any, that each executive is entitled to receive under his/her employment agreement in
connection with his/her termination of employment or change in control, along with a brief description of the applicable non-
competition, non-solicitation, confidentiality and other restrictions applicable to each executive.r
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information for each NEO regarding: (i) estimated payouts of the annual cash incentive 
opportunities granted by the Company in 2016; (ii) time-based and performance-based RSUs granted in 2016; and (iii) stock options
granted in 2016.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards — 2016—

Estimated Possible Payouts
Under Non-Equity Incentive

Plan Awards (1)

Estimated Future Payouts
Under Equity Incentive

Plan Awards (2)

All Other
Stock

Awards:

All Other Option
Awards: Number

of Securities

Exercise
or Base
Price of

Grant Date
Fair Value

of Stock

Name Grant Date
Threshold

($)
Target

($)
Maximum

($)
Threshold

(#)
Target

(#)
Maximum

(#)

Number
of Units

(#)(3)

Underlying
Options

(#)(4)

Option
Awards

($/SH) (5)

and Option
Awards

($)(6)
Mr. Lowe 2016 174,020 2,900,340 5,800,680

1/1/2016 72,451 72,451
3/1/2016 20,874 41,748
3/1/2016 149,561 61.26 1,888,955
3/1/2016 20,874 1,278,741

8/30/2016 197,410 197,410
Ms.
Hickok 2016 30,221 503,685 1,007,370

3/1/2016 4,744 9,488
3/1/2016 33,991 61.26 429,306
3/1/2016 4,744 290,617

Mr. 
Jablin 2016 66,591 1,109,850 2,219,700

3/1/2016 12,231 24,462
3/1/2016 87,632 61.26 1,106,792
3/1/2016 12,231 749,271

Ms.
Gibson 2016 26,508 441,805 883,610

3/1/2016 4,163 8,326
3/1/2016 29,825 61.26 376,690
3/1/2016 4,163 255,025

Mr. Hale 2016 23,396 389,935 779,870
3/1/2016 3,673 7,346
3/1/2016 26,316 61.26 332,371
3/1/2016 3,673 225,008

(1) Reflects the incentive opportunities granted in 2016 under the Executive Annual Incentive Plan. The award had a performance
period that commenced January 1, 2016 and ended December 31, 2016. The “Threshold,” “Target” and “Maximum” columns
reflect the range of potential payouts under the plan when the performance goals were established. The threshold equals 6 
percent of the target award and the maximum equals 200 percent of the target award. The actual 2016 annual incentive payouts
are set forth in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table of this proxy
statement. For information on the applicable performance goals for each award, please refer to the CD&A.

(2) Reflects the PBRSUs granted under the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The March 1, 2016 award has a performance period 
that commenced January 1, 2016 and will end on December 31, 2017 and a payout that ranges from 6 percent to 200 percent. 
The actual RSUs credited to the NEOs after the end of the performance period vest 50 percent on each of March 15, 2018 and 
March 15, 2019. Vesting accelerates in full upon the executive’s death, disability, retirement, termination without cause or for 
good reason or in the event of a change in control. The NEOs have no right to vote the share units until they are vested; but they 
receive dividend equivalents commencing after the end of the performance period as dividends are paid on the underlying shares 
during the time-based vesting period. For information on the applicable performance goals and performance period for the
award, please refer to the CD&A. Mr. Lowe was awarded 72,451 additional PBRSUs on January 1, 2016 which will vest 
partially on December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018; and 197,410 additional PBRSUs on August 30, 2016 which will vest 
partially on December 31, 2017, December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019 with a performance period that commences on 
January 1, 2017 and will end on December 31, 2018 and a payout at 0 percent or 100 percent. 

(3) Reflects the time-based RSUs granted under the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan on March 1, 2016. The units will vest in three 
annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant for so long as the executive remains employed by the
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Company. Vesting accelerates in full upon the executive’s death, disability or retirement, or in the event of a change in control, 
and vesting accelerates on a prorated basis upon a termination without cause or for good reason. The NEOs have no right to vote
the share units until they are vested; but they receive dividend equivalents as dividends are paid on the underlying shares during
the vesting period.

(4) Reflects the number of shares that may be issued to the NEOs on exercise of stock options granted by the Company in 2016. 
These stock options vest in three annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant. Vesting accelerates
in full upon the executive’s death, disability, retirement, or in the event of a change in control, and vesting accelerates on a pro-
rated basis upon a termination without cause or for good reason.

(5) Reflects the exercise price of each stock option reported in the table, which equaled the closing market price of the underlying
option shares on the date of grant.

(6) Reflects the grant date fair value, as determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, of each equity award listed in the 
table. See Note 19 of the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2016 for an explanation of the assumptions used in the valuation of these awards.f
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table sets forth information for each NEO with respect to (i) each option to purchase Company shares that had not 
been exercised and remained outstanding as of December 31, r 2016, (ii) each award of time-based RSUs that had not vested and 
remained outstanding as of December 31, 2016, and (iii) each award of Company PBRSUs that had not vested and remained 
outstanding as of December 31, 2016.

Option Awards Stock Awards

Name Grant Date

Number of 
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options
(#)(1)

Exercisable

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options
(#)(2)

Unexercisable

Option
Exercise

Price
($)(3)

Option
Expiration

Date

Number of
Shares or
Units of

Stock Thatk
Have Not

Vested
(#)(4)

Market
Value of

Shares or
Units of

Stock That
Have Not

Vested
($)(5)

Equity Incentive 
Plan Awards: 

Number of
Unearned

Shares, Units
or Other

Rights That
Have Not

Vested
(#)(6)

Equity Incentive 
Plan Awards: 

Market or
Payout Value of

Unearned
Shares, Units

or Other Rights
That Have Not

Vested
($)(5)

Mr. Lowe
2/18/2010 103,147 0 39.44 2/17/2018
2/17/2011 79,090 0 53.17 2/16/2019
2/16/2012 95,222 0 43.59 2/15/2020
2/14/2013 77,560 0 62.37 2/13/2021
3/1/2014 53,457 26,728 81.24 2/28/2022
3/1/2015 34,327 68,653 72.30 2/28/2023
3/1/2016 0 149,561 61.26 2/28/2014

Total 442,803 244,942 36,840 2,629,271 307,475 21,944,491
Ms. Hickok

2/17/2011 13,482 0 53.17 2/16/2019
2/16/2012 16,448 0 43.59 2/15/2020
2/14/2013 13,417 0 62.37 2/13/2021

3/1/2014 9,240 4,620 81.24 2/28/2022
3/1/2015 7,180 14,358 72.30 2/28/2023
3/1/2016 0 33,991 61.26 2/28/2014

Total 59,767 52,969 12,519 893,481 8,245 588,446
Mr. Jablin

2/16/2012 4,536 0 43.59 2/15/2020
2/14/2013 11,101 0 62.37 2/13/2021
3/1/2014 24,641 12,320 81.24 2/28/2022
3/1/2015 15,827 31,652 72.30 2/28/2023
3/1/2016 0 87,632 61.26 2/28/2014

Total 56,105 131,604 39,173 2,795,777 33,004 2,355,495
Ms. Gibson

2/17/2011 5,534 0 53.17 2/16/2019
2/16/2012 4,732 0 43.59 2/15/2020
2/14/2013 13,691 0 62.37 2/13/2021
3/1/2014 10,267 5,133 81.24 2/28/2022
3/1/2015 6,701 13,401 72.30 2/28/2023
3/1/2016 0 29,825 61.26 2/28/2014

Total 40,925 48,359 7,264 518,432 7,431 530,350
Mr. Hale

2/18/2010 18,346 0 39.44 2/17/2018
2/17/2011 14,021 0 53.17 2/16/2019
2/16/2012 16,794 0 43.59 2/15/2020
2/14/2013 14,376 0 62.37 2/13/2021
3/1/2014 9,583 4,791 81.24 2/28/2022
3/1/2015 6,153 12,306 72.30 2/28/2023
3/1/2016 0 26,316 61.26 2/28/2014

Total 79,273 43,413 6,534 466,332 6,674 476,323
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(1) Reflects the number of shares underlying the outstanding stock options that have vested as of December 31, 2016.f
(2) Reflects the number of shares underlying the outstanding stock options that have not vested as of December 31, 2016. The

regular vesting dates for each unexercisable stock option award are as follows:

Name Grant Date

Total
Number of
Unvested

Stock
Options

Outstanding Vesting Date
Mr. Lowe 3/1/2014 26,728 26,728 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 68,653 34,327 on 3/1/2017 and 34,326 on 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 149,561 49,854 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018; 49,853 on 3/1/2019

Total 244,942
Ms. Hickok 3/1/2014 4,620 4,620 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 14,358 7,179 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 33,991 11,331 on 3/1/2017; 11,330 on 3/1/2018 and 3/1/2019

Total 52,969
Mr. Jablin 3/1/2014 12,320 12,320 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 31,652 15,826 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 87,632 29,211 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018; 29,210 on 3/1/2019

Total 131,604
Ms. Gibson 3/1/2014 5,133 5,133 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 13,401 6,701 on 3/1/2017 and 6,700 on 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 29,825 9,942 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018; 9,941 on 3/1/2019

Total 48,359
Mr. Hale 3/1/2014 4,791 4,791 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 12,306 6,153 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 26,316 8,772 on 3/1/2017, 3/1/2018 and 3/1/2019

Total 43,413

g g

(3) The exercise price equaled the fair market value per share of the underlyingf  option shares on the date of grant.
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(4) Reflects the number of RSUs outstanding as of December 31, r 2016. The vesting dates for each outstanding RSU award are as
follows:

Name Grant Date

Total Number of 
Restricted Share

Units Outstanding Vesting Date
Mr. Lowe 3/1/2014 4,806 4,806 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 11,160 5,580 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 20,874 6,958 on 3/1/2017,  3/1/2018 and 3/1/2019

Total 36,840
Ms. Hickok 3/1/2014 831 831 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 2,334 1,167 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018
3/1/2015 4,610 4,610 on 12/31/2017
3/1/2016 4,744 1,582 on3/1/2017; 1,581 on 3/1/2018 and 3/1/2019

Total 12,519
Mr. Jablin 11/13/2013 19,582 19,582 on 12/31/2017

3/1/2014 2,215 2,215 on 3/1/2017
3/1/2015 5,145 2,573 on 3/1/2017 and 2,572 on 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 12,231 4,077 on 3/1/2017,  3/1/2018 and 3/1/2019

Total 39,173
Ms. Gibson 3/1/2014 923 923 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 2,178 1,089 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 4,163 1,388 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018; 1,387 on 3/1/2019

Total 7,264
Mr. Hale 3/1/2014 861 861 on 3/1/2017

3/1/2015 2,000 1,000 on 3/1/2017 and 3/1/2018
3/1/2016 3,673 1,225 on 3/1/2017; 1,224 on 3/1/2018 and 3/1/2019

Total 6,534

g g

(5) The value was calculated using the closing market price of our Class A Common Shares on December 31, 2016 ($71.37 per 
share).

(6) Reflects the number of PBRSUs which are unearned or unvested and reported assuming target performance as of December 31,
2016. The award has a performance period that commenced January 1, 2016 and will end on December 31, r 2017 and a payout 
that ranges from 6 percent to 200 percent. The actual RSUs credited, if any, to the NEOs after the end of the performance period 
vest 50 percent on each March 15, 2018 and March 15, 2019.

Option Exercises and Stock Vestedk

The following table sets forth information for each NEO with respect to the exercise of stock options during 2016, and the 
vesting of RSU awards during 2016.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested — 2016—

Option Awards Stock Awards

Name

Number of
Shares

Acquired on
Exercise (#)

Value
Realized on

Exercise
($)(1)

Number of
Shares

Acquired on
Vesting (#)

Value
Realized on

Vesting
($)(2)

Mr. Lowe 0 0 45,553 3,015,981
Ms. Hickok 0 0 8,415 557,865
Mr. Jablin 0 0 28,249 1,893,132
Ms. Gibson 0 0 3,856 231,885
Mr. Hale 0 0 3,799 228,180

g

(1) Reflects the product of the number of options exercised and the difference between the exercise price and the option price on the 
day of exercise.

(2) Reflects the product of the number of RSUs that vested and the closing price per share on the vesting date. 
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Pension Benefits

The following table sets forth information regarding the pension benefits for each NEO.

Pension Benefits Table — 2016 

Name Plan Name

Number of
Years

Credited
Service
(#)(1)

Present Value
of

Accumulated 
Benefit
($)(1)

Payments
During Last
Fiscal Year

($)
Mr. Lowe Scripps Pension Plan 29.67 14,510 0

SERP 29.67 16,508,813 0
Ms. Hickok Scripps Pension Plan 18.83 527,958 0

SERP 18.83 1,595,283 0
Mr. Jablin Scripps Pension Plan 15.75 592,126 0

SERP 15.75 3,320,772 0
Ms. Gibson(2) Scripps Pension Plan 0.00 0 0

SERP 0.00 0 0
Mr. Hale Scripps Pension Plan 15.75 615,034 0

SERP 15.75 1,560,402 0

(1) The number of years of credited service was frozen as of December 31, r 2009. The present value of accumulated benefits was 
calculated as of December 31, 2016 using the same assumptions included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2016, except that (i) no pre-retirement decrements were assumed and (ii) a retirement age of 62 (the 
earliest age for unreduced retirement) was assumed. The assumptions included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2016 and these present values of accumulated benefits include the discount rates as of December 31,
2016, which are 3.60 percent for the Pension Plan and 3.13 percent for the SERP.

(2) Ms. Gibson was hired after the pension plan was frozen.

Description of Retirementf  Plans
Pension Plan

The Pension Plan as described below was in effect through December 31,r 2016. This plan is a tax-qualified pension plan
covering substantially all eligible employees. The Pension Plan was transitionally frozen effective December 31, 2009. The material 
terms and conditions of the Pension Plan as they pertained to the NEOs in 2016 included the following:

Benefit Formula.  Subject to applicable Internal Revenue Code limits on benefits, the monthly normal retirement benefit is equal 
to 1 percent of the participant’s average monthly compensation up to an integration level plus 1.25 percent of the participant’s average
monthly compensation in excess of the integration level, multiplied by the participant’s years of service as of December 31, r 2009. The 
integration level is the average of the Social Security taxable wage bases for the thirty-five years prior to the participant’s termination
(or disability, if applicable). Average monthly compensation is the monthly average of the compensation earned during the five 
consecutive years in the eleven years before termination for which the participant’s compensation was the highest.

Compensation.  Subject to the applicable Internal Revenue Code limit ($265,000 for 2016), compensation includes salary,
annual incentives, and amounts deferred pursuant to the SNI 401K SavingsK  Plan and the Company Flex Plan.

Normal Retirement.  A participant is eligible for a normal retirement benefit based on the benefit formula described above if his
employment terminates on or after age 65.

Early Retirement.  A participant is eligible for an early retirement benefit if his/her employment terminates on or after age 55
and he/she has completed 10 years of service. The early retirement benefit is equal to the normal retirement benefit described above,
reduced by 0.4167 percent for each month the benefit commences before age 62. Messrs. Lowe, Jablin, and Hale are the only NEO’s 
currently eligible for an early retirement benefit. The Company does not grant extra years of service to any NEO under the Pension 
Plan.
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Deferred Vested Benefits.  Each participant who ceases to be employed by the Company for any reason other than death, after 
his completion of at least five years of credited service, and who does not qualify to receive any other benefit under the plan, shall be
eligible to receive a deferred vested benefit.

Form of Benefit Payment.  The benefit formula calculates the amount of benefit payable in the form of a monthly life annuity
(which is the normal form of benefit for an unmarried participant). The normal form of payment for a married participant is a joint and 
100 percent survivor annuity, which provides a reduced monthly amount for the participant’s life with the surviving spouse receiving 
the same monthly amount for life. Other optional forms of payment include a lump sum, joint and 50 percent or 100 percent survivor 
annuity (which provides a reduced monthly amount for the participant’s life with the survivor receiving 50 percent or 100 percent of
the monthly amount for life), or a monthly life annuity with a 10-year certain or 5-year certain guarantee (which provides a reduced 
monthly amount for the participant’s life and, if the participant dies within 10 or 5 years of benefit commencement, equal payments to 
a designated beneficiary for the remainder of the 10-year or 5-year certain period, as applicable). All forms of benefit payment are the 
actuarially equivalent of the monthly life annuity form.

SERP

The SERP was intended to attract and retain executive talent by supplementing benefits payable under the Pension Plan. The 
SERP was amended effective January 1, 2010 in connection with the transitional freeze of the Pension Plan. The material terms and
conditions of the SERP as they pertained to the NEOsf  in 2016 included the following:

Eligibility.  An executive generally is eligible to participate in the SERP if he/she qualifies for a Pension Plan benefit that was
limited by application of the Internalf  Revenue Code limits on compensation and benefits.

Benefit Formula.  The SERP benefit is equal to the difference between the Pension Plan benefit calculated using the SERP
definition of compensation and the actual Pension Plan benefit plus a 1.45 percent gross up for the employee Medicare tax. It may also
include a 0.9 percent gross up for the additional Medicare Tax for High-Income Taxpayers if applicable. Compensation includes all 
compensation included under the Pension Plan (without application of the IRS limit described under the Pension Plan).

Benefit Entitlement. A participant becomes entitled to a SERP benefit upon termination. The benefit is paid in a single lump
sum in the 7th month following termination.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

The following table sets forth information regarding the nonqualified deferred compensation for each NEO as of December 31,
2016: 

Name

Executive
Contributions

in Last FY
($)(1)

Registrant
Contributions

in Last FY
($)(2)

Aggregate
Earnings in

Last FY
($)

Aggregate 
Withdrawals/
Distributions

($)

Aggregate
Balance at
Last FYE

($)(3)
Mr. Lowe 284,872 617,411 1,076,097 0 9,075,310
Ms. Hickok 65,086 142,403 51,579 0 1,088,498
Mr. Jablin 142,921 277,654 129,264 0 4,541,805
Ms. Gibson 75,530 69,730 24,010 0 624,895
Mr. Hale 747,280 120,075 164,566 0 2,973,611

(1) Represents the base salary and annual incentive deferred by each NEO during 2016. The deferrals are included in the amounts
reflected in the Salary and Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation columns of the Summary Compensation Table.

(2) Represents the matching and age plus service contributions credited to each NEO during 2016. These contributions are included 
in the All Other Compensation column of the Summaryr  Compensation Table.



(3) The aggregate balance as of December 31, 2016 for each NEO includes the following amounts that were previously earned and
reported as compensation on the 2006 through 2016 Summary Compensation Tables: 

Name

Salary
Deferred

($)

Annual
Incentive
Deferred

($)

Matching
Contributions

($)

Age +
Service

($)

Restricted
Share Units

($)
Mr. Lowe 588,928 637,128 613,029 1,841,556 394,200
Ms. Hickok 81,300 87,281 84,291 263,822
Mr. Jablin 167,480 144,555 130,043 436,770
Ms. Gibson 66,932 121,409 69,889 104,735
Mr. Hale 171,842 578,954 125,077 309,861

Description of Executivef  Deferred Compensation Plan

Each NEO is eligible to defer up to 50 percent of his/her pre-tax base salary and up to 100 percent of his/her pre-tax annual
incentive compensation under the terms of the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. The plan is available to a select group of 
highly compensated employees and is informally funded. Each participant is also entitled to a 50 percent matching credit on base
salary deferrals, up to 3 percent of base salary over the applicable Internal Revenue Code limit ($265,000 for 2016), and any annual
incentive deferrals. Under the Deferred Compensation Plan, “excess” age and service credits are made on behalf of participants whose 
age and service contributions under the 401K Savings Plan are subject to limits imposed by the IRS. Payments from the Executive 
Deferred Compensation Plan are made in cash at certain future dates specified by participants or upon earlier termination of 
employment or death. In general, payments are made in the form of a lump sum or in monthly installments of 5, 10 or 15 years, as
elected by the participants, and are automatically accelerated and paid in a lump sum in the event of a termination of employment 
within two years following a change in control of the Company. The “excess” age and service credits are paid in cash in a single lump
sum. The deferred compensation is credited with earnings, gains and losses in accordance with deemed investment elections made by
participants from among various crediting options established by the Company from time-to-time. Participants are permitted to change
their deemed investment elections daily. For 2016, the investment options tracked returns under publicly available and externally
managed investment funds such as mutual funds.

Description of Potential Payments upon Terminationf  or Change in Control

The Company has entered into certain agreements and maintains certain plans and arrangements that require it to pay or provide
compensation and benefits to its NEOs in the event of certain terminations of employment or a change in control. The estimated 
amount payable or provided to each NEO in each situation is summarized below. These estimates are based on the assumption that the 
various triggering events occurred on the last day of 2016, along with other material assumptions noted below. The actual amounts
that would be paid to a NEO upon termination or a change in control can only be determined at the time the actual triggering event
occurs.
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The estimated amount of compensation and benefits described below does not take into account compensation and benefits that
a NEO has earned prior to the applicable triggering event, such as equity awards that had previously vested in accordance with their 
terms, or vested benefits otherwise payable under the retirement plans and programs (unless those benefits are enhanced or 
accelerated). As a result, it does not provide information on the payout of the 2016 annual incentive, as this award was earned as of 
December 31, 2016, in accordance with its terms, regardless of whether the executive terminated employment or a change in control
occurred on that date. Please refer to the “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End” table for a summary of each NEO’s vested 
equity awards, the “Pension Benefits” table for a summary of each NEO’s vested pension benefit, and the “Nonqualified Deferred 
Compensation” table for a summary of each NEO’s deferred compensation balance. Please see the “Summary Compensation” table 
for the annual incentive earned by the NEO in 2016.

Name and Type of Terminationf

Cash
Severance

($)

Restricted
Share
Units
(1)($)

Performance
Based

Restricted
Share Units

(2)($)

Unexercisable
Options

(3)($)

Health &
Welfare

(4)($)
Retirement

(5)(7)($)

Legal
Expense

($)

Out-
placement

($)

Tax
Gross-

Ups
(8)

Total
($)

Mr. Lowe
Due to Retirement 2,629,271 16,773,663 1,512,062 20,914,995
Due to Death 8,000,000 2,629,271 16,773,663 1,512,062 18,616 28,933,612
Due to Disability 8,000,000 2,629,271 16,773,663 1,512,062 22,495 28,937,490
Due to Change in Control
   (Single Trigger) 2,629,271 5,502,342 1,512,062 9,643,674
Due to Change in Control
   (Double Trigger) 18,000,000 11,271,321 33,997 11,074,545 75,000 50,000 19,823,454 60,328,317
Without Cause or for Good
   Reason (6) 14,000,000 2,629,271 16,773,663 1,512,062 22,771 34,937,767
Ms. Hickok
Due to Retirement -
Due to Death 1,918,125 784,812 588,446 95,720 23,602 1,041,386
Due to Disability 1,918,125 784,812 588,446 95,720 24,589 1,055,722 25,000 4,492,414
Due to Change in Control
   (Single Trigger) 784,812 588,446 95,720 1,468,977
Due to Change in Control
   (Double Trigger) 2,557,500 484,593
Without Cause or for Good
   Reason (6) 1,918,125 784,812 588,446 24,589 1,055,722 25,000 4,396,694
Mr. Jablin
Due to Retirement 1,398,210 1,423,760 885,960 3,707,929
Due to Death 5,550,000 2,795,777 1,423,760 885,960 7,778 10,663,274
Due to Disability 5,550,000 2,795,777 1,423,760 885,960 11,494 25,000 10,691,991
Due to Change in Control
   (Single Trigger) 2,795,777 1,423,760 885,960 5,105,497
Due to Change in Control
   (Double Trigger) 5,582,308 2,373,889
Without Cause or for Good
   Reason (6) 5,550,000 2,795,777 1,423,760 885,960 16,680 25,000 10,697,176
Ms. Gibson
Due to Retirement -
Due to Death 1,683,000 264,608 530,350 83,988 24,187 2,586,134
Due to Disability 1,683,000 264,608 530,350 95,720 25,526 25,000 2,624,204
Due to Change in Control
   (Single Trigger) 264,608 530,350 83,988 878,947
Due to Change in Control
   (Double Trigger) 2,244,000 134,640
Without Cause or for Good
   Reason (6) 1,683,000 264,608 530,350 25,526 25,000 2,528,484
Mr. Hale
Due to Retirement 466,332 476,323 266,055 1,208,710
Due to Death 1,485,000 466,332 476,323 266,055 16,233 2,709,943
Due to Disability 1,485,000 466,332 476,323 83,988 17,463 25,000 2,554,106
Due to Change in Control
   (Single Trigger) 466,332 476,323 266,055 1,208,710
Due to Change in Control
   (Double Trigger) 2,004,280 809,074
Without Cause or for Good
   Reason (6) 1,485,000 466,332 476,323 266,055 17,463 25,000 2,736,173

y
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(1) Represents the product of: (i) the number of RSU awards outstanding as of December 31, 2016 that vest upon retirement,
multiplied by (ii) $71.37 per share (the closing market price of the Class A Common Shares on December 31, r 2016). These will 
vest on a pro-rated basis for Mr. Jablin and Ms. Gibson if terminated without “cause” ord  for “good reason”.

(2) Represents the target number of PBRSU awards granted in 2016. These will vest in full subject to actual performance results for 
the applicable period. For Messrs. Lowe and Jablin, also includes the additional PBRSU awards granted in 2016 and 2013, 
respectively.

(3) Represents for each option, the excess of the fair market value of the underlying shares on December 31,r 2016 over the exercise
price. These will vest on a pro-rated basis for Ms. Hickok and Ms. Gibson because they are not retirement eligible.

(4) Represents premiums for continued medical, dental and life insurance coverage. For termination without “cause” or for “good 
reason”, one year of financial planning is included.

(5) For Ms. Hickok, this represents the additional pay and vesting service in the SERP for the time from the date of termination
through the date she would have attained age 55 with at least 10 years of service.f

(6) For Ms. Gibson and Mr. Hale, the payment for termination as a result of non-renewal of their employment agreement is the
same as for termination without “cause” or for “good reason”. Mr. Lowe receives the full vesting of his outstanding equity
awards, medical benefits, dental benefits, and life insurance for 24 months. Mr. Jablin does not receive any severance benefits at
the end of the term. Mr. Jablin, Ms. Gibson, and Mr. Hale would receive outplacement services for a period ofd 12 months.f

(7) Represents the actuarial present value of continued pension and defined contribution benefits, calculated using the Pension Plan 
and SERP’s provisions for lump sum payments on December 31, 2016. The assumptions used to calculate the actuarial present 
value are included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, except that no pre-
retirement decrements were assumed. For Ms. Hickok, this amount includes the Defined Benefit (Pension and SERP) amounts
for the time from the date of termination throughf  the date she would have attained age 55 with at least 10 years of service.t

(8) Reflects the tax gross-up for the excise tax on parachute payments under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code.  

Voluntary Termination for “Good Reason” or Involuntary Termination without “Cause” 

Employment Agreement for Mr. Lowe. Under Mr. Lowe’s employment agreement, if the Company terminates the agreement 
without “cause” or the executive terminates it for “good reason” (other than within two years following a change in control), he is
entitled to a lump sum payment equal to: (i) 3.0 times his annual salary and 2.0 times his target annual incentive; (ii) the pro-rated 
annual incentive opportunity for the year based on actual performance; (iii) 24 months of the COBRA premium in effect at the time of
termination for continued medical coverage; (iv) full vesting of all equity awards, with the options remaining exercisable for the
remainder of the original term, except that any outstanding PBRSUs granted with a performance period commencing after January 1, 
2014 will only become fully vested at the end of the applicable performance period, and then only to the extent that the Company
achieved the applicable performance goals for that performance period; (v) continued life insurance coverage through the end of term; 
and (vi) one year ofr  financialf  planning benefits.

Other Employment Agreements

Under the employment agreement of Mr. Jablin, if the Company terminates the agreement without “cause” or the executive 
terminates it for “good reason” (other than within two years following a change in control), he is entitled to a lump sum payment equal
to: (i) 2.5 times the executive’s annual salary and target annual incentive; (ii) the pro-rated annual incentive opportunity for the year
based on actual performance; (iii) 18 months of the COBRA premium in effect at the time of termination for continued medical 
coverage; (iv) full vesting of restricted stock awards; (v) one year of financial planning benefits; and (vi) life insurance for 30 months 
following termination.

Under the employment agreements for Ms. Hickok, Ms. Gibson and Mr. Hale, if the Company terminates the agreement without
“cause” or the executive terminates it for “good reason” (other than within two years following a change in control), each of them is
entitled to a lump sum payment equal to (i) 1.5 times the executive’s annual salary and target annual incentive; (ii) the pro-rated 
annual incentive opportunity for the year based on actual performance; (iii) 18 months of the COBRA premium in effect at the time of
termination for continued medical coverage; (iv) continued life insurance coverage for 1.5 years following the date of termination; (v)
one year of financial planning benefits; and (vi) for Ms. Hickok, the value of the additional accruals under the pension plan and SERP 
for the period from the date of termination through the date the executive would have reached age 55 with at least 10 years of service
and additional non-elective contributions to the 401K Savings Plan and Deferred Compensation Plan for the same period

For purposes of each of these employment agreements, the term “cause” generally includes embezzlement, fraud or a felony; 
unauthorized disclosure of confidential information; a material breach of the agreement; gross misconduct or gross neglect of duties;
failure to cooperate with an internal or regulatory investigation; or a violation of the Company’s written conduct policies or ethics
code. The term “good reason” generally includes a material reduction in duties or compensation; relocation outside principal place of
employment; or a material breach of the employment agreement by the Company.
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In exchange for the benefits described above, Mr. Lowe agreed not to (i) disclose the Company’s confidential information;
(ii) compete against the Company for 6 months after termination (12 months if terminated for “cause”); (iii) solicit the Company’s 
employees or customers for 12 months after termination; or (iv) disparage the Company for 12 months after termination. With respect 
to Ms. Hickok, Mr. Jablin, Ms. Gibson and Mr. Hale, they agree not to (i) disclose the Company’s confidential information;
(ii) compete against the Company for 12 months after termination (iii) solicit the Company’s employees or customers for 12 months 
after termination; or (iv) disparage the Company for 12 months after termination.

Death or Disability

Employment Agreement for Mr. Lowe. Under Mr. Lowe’s employment agreement, if he dies or suffers a “permanent disability,” 
the executive, his estate and/or his family become entitled to the following benefits:

• A lump sum payment equal to 2.0 times annual salary (subject to reduction for any proceeds received under any life 
insurance policy or the Company’s disability plans).

• Annual payments equal to 60 percent of his base salary, commencing within 30 days after the date of his permanent 
disability and ending at age 65.

• Continued medical and dental benefits for two years (29 months in the case of permanent disability).f

• A lump sum payment equal to a pro-rated target annual incentive from January 1 of the year of death or permanent 
disability through the first anniversary of that event.

The term “permanent disability” has the meaning as defined under the Company’s disability plan.

Other Employment Agreements. Under the employment agreements for each of Ms. Hickok, Mr. Jablin, Ms. Gibson and Mr.
Hale, if the executive dies or becomes disabled (as defined under and covered by the Company disability plan), the executive (or their 
estate) would receive the same benefits as if the Company had terminated the agreement without “cause” or if executive terminated for
“good reason”.

Long-Term Incentive Plan. If a NEO dies or becomes disabled, any equity awards issued under the Company’s 2008 Long-Term
Incentive Plan and 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan will become fully vested, and in the case of stock options, be exercisable until 
their expiration date.

Change in Control

Upon a change in control, all outstanding equity awards held by the NEOs will vest, with the options remaining exercisable for
the remainder of the original terms. A change in control generally means (i) the acquisition of a majority of the Company’s common
voting shares by someone other than a party to the Scripps Family Agreement; (ii) the disposition of assets accounting for 90 percent 
or more of the Company’s revenues, unless the parties to the Scripps Family Agreement have a direct or indirect controlling interest in 
the acquiring entity, or (iii) a change in the membership of the Company’s Board, such that the current incumbents and their approved 
successors no longer constitute a majority.

Qualifying Termination Following a Change in Controlg

Senior Executive Change in Control Plan

Each NEO participates in the Senior Executive Change in Control Plan. Under this plan, if the executive’s employment is
terminated by the Company without “cause,” or if the executive resigns for “good reason,” within two years after a “change in
control,” then the Company or its successor will ber  obligated to pay or provide the following benefits:r

• A lump sum payment equal to 3.0 times for Mr. Lowe, 2.5 times for Mr. Jablin, 2.0 times for Ms. Hickok, Ms. Gibson and 
Mr. Hale of the executive’s annual base salary and annual incentive. For this purpose, annual incentive generally means
the greater of (i) target in the year of termination or (ii) the highest annual incentive earned inf  the prior three years.r

• Continued medical, dental, disability, life and accidental death insurance coverage for 36 months for Mr. Lowe, 
30 months for Mr. Jablin, and 24 months for Ms. Hickok, Ms. Gibson and Mr. Hale.
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• A lump sum payment equal to the actuarial value of the additional benefits under the Company’s qualified and 
supplemental defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans the executive would have received if his/her age and
years of service at the time of termination were increased by 3.0 years for Mr. Lowe, 2.5 years for Mr. Jablin, and
2.0 years for Ms. Hickok, Ms. Gibson and Mr. Hale (supplemental defined contribution plan only).

• A tax gross-up for anyr  excise taxes imposed on excess parachute payments.

Under the change in control plan, the term “cause” generally includes a commission of a felony or an act that impairs the 
Company’s reputation; willful failure to perform duties; or breach of any material term, provision or condition of employment. The
term “good reason” generally includes a reduction in compensation or duties; relocation outside of principal place of employment; or a 
material breach of the employment terms by the Company.

In addition to the benefits under the Executive Change in Control Plan, Mr. Lowe’s employment agreement provides that he is 
entitled to receive reasonable outplacement services for a period of 18 months as well as reimbursement for reasonable legal expenses
(up to $75,000) if hef  is required to enforce the agreement in the event of a qualifying termination following af  change in control.

In exchange for these benefits, the executives agree not to compete against the Company or its successors, or solicit their 
employees, customers, vendors or advertisers for a period of oner  year after termination.

Executive Annual Incentive Plan

Under the Executive Annual Incentive Plan, in the event that a participant’s employment terminates within one year of a change
in control, the Company or its successor would be required to pay a lump sum amount to the participant equal to the target annual 
incentive opportunity for the performance period in which the termination occurs. 

Retirement 

Messrs. Lowe, Jablin and Hale were eligible for retirement as of December 31, r 2016. Under certain of their equity award 
agreements, if they voluntarily terminate employment with the Company, all outstanding equity awards granted pursuant to their 
employment agreement will vest with the options remaining exercisable for the remainder of the original terms. Their PBRSUs will be 
earned subject to actual performance results for the applicable period.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes information, as of December 31, 2016, relating to equity compensation plans of the Company
pursuant to which grants of options, restricted stock units or other rights to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock may be
granted from time to time.

Plan Category

Number of securities
to be issued upon

exercise of
outstanding options
warrants and rights

(a)(2)

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding
options, warrants

and rights
(b)(3)

Number of securitiesf
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation

plans (excluding
securities reflected in

column (a)
(c)(4)

Equity compensation plans approved by
   security holders(1) 3,507,241 $ 42.93 6,893,921
Equity compensation plans not approved by
   security holders 0 0
Total 3,507,241 $ 42.93 6,893,921

g y

(1) Includes the following plans: 2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 2008 Deferred Compensation and Stock Plan for Directors, 
2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan and 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan, which encompass the issuance of stock options, restricted 
shares, PBRSUs, RSUs and employee stock purchase plan. The 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan replaced the 2008 Long-Term 
Incentive Plan as per the Form S-8 filed November 30, 2015, and no further awards will be made under the 2008 Long-Term 
Incentive Plan. 

(2) Includes an aggregate of 770,274 RSUs and PBRSUs.
(3) Weighted average exercise price of outstanding options; excludes RSUs and PBRSUs.f
(4) Includes 177,985 shares reserved for future issuance of shares related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and 34,550 shares

reserved for the 2008 Deferred Compensation and Stock Plan for Directors.d
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth information regarding the compensation earned in 2016 by our non-employee directors for 
services provided to the Company: 

Director Compensation Table 

Name

Fees Earned or Paid
in Cash

($)

Option
Awards

($)(3)

Stock
Awards

($)(3)

Change in 
Nonqualified 

Deferred
Compensation

Earnings
($)(4)

All Other
Compensation

($)(5)
Total

($)
Gina L. Bianchini 86,000 76,784 65,174 227,958
Michael R. Costa 97,500 76,784 65,174 48 239,506
David A. Galloway(1)(2) 80,000 76,784 65,174 221,958
Donald E. Meihaus 95,500 76,784 65,174 237,458
Jarl Mohn 100,000 76,784 65,174 241,958
Richelle P. Parham 87,500 76,784 65,174 229,458
NNicholas B. Paumgarten(1) 78,000 76,784 65,174 388 220,346
Mary McCabe Peirce 78,000 76,784 65,174 219,958
Jeffrey Sagansky 105,500 76,784 65,174 247,458
Wesley W. Scripps 78,000 76,784 65,174 219,958
Ronald W. Tysoe 117,500 76,784 65,174 5,000 264,458

(1) Messrs. Costa, Galloway and Paumgarten deferred their 2016 fees into the Company’s Deferred Compensation and Stock Plan 
for Directors.

(2) Mr. Galloway is not standing for reelection to the Board in 2017.r
(3) Reflects the aggregate grant date fair value of the stock options and RSUs granted our non-employee directors in 2016. The 

aggregate grant date fair value was determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. See Note of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 for an
explanation of the assumptions made in valuing these awards. The following table reflects the number of Class A Common 
Shares subject to stock award and stock options held by the Company’s non-employee directors as of Decemberf  31, 2016.r

Name

Aggregate Number of
Company Shares
Underlying Stock

Awards
(#)

Aggregate Number of
Company Shares
Underlying Stock
Options Award

(#)
Gina L. Bianchini 1,159 24,051
Michael R. Costa 1,159 28,345
David A. Galloway 1,159 48,147
Donald E. Meihaus 1,159 10,742
Jarl Mohn 1,159 48,147
Richelle P. Parham 1,159 24,051
NNicholas B. Paumgarten 1,159 54,996
Mary McCabe Peirce 1,159 48,147
Jeffrey Sagansky 1,159 24,051
Wesley W. Scripps 1,159 15,118
Ronald W. Tysoe 1,159 33,576

(4) Reflects the above-market earnings on non-qualified deferred compensation.
(5) Matching charitable contributions through Company’s matching gift program.
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Description of Directorf  Compensation Program 

The Company’s director compensation program is designed to enhance its ability to attract and retain highly qualified directors
and to align their interests with the long-term interests of its shareholders. The program includes a cash component, which is designed 
to compensate non-employee directors for their service on the Board and an equity component, which is designed to align the interests
of non-employee directors and shareholders. The Company also provides certain other benefits to non-employee directors, which are
described below. Directors who are employees of the Company receive no additional compensation for their service on the Boards.

Cash Compensation

Each non-employee director is entitled to receive an annual cash retainer of $70,000. Committee chairs also receive an annual 
retainer as described in the table below. The retainers are paid in equal quarterly installments. Each non-employee director is also
entitled to receive a fee for each committee meeting attended, as follows:

Meeting Fees
Executive Committee per meeting fee $ 2,000
Audit Committee per meeting fee $ 2,500
Compensation Committee per meeting fee $ 2,500
NNominating and Governance Committee per meeting fee $ 2,000
Pricing Committee per meeting fee $ 2,500
Digital Advisory Committee per meeting fee $ 2,500
Executive Committee annual chair fee $ 3,000
Audit Committee annual chair fee $ 20,000
Compensation Committee annual chair fee $ 20,000
NNominating & Governance Committee annual chair fee $ 10,000

g

Equity Compensation 

Each non-employee director is entitled to receive annual grants of a stock option grant with a grant date value of $75,000 and a
RSU with a grant value of $75,000. The stock options are exercisable one year from the date of grant, but may be forfeited upon
removal from the Board for “cause”. The RSU awards are payable on the first anniversary of the date of grant, but may be forfeited 
upon removal from the Board for “cause”. d

Other Benefits

In addition to the above compensation, the Company’s matching gift program, matches, on a dollar-for-dollar basis up to $5,000
annually, charitable contributions made by non-employee directors to qualifying organizations. Additional matching contributions are
made for disaster relief contributions. This program is also available to all ofr  the Company’sf  employees.

Deferred Compensation and Stock Plan for Directors

A non-employee director may elect to defer payment of a designated percentage of the cash compensation received as a director 
under the Company’s Deferred Compensation and Stock Plan for Directors. The director may allocate the deferrals between a
phantom stock account that credits earnings including dividends, based on Class A Common Shares, or to a fixed income account that 
credits interest based on the twelve month average of the 10-year treasury rate (as of November of each year), plus 1 percent. The 
deferred amounts (as adjusted for earnings, interest and losses) are paid to the director at the time he or she ceases to serve as a
director or upon a date predetermined by the director, either in a lump sum or annual installments over a specified number of years 
(not to exceed 15) as elected by the director. Payments generally are made in the form of cash, except that the director may elect to 
receive all or a portion of the amounts credited to his or her phantom stock account in the form of Class A Common Shares. 

Director Stock Ownership Guidelinesk

Effective August 2011, the Board adopted director stock ownership guidelines that require each non-employee director to hold a
specified amount of our Class A Common Shares, based on a multiple of three times the director’s then-current annual retainer for
board service. Each director is expected to satisfy the stock ownership guidelines within three years from the date the director is 
appointed as a director of the Company. The Board determined that any shares of our Class A Common Shares beneficially owned by 
the director, as well as awards of RSUs and deferred phantom stock, would be counted for purposes of satisfying the stock ownership 
guidelines. Once a director meets the target, the director is expected to maintain his or her stock ownership pursuant to the guidelines
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for as long as he or she remains a member of the Board. All non-employee directors who have served as directors of the Company for 
three years or more have reached and maintained the stock ownership target. 
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REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis contained in this Proxy
Statement with management. Based on the Compensation Committee’s review of and the discussions with management with respect
to the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation 
Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement and in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2016, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Respectfully submitted,

Jarl Mohn, Chair
Gina L. Bianchini
Michael R. Costa
David A. Galloway
Ronald W. Tysoe

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATIONR

No member of the Compensation Committee is a current or former employee of the Company. None of our executive officers 
served as a member of the compensation committee or a director of another company where such company’s executive officers served 
on our Board or Compensation Committee. d
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Related Party Transactions 

Under its charter, the Audit Committee generally is responsible for reviewing any proposed related party transactions. The Audit 
Committee has approved a “Statement of Policy with Respect to Related Party Transactions” which recognizes that related party 
transactions can present a heightened risk of conflicts of interest and/or improper valuation (or the perception thereof). This policy 
defines a “related party,” requires that executive officers and directors (or nominees for director) report any related party transactions
(or potential related party transactions) to the Company’s chief legal officer, who will then report each transaction that the chief legal 
officer determines is a related party transaction (or potential related party transaction) to the Audit Committee for its approval or
ratification, and defines disclosure procedures.
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PROPOSAL 2

Advisory Vote on Executive Compensationy p

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act requires that we provide the holders of Common Voting f
Shares with the opportunity to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation of our NEOs asf  disclosed in this proxy
statement. This proposal, commonly referred to as a “say-on-pay” proposal, gives the holders of Common Voting Shares thef
opportunity to express their views on the compensation of our NEOs. 

In connection with this proposal, the Board of Directors encourages the holders of thef  Common Voting Shares to review in 
detail the description of the compensation program for our NEOs that is set forth in the Compensation Discussion & Analysis
(“CD&A”) section of this proxy statement, as well as the information contained in the compensation tables and narratived  discussion in 
this proxy statement. 

As described in more detail in the CD&A section of this proxy statement, the Compensation Committee relied upon its 
independent consulting firm, Meridian Compensation Partners, LLC to assist in evaluating and determining levels of compensation in f
2016 through analysis of comprehensive market data, including base salary, target short-term incentives and long-term incentive 
opportunities for each of the NEOs from the proxy data from a peer group of 10 media companies.f

We are asking the holders of Common Voting Shares to indicate their support for the compensation of our NEOs as disclosed in r
this proxy statement by voting “FOR” the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that holders of the Common Voting Shares of the Company approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, the
compensation of the NEOs of the Company, as disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K, including thef  Compensation
Discussion and Analysis, compensation tables and narratived  discussion in the Company’s 2017 proxy statement. 

The affirmative vote of a majority of the Common Voting Shares present and entitled to vote at the annual meeting is required to
approve the advisory vote on executive compensation.

Because your vote is advisory, itr  will not be binding on the Board of Directors, thef  Compensation Committee or the Company.
The Compensation Committee, however, will review the voting results and will take them into consideration when making future 
decisions regarding the compensation of our NEOs.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote “FOR” the approval of the compensation off  the Company’s f
NEOs as disclosed in this proxy statement.
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PROPOSAL 3

Advisory Vote on the Frequency of Shareholder Vote on Executive Compensationry q y p

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act also requires that we provide the holders of Common Voting f
Shares with the opportunity every 6 years to vote, on a nonbinding, advisory basis, for their preference as to how frequently we should 
seek future advisory say-on-pay votes on the compensation of our NEOs. In particular, we are asking the holders of Common Voting f
Shares to indicate, on a nonbinding, advisory basis, whether they would prefer an advisory say-on-pay vote on the compensation of
our NEOs to occur everyr  one, two or three years. Holders of Common Voting Shares also may, if they wish, abstain from casting a
vote on this proposal.

In 2011, our Board of Directors r determined and continuesd  to believe that an advisory say-on-pay vote on the compensation of
our NEOs that occurs on a triennial basis is the most appropriate alternative for the Company. Accordingly, our Board of Directorsf
unanimously recommends that the advisory vote on the compensation of our NEOs occur every three years. 

You may cast your vote by choosing the option of one year, two years, three years or abstain from voting in response to the
following resolution:

RESOLVED, that the holders of the Company’s Common Voting Shares determine, on an advisory (non-binding) basis,
whether the preferred frequency for holding an advisory (non-binding) vote on the compensation of the Company’s NEOs, as
disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-Kf of theK  Securities Act of 1933, as amended, including the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis, the compensation tables and the narrative discussion in the Company’s 2017 proxy statement, should be every year,
every two years or every three years.

The option of one year, two years or three years that receives the highest number of votes cast by the holders of Common f
Voting Shares will be considered to be their preferred frequency for the advisory vote on the compensation of our NEOs.f  Because the
vote is advisory, however, it will not be binding on the Board of Directors, the Compensation Committee or the Company. The Board 
of Directors may decide, in its sole discretion, that it is in the best interests of thef  Company and its shareholders to hold an advisory 
say-on-pay vote on the compensation of our NEOs more or less frequently than the option receiving the most votes cast by the holders
of Common Voting Shares.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote “FOR” the option of once every three years as the preferredf
frequency for holding an advisory vote on the compensation of the Company’s NEOs.f
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PROPOSAL 4

Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accountantsp g

The Audit Committee is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of the independent 
external audit firm retained to audit the Company’s financial statements. The Audit Committee has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP
(“Deloitte”) as independent registered public accountants for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31,r 2017.  Shareholder 
ratification of the selection of Deloitte as our independent registered public accounting firm is not required by law or otherwise.  
However, the Board of Directors is submitting the selection of Deloitte to the holders of Common Voting Shares for ratification as a
matter of good corporate governance. If the holders of Common Voting Shares do not ratify the selection of Deloitte, the Audit 
Committee will reconsider the matter. A representative of Deloitte is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders,
will have an opportunity to make a statement if he or she desires, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

An affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the Common Voting Shares issued and outstanding and entitled to vote at the 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is necessary to ratify the appointment of Deloitte as our independent 
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2017. Each proxy for Common Voting Shares executed and 
returned by a holder of such shares will be voted “for” the ratification of Deloitte as the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm for fiscal 2017, unless otherwise indicated on such proxy. Abstentions will be equivalent to a vote against this 
proposal.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote “FOR” ratification of the appointment of Deloitte as our
independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2017.

Independence of the External Auditors.    The Audit Committee has established a pre-approval policy and procedures for audit, 
audit-related and tax services that can be performed by the independent auditors without specific authorization from the Audit 
Committee subject to certain restrictions. The policy sets out the specific services pre-approved by the Audit Committee and the
applicable limitations, while ensuring the independence of the independent auditors to audit the Company’s financial statements is not 
impaired.

Service Fees Paid to the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.    The following table sets forth fees for all 
professional services rendered by Deloitte to the Company for ther  years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

2016 2015
Audit fees(1) $ 2,400,000 $ 2,259,500
Audit-related fees(2) 143,000 809,100
Tax fees(3) 155,000 184,000
Total fees $ 2,698,000 $ 3,252,600

(1) Audit fees include the audit of the parent company and certain subsidiary companies, quarterly reviews and accounting 
consultations.

(2) Audit-related fees include fees for audits of employee benefit plans, due diligence assistance, audits in connection with
dispositions, and other attestations by Deloitte, including those that are required by statute or regulation. The Company did not 
retain Deloitte to audit the employee benefit plans in 2016.

(3) Tax fees include fees for tax compliance andr  consultation.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the Company’s management and Deloitte, the Company’s independent 
registered public accounting firm, the audited financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. The 
Audit Committee has also discussed with Deloitte all matters required by generally accepted auditing standards to be discussed. The 
Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from Deloitte required by the applicable regulations of the Public 
Accounting Oversight Board regarding Deloitte’s communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence, has discussed 
with Deloitte the independent public accountant’s independence, and has concluded that Deloitte is independent.

Based on the review and discussions noted above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the audited financial 
statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, for filing with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.d

Respectfully submitted, 

Ronald W. Tysoe, Chair
Michael R. Costa 
Richelle P. Parham
Jeffrey Sagansky
Donald E. Meihaus
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SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP COMPLIANCE 

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company’s directors and executive officers, and beneficial 
owners of more than 10 percent of the Company’s Class A Common Shares (“10 percent shareholders”), to file with the SEC initial 
reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of Class A Common Shares and other equity securities of the Company.
Executive officers, directors and 10 percent shareholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish the Company with copies of all 
forms they file pursuant to Section 16(a).

The following individuals filed late Form 4s, in each case by one business day, during the year ended December 31, 2016: 
Richelle P. Parham (director) (one report relating to a sale of Class A Common Shares) and Burton F. Jablin (executive officer) (one
report relating to a receipt of Class A Common Shares). In addition, the Form 4 filed by each non-employee director reporting the
grant of options on May 11, 2016 misstated the number of securities acquired; the correct number was later reported on Form 5.

To the Company’s knowledge, based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to the Company and written 
representations that no other reports were required, during the year ended December 31, r 2016, other than as set forth above, all 
Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to its executive officers, directors and 10 percent shareholders were complied with.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2018 ANNUAL MEETING 

Any shareholder proposals intended to be presented at the Company’s 2018 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must be received 
by the Company at 9721 Sherrill Blvd., Knoxville, TN 37932, on or before November 29, 2017, for inclusion in the Company’s proxy
statement and form of proxy relating to the 2018 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Shareholder proposals may be presented only by 
holders of Common Voting Shares, the only class of shares entitledf  to vote on such proposals. 

If a holder of Common Voting Shares intends to raise a proposal at the Company’s 2018 annual meeting that he or she does not 
seek to have included in the Company’s proxy statement, the shareholder must notify the Company of the proposal on or before
February 12, 2018. If the shareholder fails to notify the Company, the Company’s proxies will be permitted to use their discretionary 
voting authority with respect to such proposal when and if it is raised at such annual meeting, whether or not there is any discussion of
such proposal in the 2018 proxy statement.
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OTHER MATTERS

The solicitation of proxies is made by and on behalf of the Board. The cost of the solicitation will be borne by the Company.
The Company may also reimburse banks, brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses 
incurred by them in sending proxy materials to the beneficial owners of the Company’s Classf  A Common Shares. 

If any other matters shall properly come before the meeting, the persons named in the proxy, or their substitutes, will vote
thereon in accordance with their judgment. The Board does not know of any other matters which will be presented for action at the 
meeting. 
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As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the terms “SNI,” “Scripps,” “the Company,” “we,” “our,” “us” or
similar terms may, depending on the context, refer to Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc., to one or more of its
consolidated subsidiary companies or to all of them taken as a whole.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our Company website is www.scrippsnetworksinteractive.com. Copies of all of our filings with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), including the Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to such reports filed with or furnished to 
the SEC under Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of
charge on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.
The public may read and copy any materials the Company files with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room 
at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. Our website also includes copies of the charters for our Compensation,
Nominating & Governance and Audit Committees, our Corporate Governance Principles, our Insider Trading 
Policy, our Code of Ethics, our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and 
Senior Financial Officers and our Policy Against Bribery and Corruption.  d

We use our website as a means of complying with our disclosure obligations under SEC Regulation Fair Disclosure 
(“FD”). The information contained on, or accessible through, our website shall not constitute incorporation by 
reference of the information contained on the website and shall not be deemed to be part of this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain forward-looking statements that are based on our current 
expectations. Forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks, trends and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from the expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements. Such risks, trends and 
uncertainties, which in most instances are beyond our control, include without limitation, changes in advertising
demand and other economic conditions; changing consumers’ tastes and viewing habits; program costs; labor 
relations; technological developments; risks related to international operations; competitive pressures; industry 
consolidation; interest rates; regulatory rulings; reliance on third-party vendors for various products and services;
and other risks, trends and uncertainties disclosed under “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A and elsewhere in this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “intend” and similar 
expressions identify forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements, which are as of the date of this 
filing, should be evaluated with the understanding of their inherent uncertainty. We undertake no obligation to
publicly update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date as of which the 
statement is made.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

SNI was incorporated under the laws of the State of Ohio on October 27, 2007, in connection with the July 1, 2008 
spin-off from The E.W. Scripps Company.

We araa e a global media compm ana ynn witht respected high-profiff le brana ds ana d ara e a leading developer of lifeff stytt le-oriented
content, providing primaraa ily home, foff od, trtt avel ana d otht er lifeff stytt le-related programming. Ouruu content is distrtt ibuted via
mum ltiple metht ods, including television, tht e internrr et, digital platfoff rmrr s ana d licensing ara rrr ana gements. The SNI portrr foff lio of
netwtt orkrr s includes HGTV, Food Netwtt orkrr , Travel Chana nel, DIY Netwtt orkrr , Cooking Chana nel anaa d Great Americanaa
Counu trtt yrr witht in ana d outside tht e United States (“U.S.”), witht tht e exception of Great Americana Counuu trtt yrr , which is only
distrtt ibuted in tht e United States, ana d Fine Living, Asiana Food Chanaa nel (“AFC”) ana d TVNVV S.A.’s (“TVNVV ”) portrr foff lio of
netwtt orkrr s outside tht e United States. Additionally, outside tht e United States, we para trr icipate in UKTV, a joint ventutt ruu e
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witht BBC Worldwdd ide Limited (tht e “BBC”). Ouru businesses engage auaa diences ana d effff iff ciently servrr e advdd ertrr isers by
produdd cing ana d delivering entertrr aining anaa d highly-usefuff l content tht at foff cuses on specififf cally-defiff ned topics of interest.

We intend to expand and enhance our lifestyle brands by: growing our brands through the creation of popular new 
programming and content; reaching additional demographics; extending distribution on various platforms, such as 
over-the-top and digital entrants providing streaming and/or on-demand services; and increasing our international
footprint. We have a large library of content which we produced and own the rights to indefinitely, enabling us to 
exploit original programming quickly and/or repackage content in a cost-effective manner.

We are focused on strengthening our networks and expanding reach, including in both the digital arena and
international market. As part of our effort to expand in the digital arena, we launched Scripps Lifestyle Studios in 
the fourth quarter of 2015.

Segment data and other information for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are included in Note 21 
– Segment Information to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Formf  10-K.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We have two reportable segments: U.S. Networks and International Networks.

Our Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) evaluates the operating performance of our businesses and makes 
decisions about the allocation of resources to the businesses using a measure we refer to as segment profit. Segment 
profit is defined as operating income excluding depreciation, amortization and goodwill write-downs. Because
segment profit is based on operating income, it excludes interest expense, equity in earnings of affiliates, gain on
derivatives, gain on sale of investments, other miscellaneous non-operating expenses and income taxes, which are 
included in net income determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States 
(“GAAP”).

Depreciation and amortization charges are a result of decisions made in prior periods regarding the allocation of 
resources and are, therefore, excluded from segment profit. Also excluded from segment profit are financing, tax 
structuring and acquisition and divestiture decisions, which are generally made by corporate executives. Excluding
these items from the performance measure of our businesses enables management to evaluate operating performance
based on current economic conditions and decisions made by the managers of the businesses in the current period.

U.S. Networks

U.S. Networks includes our six national television networks: HGTV, Food Network, Travel Channel, DIY Network,
Cooking Channel and Great American Country. Additionally, U.S. Networks includes websites associated with the 
aforementioned television brands and other internet and digital businesses serving home, food, travel and other 
lifestyle-related categories. U.S. Networks also includes our digital content studio, Scripps Lifestyle Studios. We
own 100.0 percent of each of our networks, with the exception of Food Network and Cooking Channel, of which we
own 68.7 percent. Each of our networks is distributed by cable and satellite operators, telecommunication suppliers 
and other distributors, including digital service providers.

U.S. Networks generates revenues primarily from advertising sales and distribution fees earned from the right to
distribute our programming content. U.S. Networks also earns revenues from licensing content to third parties and
brands for consumer products.

Advertising revenues generated by our domestic television networks depend on viewership ratings, as determined by 
Nielsen Media Research and other third-party research companies, and advertising rates paid by customers for 
delivery of advertisements to certain viewer demographics. Revenues from advertising sales are subject to
seasonality, market-based variations and general economic conditions. Advertising revenues are typically highest in
the second and fourth quarters and can fluctuate relative to the popularity of specific programming, time of day an 
advertisement is run and seasonald  demand of advertisers.
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Revenues from distribution fees are typically the result of multi-year carriage agreements that contain scheduled rate 
increases. Distribution fees are determined by the number of subscribers with access to the content of our various 
networks.

Our lifestyle-oriented interactive businesses are focused on the internal development and acquisition of interactive
media that is intended to diversify sources of revenue and enhance our competitive advantage as a leading provider
of home, food, travel and other lifestyle-oriented content.r

The lifestyle-oriented interactive businesses consist of our presence on multiple social media applications, TV
Everywhere watch sites, mobile applications and desktop websites, including, but not limited to, our six network-
branded websites: HGTV.com, Foodnetwork.com, Travelchannel.com, DIYNetwork.com, Cookingchanneltv.com
and Greatamericancountry.com. In addition to serving as websites for the television networks, the websites provide 
informational and instructional content on specific topics within their respective lifestyle content categories.r
Revenues generated by our lifestyle interactive businesses are derived primarily from the sale of display, banner and 
video advertising through all of these platforms. All of our interactive businesses benefit from archived television
network programming, of which we own approximately 94.2 percent. Owning ourf  programming enables us to 
efficiently and economically repurpose it for use on websites and digital platforms, including video-on-demand and 
streaming services.

The lifestyle-oriented websites accounted for approximately 5.2 percent of U.S. Networks’ total operating revenues
in 2016. The strategic focus of the lifestyle-oriented interactive businesses is to grow advertising revenues by 
increasing views and video plays and attracting more unique visitors to our websites through site enhancements and 
additional video. Our strategy also includes attracting a broader audience through placing our video programming on 
national video streaming sites, developing new sources of revenue that capitalize on traffic growth on our digital 
platforms and capitalizing on the movement of advertising dollars to mobile platforms.

Programming expenses, employee costs and marketing and advertising expenses are the primary operating costs of 
U.S. Networks. Marketing and advertising expenses are incurred to support brand-building initiatives at all of our 
networks.

HGTV

HGTV is available in approximately 91.6 million domestic television households and is simulcast in high definition 
(“HD”). HGTV programming content commands an audience interested specifically in home-related topics, such as
decorating, interior design, home remodeling, landscape design and real estate. HGTV engages audiences by 
creating original programming that is entertaining, instructional and informative. HGTV appeals more strongly to
female viewers with higher incomes in the 18 to 49 and 25 to 54 age ranges. HGTV ranked second among women in
the 25 to 54 age range for cable networks. Also, HGTV ranked third among all adult viewers and eighth among
adult viewers in the 25 to 54 age range for cabler  networks.

Programming on HGTV includes House Hunters, House Hunters International, Fixer Upper, Flip or Flop, The 
Property Brothers and Beachfront Bargain Hunt. The network also has developed successful programming events, 
including the HGTV Dream Home Giveaway, HGTV Smart Home Giveaway, HGTV Urban Oasis Giveaway and 
annual live coverage of the Tournament of Roses Parade.  Many of the programs on HGTV feature, or are hosted 
by, high-profile television personalities such as Chip and Joanna Gaines, Tarek and Christina El Moussa, Drew and 
Jonathan Scott, David Bromstad and Egypt Sherrod.

Food Network

Food Network is available in approximately 93.4 million domestic television households and is simulcast in HD. We
currently own 68.7 percent of the Food Network and are the managing partner. The Tribune Media Company 
(“Tribune”) has a non-controlling interest of 31.3 percent in Food Network.

Food Network programming content attracts audiences interested specififf cally in foff od-related topics, such as foff od
preparation, dining out, entertaining, competition, nutrition and healthy eating. Food Network engages audiences
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by creating original programming that is entertaining, instructional and infoff rmative. Food Network appeals more
strongly to feff male viewers with higher incomes in the 18 to 49 and 25 to 54 age ranges. Food Network ranked
within the top 15 cable networks foff r adults in the 25 to 54 age range.

Programming on Food Network includes primetime series Beat Bobby Flay, Chopped, Diners, Drive-ins and Dives, 
Food Network Star and Guy’s Grocery Games, as well as daytime series Giada in Italy, The Kitchen, Pioneer 
Woman and Trisha’s Southern Kitchen. Food Network hosts include high-profile television personalities such as Ted 
Allen, Alton Brown, Anne Burrell, Giada De Laurentiis, Bobby Flay, Guy Fieri, Alex Guarnaschelli, Geoffrey
Zakarian, Ree Drummond, Trisha Yearwood and Valerie Bertinelli.

Travel Channel

Travel Channel is available in approximately 85.4 million domestic television households and is simulcast in 
HD. Travel Channel programming content attracts travel enthusiasts and adventurous personalities. Travel Channel 
appeals more strongly to viewers who are more affluent than the average viewer.

Programming on Travel Channel includes Hotel Impossible, Mysteries at the Museum, Bizarre Foods, Trip Flip, 
Booze Traveler and Expedition Unknown.  Many of the programs on Travel Channel feature, or are hosted by, high-
profile television personalities such as Andrew Zimmern, Samantha Brown, Don Wildman, Anthony Melchiorri, 
Bert Kreischer, Jack Maxwell, Josh Gates and Zak Bagans.

DIY Network

DIY Network is available in approximately 59.6 million domestic television households and is simulcast in 
HD. DIY Network programming content attracts do-it-yourself audiences and provides entertaining and 
informational content across a broad range of categories, including home building, home improvement and 
renovations, gardening and landscaping. DIY Network appeals more strongly to male viewers with higher incomes 
in the 18 to 49 and 25 to 54 age ranges.

Programming on DIY Network includes Rehab Addict, Vanilla Ice Project, Building Alaska, First Time Flippers, 
Tiny House Big Living and Texas Flip N Move. Many of the programs on DIY Network feature, or are hosted by,
television personalities such as Nicole Curtis, Vanilla Ice, Alison Victoria and Chris Lambton.

Cooking Channel

Cooking Channel is available in approximately 65.1 million domestic households and is simulcast in HD.  We
currently own 68.7 percent of Cooking Channel, which represents a controlling interest. Tribune has a non-
controlling interest of 31.3 percent in Cooking Channel.

Cooking Channel programming content caters to avid food lovers by focusing on food information, food exploration
and instructional cooking. The Cooking Channel appeals more strongly to female viewers with higher incomes in 
the 18 to 49 and 25 to 54 age ranges.

Programming on Cooking Channel includes Big Bad BBQ Brawl, Beach Bites with Katie Lee, Carnival Eats, Cheap 
Eats, Dinner at Tiffani’s, Food Fact or Fiction and Man Fire Food. Cooking Channel hosts include notable 
television personalities such as Katie Lee, Michael McKean and Tiffani Thiessen.

Great American Country

Great American Country is available in approximately 57.0 million domestic television households and is simulcast 
in HD. Great American Country provides its viewers with programming content that celebrates the country lifestyle 
and includes the country music experience, music performance specials, live concerts and country music videos.

Programming on Great American Country includes Going RV, Flea Market Flip, Log Cabin Living, Living Alaska
and the Top 20 Country Countdown.
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International Networks

International Networks includes the TVN portfolio of networks and other lifestyle-oriented networks available in the
United Kingdom (“UK”), other European markets, the Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”), Asia Pacific (“APAC”) 
and Latin America.

International Networks generates revenues primarily from advertising sales, distribution fees earned from the right 
to distribute our programming content and program licensing to third parties.  Satellite transmission fees, 
programming expenses, employee costs and marketing and advertising expenses are the primary operating costs of
International Networks. 

We currently distribute HGTV, Food Network, Travel Channel, DIY Network, Cooking Channel, AFC and Fine 
Living Network, as well as the TVN network portfolio, in more than 175 countries and territories around the world. 
Our networks are broadcast in 30 languages via 41 unique channel feeds reaching more than 300 million cumulative
subscribers. In addition to the broadcast networks, we also license a portion of our programming to other 
broadcasters around the world.  

Internationally, we also have joint-venture partnerships with the BBC for UKTV and its suite of 10 general 
entertainment and lifestyle networks in the UK and with Corus Entertainment for HGTV, DIY Network, Food 
Network and Cooking Channel in Canada. 

In 2010, the Company launched its first international pay-television channel through Food Network in the UK. The
channel first launched on pay-television, then expanded its distribution in 2012 to free-to-air on Freeview, initially 
in primetime and then as a full 24-hour broadcast channel in 2013. Currently, Food Network is the third most 
viewed lifestyle channel and the fifth most viewed non-scripted factual channel in the UK. Food Network is also 
available across EMEA, APAC and Latin America.

In 2012, Travel Channel International Ltd. (“TCI”) was acquired, along with its base of operations in London. TCI 
is broadcast in 29 languages across a wide network of affiliates throughout EMEA and APAC. In 2014, TCI also
became available on Freeview in primetime in the UK.

In 2013, the Company acquired AFC, a complementary channel brand to Food Network. AFC, which is based in 
Singapore, broadcasts 24 hours a day, seven days a week and reaches about 10.4 million subscribers in 11 markets.

In early 2014, we launched the Fine Living Network in Italy on the digital terrestrial television. Since its launch, 
over 48.2 percent of Italy’s television population has tuned into the channel. In late 2014, we launched HGTV in 
Singapore. HGTV is the first channel dedicated to the home and lifestyle category across APAC.

During 2015, we acquired TVN, a Polish media company, which operates a portfolio of 13 free-to-air and pay-TV 
lifestyle and entertainment networks, including TVN, TVN24, TVN Style, TTV, TVN Turbo, TVN24 Biznes i
Świat.  Also included in TVN is TVN Media, an advertising sales house. Also in 2015, we launched Travel Channel
as a 24/7 free-to-air channel in the UK; expanded distribution of Food Network across Latin America and HGTV in 
APAC; launched Food Network in Australia in partnership with Special Broadcasting Service (“SBS”); secured a
large volume output deal with Nine in Australia to launch Food Network and HGTV-branded blocks on newly-
established 9LIFE, Australia’s first free-to-air lifestyle network.

In the second quarter of 2016, we launched HGTV as a free-to-air channel in New Zealand as a first of its kind
offering in the region. In the fourth quarter of 2016, we launched HGTV in the Middle East and North Africa. Also
during the fourth quarter of 2016, we launched Cooking Channel in Canada, marking the first time we distributed
this network outside the Unitedk  States and Caribbean.

Competition

Cable, satellite and telecommunications network programming is a highly-competitive business in the U.S. and 
worldwide. Our television networks and interactive businesses generally compete for advertising revenue with other 
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cable and broadcast television networks, online and mobile outlets, radio programming and print media. Our 
television networks and interactive business also compete for their target audiences with all forms of programming
and other media provided to viewers, including broadcast networks, local over-the-air television stations, 
competitors’ pay and basic cable television networks and video-on-demand services, streaming services, online 
activities and other forms of news, information and entertainment. Additionally, our networks compete with other 
television networks for distribution fees derived from agreements with cable and satellite operators, 
telecommunication suppliers and other distributors, including digital service providers.

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property (“IP”) assets include copyrights in television content, trademarks and servicemarks in
brands, names and logos, websites, and licenses from third parties.  To defend these assets, we rely upon a 
combination of common law, statutory and contractual legal protections. There can be no assurance, however, of the
degree to which these measures will be successful.  Moreover, effective IP protection may be either unavailable or
limited in certain foreign territories. Policing unauthorized use of our products and services and related IP is difficult 
and costly. Third parties may challenge the validity or scope of our IP from time to time, and the success of any such
challenges could result in the limitation or loss of IP rights.  Irrespective of their validity, such claims may result in 
substantial costs and diversion of resources which could have an adverse effect on our operations.  In addition,
piracy, which encompasses the theft of our signal and unauthorized use of our content in the digital environment, 
continues to present a threat to revenues.

Regulatory Matters

The Company is subject to and affected by laws and regulations of U.S. federal, state and local governmental
authorities as well as to the laws and regulations of international countries and bodies, such as the European Union 
(the “EU”). These laws and regulations are subject to change. Additionally, in the U.S. the Federal Communications 
Commission (the “FCC”) regulates cable television and satellite operators and telecommunication suppliers, which 
could affect our networks indirectly.

Closed Captioning

All of our cable networks must provide closed-captioning programming for the hearing impaired. The 21st Century
Communications and Video Accessibility Act of 2011 also requires us to provide closed captioning on certain video 
programming that we offer on the internet.

CALM Act

FCC rules require multichannel video programming distributors to ensure that all commercials comply with 
specified volume standards. Our distribution agreements generally require us to certify compliance with such
standards.

“Must-Carry” Requirements

The FCC’s implementation of the statutory “must-carry” obligations requires cable operators and multichannel
video programming distributors to give broadcasters preferential access to channel space. In contrast, cable 
programming television networks, such as ours, have no guaranteed right of carriage on these systems. This may
reduce the amount of channel space that is available for carriage of our television networks by these systems.r

Regulation of the Internet and Mobile Applications

We operate numerous websites and make available mobile applications (“apps”) which we use to distribute
information about our programs and to engage more deeply with our viewers. The operation of these websites and 
apps is subject to a range of international, federal, state and local laws, such as privacy and consumer protection 
regulations.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2016, we had approximately 3,600 full-time equivalent employees globally.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

A number of significant risk factors could materially affect our specific business operations and cause our
performance to differ materially from any future results projected or implied by our prior statements. Based on the
information currently known to us, we believe that the following information identifies the most significant risk 
factors affecting our company. The risks and uncertainties our Company faces, however, are not limited to those set 
forth in the risk factors described below. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we 
currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect our business.r

In addition, past financial performance may not be a reliable indicator of future performance, and historical trends 
should not be used to anticipatet  results or trends in future periods.

If any of the following risks or uncertainties develops into actual events, these events could have a material effect on 
our business, financial condition or results of operations. In such case, the trading price of our Class A Common
Shares could decline.

Changes in public and consumer tastes and preferences could reduce demand for our services and reduce 
profitability of our businesses.f

Each of our networks provides content and services whose success is primarily dependent on widespread acceptance
by the public. We must consistently create and distribute offerings that appeal to the prevailing consumer tastes at
any point in time, which is difficult to predict and can change rapidly. The Company must invest substantial
amounts in the production and marketing of its content before it learns whether such content will reach anticipated 
levels of popularity with consumers. The popularity of the Company’s content depends on many factors, only some 
of which are within the Company’s control. Examples include the popularity of competing content, the availability
of alternative forms of leisure and entertainment activities, general economic conditions, the growing competition
for consumer discretionary spending and the Company’s ability to maintain or develop strong brand awareness with
key target audiences.

There is a premium on live viewers of content, including the quality of the audience, which is driven by viewer 
income and spending habits. The anticipated demographics which our advertising customers seek drives pricing 
strength, which could be negatively impacted should widespread customer acceptance of our content notr  occur. 

Any event that could cast negative light on our entertainment personalities or negatively impact our brands and 
brand reputation could have a material impact on our earnings.

If we are unable to maintain distribution agreements at acceptable rates, packaging and terms, our revenues and 
profitability could be negatively affected.

We enter into multi-year contracts for our national television networks with distributors. Our long-term distribution 
arrangements enable us to reach a large percentage of households receiving multichannel video programming
distribution across the United States. As these contracts expire, we must renew or renegotiate them. If we are unable 
to renew them on acceptable terms or at rates and/or packaging similar to those in other distribution contracts, we 
may lose distribution rights and/or distribution fee revenues.

These distribution agreements may also include “most favored nation” (“MFN”) clauses. Such clauses typically 
provide that, in the event we enter into an agreement with another distributor on more favorable terms, those terms 
must be offered to the distributor holding the MFN right, subject to certain exceptions and conditions. The MFN
clauses within our distribution agreements are generally complex. Parties may interpret them differently and reach a
conflicting view of compliance of that held by the Company, which, if proven correct, could have an adverse effect 
on our financial condition or results of operations.
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The loss of a significant distribution arrangement on basic programming tiers could reduce distribution of our
networks, thereby adversely affecting distribution revenues, subjecting certain of our intangible assets to possible 
impairments and potentially impacting our ability to sell advertising at acceptable rates.

Three of our networks that are carried on digital tiers are dependent upon the willingness of consumers to pay for 
such tiers, as well as our ability to negotiater  favorable carriage agreements on widely accepted digital tiers.

Further consolidation among cable and satellite operators and telecommunications suppliers could adversely affect 
our revenues, profitability and financial condition of our businesses. Consolidation among distributors has given the 
largest cable and satellite operators considerable leverage in their relationship with content providers. The four 
largest distributors in the United States provide service to approximately 79.8 percent of U.S. paid television 
households receiving cable or satellite television service today.

Continued consolidation within the industry could reduce the number of distributors available to carry our 
programming, subject our distribution revenue to greater volume discounts and further increase the negotiating
leverage of the cable and satellite operators and telecommunications suppliers, which could have an adverse effect 
on our financial condition or results of operations.

Additionally, deficiencies with the methodologies of audience measurement techniques on tablets, mobile devices 
and emerging technologies may adversely impact our ability to monetize the use of our content.

Service disruptions and/or the failure of communications relied on by the Company could have a negative impact
on the profitability of our business.

Our business relies heavily on communications satellites and transmitter facilities to transmit our programming to 
distributors. Shutdowns of satellites and transmitter facilities or service disruptions pose significant risks to the 
Company’s operations. Such disruptions may be caused by power outages, natural disasters, extreme weather,
terrorist attacks, failures or impairments of communication satellites or on-ground uplinks or downlinks used to 
transmit programming or other similar events. If a satellite is not able to transmit the Company’s programming, the
Company may not be able to secure an alternative communication satellite in a timely manner because there are a 
limited number of communications satellites available for the transmission of programming. If such an event were to 
occur, there could be a disruption in the delivery of the Company’s programming, which could harm the Company’s 
reputation and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations.  

Our networks face significant competitive pressures related to attracting consumers and advertisers. Failure by 
us to maintain our competitive advantage may affect the profitability of our networks.

We face substantial competition from alternative providers of similar services. Our national television networks 
compete for viewers with other broadcast and national television networks and with home video products and 
internet usage, as well as with other content providers for carriage of programming. Additionally, our national
television networks compete for advertising revenues with a variety of other media alternatives, including other 
broadcast and national television networks, the internet, newspapers, radio stations and print media. Our websites
compete for visitors and advertising dollars with other forms of media aimed at attracting similar audiences and,
therefore, must provide popular content in order to maintain and increase site traffic. Competition may divert
consumers from our services, which could reduce the profitability of our networks.

Changes in consumer behavior resulting from new technologies and distribution platforms may impact the
performance of our networks.

We must adapt to advances in technologies and distribution platforms related to content transfer to ensure that our 
content remains desirable and widely available to our audiences. The ability to anticipate and take advantage of new 
and future sources of revenue from technological developments will affect our ability to continue to increase our 
revenue and expand our business. Additionally, we must adapt to the changing consumer behavior driven by 
advances in technology, such as video-on-demand, and devices, such as tablets and mobile, providing consumers the 
ability to view content from remote locations and enabling general preferences for user-generated and interactive
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content. Changes of these types may impact our traditional distribution methods for our content. If we cannot ensure 
that our distribution methods and content allow us to reach our target audiences, there could be a negative effect on
our business.

We face cybersecurity, information security, systems security, privacy and similar risks, which could result in the 
disclosure of confidential information, disruption of our programming services, damage to our brands and
reputation, legal exposure and financial losses.

Our online, mobile and app offerings, as well as our internal systems, involve the storage and transmission of our
and our users’ proprietary information. Additionally, we and our partners rely on various technology systems in 
connection with the production and distribution of our programming. Although we monitor our security measures 
regularly, they may be breached due to employee error, computer malware, viruses, hacking and phishing attacks or
otherwise. Additionally, outside parties may attempt to fraudulently induce employees or users to disclose sensitive,
private or confidential information in order to gain access to our data or our users’ data. Because the techniques used 
to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service or sabotage systems change frequently and often are not 
recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement 
adequate preventative measures. Any such breach or unauthorized access could result in a loss of our or our users’ 
proprietary information, a disruption of our services or a reduction of the revenues we are able to generate from such 
services, damage to our brands and reputation, a loss of confidence in the security of our offerings and services 
and/or significant legal and financial exposure, each of which could potentially have an adverse effect on our 
business.

The loss of key talent or inability to identify and locate new and engaging talent could disrupt our business and 
adversely affect the profitability of our businesses.f

Our business depends upon the continued efforts, abilities and expertise of our corporate and divisional executive 
teams and entertainment personalities. We employ or contract with entertainment personalities who may have loyal 
audiences. These individuals are important to audience endorsement of our programs and other content. There can 
be no assurance that these individuals will remain with us or retain their current audiences. If we fail to retain key
individuals or if our entertainment personalities lose their current audience base, our operations could be adversely 
affected.

Any event that could negatively impact our brands and brand reputation could have a material impact to our 
earnings.

We are subject to risks related to our internationalt  operations.l

We have operations and investments in a number of foreign jurisdictions. The inherent economic risks of doing
business in international markets that are beyond our control include, among other things (i) changes in the 
economic environment, (ii) changes in local regulatory requirements, including restrictions on content, imposition of
local content quotas and restrictions on foreign ownership, (iii) differing degrees of protection for IP and varying 
attitudes towards the piracy of IP, (iv) exchange controls, tariffs and other trade barriers, (v) foreign taxation, (vi) 
anti-corruption laws and regulations such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the U.K. Bribery Act that impose
stringent requirements on how we conduct our foreign operations and changes in these laws and regulations, (vii) 
foreign privacy and data protection laws and regulation and changes in these laws, (viii) shifting consumer 
preferences regarding the viewing of video programming, (ix) corruption, (x) confiscation, (xi) currency
inconvertibility, (xii) nationalization of assets and (xiii), in some markets, increased risk of economic and 
geopolitical instability. Additionally, the local currencies in which our international operations conduct their 
business could change in value relative to the U.S. Dollar (“USD”), exposing our results to exchange rate 
fluctuations.

Events or developments related to these and other risks associated with international trade could adversely affect our 
revenues from non-U.S. sources, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, 
results of operations, liquidity and prospects.
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Furthermore, some foreign markets where we and our partners operate may be more adversely affected by current 
economic conditions than the U.S. We also may incur substantial expense as a result of changes, including the 
imposition of new restrictions, in the existing economic or political environment in the regions where we do 
business. Acts of terrorism, hostilities, or financial, political, economic or other uncertainties could lead to a 
reduction in revenue or loss of investment, which could adversely affect ourd  results of operations.

Our business is subject to risks of adverse changes in laws and regulations.d

Our programming services and the distributors of our programming, including cable and satellite operators, 
telecommunication suppliers and other distributors, are regulated by U.S. federal laws and regulations issued and 
administered by various federal agencies, including the FCC, as well as by state and local governments. The
U.S. Congress and the FCC currently have under consideration, and may in the future adopt, new laws, regulations
and policies regarding a wide variety of matters that could, directly or indirectly, affect our operations. For example, 
legislators and regulators continue to consider rules that would effectively require cable television operators to offer
all programming on an à la carte basis, which would allow viewers to subscribe to individual networks rather than a 
package of networks, and/or require programmers to sell channels to distributors on an à la carte basis. Certain cable 
television operators and other distributors have already introduced tiers, or more targeted network packages, to their 
customers that may or may not include some or all of our networks. The unbundling of programming could reduce 
distribution of certain of our networks, thereby leading to reduced viewership and increased marketing expenses and 
affecting our ability to compete for or attract the same level of advertising dollars or distribution fees.

We could be subject to material liabilities as a result of changes inl  tax laws, regulations and policiesx

We are subject to taxation in the U.S. and numerous international jurisdictions. Our tax rates are impacted by the tax 
laws, regulations and policies in federal, state and local and international territories where our businesses operate 
and may be subject to significant change. In addition, our tax returns may be audited and settlements or litigation 
may occur. Such changes, audit settlements or litigation may result in the recognition of an additional charge to our
income tax provision in the period and may adversely affect our effective income tax rate or require additional cash
payments which may impact our operating results, cash flows and financial condition.

Changes in global economic conditions, economic conditions in the United States and the regional economies in 
which we operate or in specific industry sectors could adversely affect the profitability of our businesses.

Approximately 84.8 percent of our consolidated revenues in 2016 were derived from marketing and advertising
spending in the United States, and approximately 13.0 percent of our consolidated revenues in 2016 were derived
from marketing and advertising spending in Poland, including revenues from our advertising representation business
in Poland. Advertising and marketing spending is sensitive to economic conditions and tends to decline in 
recessionary periods. A global or regional economic decline could reduce advertising prices and volume, resulting in
a decrease in our advertising revenues.

Our business is significantly affected by prevailing economic conditions and by disruptions to financial markets. We
derive substantial revenues from advertisers, and these expenditures are sensitive to general economic conditions 
and consumer buying patterns. Financial instability or a general decline in economic conditions in the U.S. and other 
countries where our networks are distributed could adversely affect advertising rates and volume, resulting in a 
decrease in our advertisingr  revenues.

Decreases in consumer discretionary spending in the U.S. and other countries where our networks are distributed
may affect cable television and other video service subscriptions, in particular with respect to digital service tiers on
which certain of our programming networks are carried. This could lead to a decrease in the number of subscribers
receiving our programming from multi-channel video programming distributors, which could have a negative
impact on our viewing subscribers and revenues from distribution fees. Similarly, a decrease in viewing subscribers
would also have a negative impact on the number of viewers actually watching the programs on our programming 
networks, which could also impact the rates we are able to charge advertisers.
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Economic conditions affect a number of aspects of our businesses worldwide and impact the businesses of our 
partners who purchase advertising on our networks and reduce their spending on advertising. Economic conditions
can also negatively affect the ability of those with whom we do business to satisfy their obligations to us. The 
general worsening of current global economic conditions could adversely affect our business, financial condition or 
results of operations, and the worsening of economic conditions in certain parts of the world could impact the 
expansion and success of our businesses in such areas.

Our operations outside the United States may be adversely affected by the operation of laws in those jurisdictions.

Our operations in non-U.S. jurisdictions are in many cases subject to the laws of the jurisdictions in which they 
operate rather than U.S. law. Laws in some jurisdictions differ in significant respects from those in the U.S., and 
these differences can affect our ability to react to changes in our business and our rights or ability to enforce rights
may be different than would be expected under U.S. law.    

Moreover, enforcement of laws in some overseas jurisdictions can be inconsistent and unpredictable, which can
affect both our ability to enforce our rights and to undertake activities that we believe are beneficial to our business. 
In addition, the business and political climate in some jurisdictions may encourage corruption, which could reduce 
our ability to compete successfully in those jurisdictions while remaining in compliance with local laws or United 
States anti-corruption laws applicable to our businesses. As a result, our ability to generate revenue and our expenses 
in non-U.S. jurisdictions may differ from what would be expected if U.S. law governed these operations.

Increased costs associated with programming may adversely impact our ability to profitably produce new content.

Our business relies on our ability to profitably produce quality programming that is widely accepted by our target
demographics. Our core business involves the production, marketing and distribution of lifestyle content, the costs 
of which can be significant. Our investments in original programming and development are significant and involve 
complex negotiations with multiple parties. These costs may not be recouped when the content is broadcast or 
distributed and higher costs may lead to decreased profitability or potential write-downs. Increased competition from 
new entrants into the market for development and production of original programming increases our content costs, 
as creating competing high quality, original content can require significant investment.

We may incur additional debt in the future. Such debt could adversely affect our business, financial condition or 
results of operations. Financial market conditions may impede access to or increase the cost of financing our 
operations and investments.

We currently depend on cash on hand and cash flows from operations to make scheduled principal and cash interest
payments on our debt. We expect to be able to meet the estimated principal and interest payments on our debt
through a combination of cash on hand, expected cash flows from operations and the use of our revolving credit 
facility. Additionally, we may incur further debt in the future for other corporate purposes.

Increased volatility and disruptions in the U.S. and global financial and equity markets may make it more difficult 
for us to obtain financing for our operations or investments or increase the cost of obtaining financing. Our 
borrowing costs can be affected by short and long-term debt ratings assigned by independent ratings agencies which 
are based, in significant part, on our performance as measured by credit metrics such as interest coverage and
leverage ratios. A low rating could increase our cost of borrowing or make it more difficult for us to obtain future 
financing. Unforeseeable changes in foreign currencies could negatively impact our results of operations and 
calculations of interest coverage and leverage ratios.f

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect our operating results and financial condition.t

We have significant operations in a number of foreign jurisdictions and certain of our operations are conducted and 
certain of our debt obligations are denominated in foreign currencies. The value of these currencies fluctuates 
relative to the USD. As we have expanded our international operations, our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations
has increased. As a result, we are exposed to exchange rate fluctuations, which could have an adverse effect on our
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results of operations and net asset balances. There is no assurance that downward trending currencies will rebound 
or that stable currencies will remain unchanged in any period or for any specific market.

The concentrated ownership of our Common Voting Shares limits the ability of the holders of our Class A 
Common Shares to influence corporate matters. 

We have two classes of common stock: Common Voting Shares and Class A Common Shares. Holders of Class A
Common Shares are entitled to elect the greater of three or one-third of the members of the Board of Directors (the 
“Board”), but are not permitted to vote on any other matters except as required by Ohio law. Holders of Common 
Voting Shares are entitled to elect the remainder of the Board and to vote on all other matters. Approximately 92 
percent of the Common Voting Shares are subject to the Amended and Restated Scripps Family Agreement (the 
“Scripps Family Agreement”). The provisions of the Scripps Family Agreement fully govern the transfer and voting
of Common Voting Shares subject to the agreement. As a result, the holders of the Common Voting Shares subject
to the Scripps Family Agreement currently have the ability to elect two-thirds of the Board and to direct the outcome 
of any matter that does not require a vote of the Class A Common Shares. Additionally, some of the signatories to
the Scripps Family Agreement are also directors of the Company, which could create conflicts of interest in certain 
situations. This concentrated control limits the ability of the holders of Class A Common Shares to influence 
corporate matters and could potentially enable the Company to take actions that these shareholders would not view 
as beneficial. As a result, the market price of our Class A Common Shares could be adversely affected.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own approximately 621,000 square feet of office space, including our corporate headquarters in Knoxville, TN
and our TVN headquarters in Warsaw, Poland. Additionally, we lease approximately 820,000 square feet of other 
facilities to support our global operations in other locations, including New York, NY, Washington D.C., Miami, 
FL, London, England, Sao Paulo, Brazil and Singapore.

Management believes its properties are adequate to support the business efficiently and that the properties and 
equipment therein have been well maintained. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is party to various lawsuits and claims in the ordinary course of business.  f

From time to time, we receive notices from third parties claiming that we are infringing their IP rights. Claims of IP 
infringement could require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements on unfavorable terms, incur substantial 
monetary liability or be enjoined preliminarily or permanently from further use of the IP in question. In addition, 
certain agreements may require us to indemnify the other party for certain third-party IP infringement claims, which 
could increase our damages and our costs of defending against such claims. Even if the claims are without merit, 
defending against the claims can be time-consuming and costly.

The costs and other effects of pending or future litigation, governmental investigations, legal and administrative
cases and proceedings (whether civil or criminal), settlements, judgments and investigations, claims and changes in
those matters (including those matters described above) and developments or assertions by or against us relating to 
IP rights and IP licenses could have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and operating
results.  No current legal matters are expected to result in a material loss.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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Executive Officers of the Companyf

Our executive officers as of February 24, 2017 were as follows:f

Name Age Position

Kenneth W. Lowe 66
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer (since July 2008); President, fChief 
Executive Officer and Director, The E.W. Scripps Company (2000 to 2008)

Lori A. Hickok 53

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer (since February 2015); Executive
Vice President, Finance (2010 to 2015); Senior Vice President, Finance (2008 to
2010); Vice President and Controller, The E. W. Scripps Company (2002 to 2008)

Burton Jablin 56

Chief Operating Officer (since September 2015); President, Scripps Networks (2013
to 2015); President, Home Category (2010 to 2013); President, HGTV (2008 to
2010); President HGTV, The E. W. Scripps Company (2001 to 2008)

Cynthia L. Gibson 52
Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary (since
December 2012); Executive Vice President, Legal Affairs (2009 to 2012)

Mark S. Hale 58

Executive Vice President, Global Operations and Chief Technology Officer (since
February 2010); Senior Vice President, Technology Operations and fChief 
Technology Officer (2008 to 2010); Senior Vice President/Technology Operations, 
The E. W. Scripps Company (2006 to 2008)

NNello-John Pesci, Jr. 55

Executive Vice President, Chief Human Resources Officer (since February 2015); 
Executive Vice President, Human Resources (2014 to 2015); Senior Vice President,
Human Resources (2010 to 2014); Global Human Resources Leader, The Procter & 
Gamble Company (1991 to 2010)

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Class A Common Shares are traded on the NASDAQ listing exchange under the ticker symbol “SNI.” As of 
January 31, 2017, there were approximately 71,800 owners of our Class A Common Shares based on security 
position listings and 80 owners of our Common Voting Shares, which do not have an established public trading 
market.

The following table reflects the range of high and low selling prices of our Class A Common Shares by quarterly 
period:

2016 High Low
First quarter $ 66.99 $ 50.81
Second quarter $ 68.44 $ 58.73
Third quarter $ 68.34 $ 59.32
Fourth quarter $ 73.71 $ 60.63

2015 High Low
First quarter $ 77.65 $ 68.44
Second quarter $ 72.11 $ 64.47
Third quarter $ 68.45 $ 47.62
Fourth quarter $ 62.30 $ 47.72
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The following table provides information about the Company’s purchases of equity securities that are registered by 
the Company pursuant to section 12 of the Exchange Act (i.e., our Class A Common Shares) during the quarter 
ended December 31, 2016: 

Period
Total Number of 
Shares Purchased

Average Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as 

Part of Publicly 
Announced Plans or

Programs

Maximum Dollar Value
of Shares that May Yet

Be Purchased Under
the Plans or Programs

10/1/16 - 10/31/16 - $ - - $ 1,512,536,943
11/1/16 - 11/30/16 - - - 1,512,536,943
12/1/16 - 12/31/16 - - - 1,512,536,943
Total - $ - - $ 1,512,536,943

Under the existing share repurchase programs (the “Repurchase Programs”), the Company is permitted to acquire up 
to a cumulative amount of $3,000.0 million of Class A Common Shares. There is no expiration date for the
Repurchase Programs, and we are under no commitment or obligation to repurchase any particular amount of Class
A Common Shares under the Repurchase Programs.

There were no sales of unregistered equity securities during the year ended December 31, 2016.

Dividends

The Company paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.25 per share, $0.23 per share and $0.20 per share for all four
quarters in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, to the shareholders of its Class A Common Shares and Common 
Voting Shares. The declaration and payment of dividends is evaluated by the Company’s Board. Future dividends 
are subject to, among other things, our earnings, financial condition and capital allocation requirements.

Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s Class A Common Shares
with the comparable cumulative return of the S&P 500 index and a peer group of media companies (the “Peer Group 
Index”) for the five years ended December 31, 2016. The Peer Group Index is comprised of companies that engage 
in cable television programming as a significant portion of their business. However, some of the companies included 
in the Peer Group Index also engage in businesses in which the Company does not participate. The performance
graph assumes that the value of the investment in our Class A Common Shares, the S&P 500 index and the Peer
Group Index was $100 on December 31, 2011 and that all dividends were reinvested.

The Company previously included the NYSE index in its cumulative total return comparison. During 2016 we 
moved our exchange listing from the NYSE to the NASDAQ Global Select Market and we no longer consider
NYSE to be a relevant comparison.  

The companies that comprise the Peer Group Index include:

-AMC Networks, Inc.
-Discovery Communications, Inc.
-The Walt Disney Company
-Time Warner, Inc.
-Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. 
-Viacom, Inc.
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The Peer Group Index is weighted based on market capitalization.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Selected Financial Data required by this item is filed as part of this Form 10-K and incorporated into this Item 6 
by reference. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statement Information of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS 
OF OPERATIONS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations required by this item is
filed as part of this Form 10-K and incorporated into this Item 7 by reference. See Index to Consolidated Financial 
Statement Information of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The market risk information required by this item is filed as part of this Form 10-K and incorporated into this 
Item 7A by reference. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statement Information of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Financial Statements and Supplementary Data required by this item are filed as part of this Form 10-K and
incorporated into this Item 8 by reference. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statement Information of this 
Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Controls and Procedures required by this item are filed as part of this Form 10-K and incorporated into this Item 
9A by reference. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statement Information of this Formf  10-K.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding executive officers is included in Part I of this Form 10-K as permitted by General Instruction
G(3) to Form 10-K.

Information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K relating to directors is incorporated by reference to the material
captioned “Election of Directors” in our definitive proxy statement (“Proxy Statement”) for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. Information regarding Section 16(a) compliance is incorporated by reference to the material captioned 
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Compliance” in the Proxy Statement.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all employees, officers and directors of SNI. We also have a Code 
of Business Conduct and Ethics for the CEO and Senior Financial Officers. These codes meet the requirements 
defined by Item 406 of Regulation S-K and the requirement of a code of business conduct and ethics under 
NASDAQ listing standards. Copies of our codes of ethics are posted on our website at
www.scrippsnetworksinteractive.com. In addition, we will provide a printed copy of our code of ethics, free of 
charge, upon written request to: Investor Relations, Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc., 9721 Sherrill Blvd., 
Knoxville, TN  37932.

Information regarding our audit committee financial experts is incorporated by reference to the material captioned 
“Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement.

The Proxy Statement will be filed with the SEC in connection with our 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.r

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the materials captioned 
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Executive Compensation Tables” and “Director Compensation” in the
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND 
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the materials captioned “Report 
on the Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR 
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the materials captioned “Proposal 
4 – Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accountants” and “Related Party Transactions” in the Proxy 
Statement.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the material captioned
“Independent Auditors” in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Financial Statements and Supplemental Schedule

(a) The consolidated financial statements of SNI are filed as part of this Formf  10-K. See Index to Consolidated
Financial Statement Information.

The reports of Deloitte & Touche LLP, an Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, dated 
February 24, 2017, are filed as part of this Form 10-K. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statement Information.

(b) The Company’s consolidated supplemental schedule is filed as part of this Form 10-K. See Index to 
Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.

Exhibits

The information required by this item appears in the Exhibits Index as part of this Form 10-K.



21

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC.

Dated: February 24, 2017 By: /s/ Kenneth W. Lowe
Kenneth W. Lowe
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the registrantf  and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Kenneth W. Lowe Chairman, President and February 24, 2017
Kenneth W. Lowe Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Lori A. Hickok Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer February 24, 2017
Lori A. Hickok (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Gina L. Bianchini Director February 24, 2017
Gina L. Bianchini

/s/ Michael R. Costa Director February 24, 2017
Michael R. Costa

/s/ David A. Galloway Director February 24, 2017
David A. Galloway

/s/ Donald E. Meihaus Director February 24, 2017
Donald E. Meihaus

/s/ Jarl Mohn Director February 24, 2017
Jarl Mohn

/s/ Richelle P. Parham Director February 24, 2017
Richelle P. Parham

/s/ Nicholas B. Paumgarten Director February 24, 2017
Nicholas B. Paumgarten

/s/ Mary Peirce Director February 24, 2017
Mary Peirce

/s/ Jeffrey Sagansky Director February 24, 2017
Jeffrey Sagansky

/s/ Wesley W. Scripps Director February 24, 2017
Wesley W. Scripps

/s/ Ronald W. Tysoe Director February 24, 2017
Ronald W. Tysoe
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Selected Financial Data

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands, except pert  sharer  data and cash dividends) 2016 2015 (9) 2014 2013 2012
Summary of Operations

Networks $ 2,871,424 $ 2,716,663 $ 2,588,357 $ 2,466,061 $ 2,257,625
International Networks 557,052 327,891 90,180 75,677 49,444
Corporate and Other (27,041) (26,327) (13,081) (10,929) 113

Total operating revenues $ 3,401,435 $ 3,018,227 $ 2,665,456 $ 2,530,809 $ 2,307,182
Segment profit (loss) (1)(2)(3):

Networks $ 1,413,450 $ 1,337,189 $ 1,268,417 $ 1,212,767 $ 1,128,639
International Networks 100,397 30,893 (41,854) (17,535) (2,290)
Corporate and Other (112,373) (122,391) (104,802) (92,772) (85,476)

Total segment profit $ 1,401,474 $ 1,245,691 $ 1,121,761 $ 1,102,460 $ 1,040,873
NNet income attributable to SNI common shareholders (4) $ 673,595 $ 606,828 $ 545,275 $ 505,070 $ 681,478
Per Share Data
Net income attributable to SNI common shareholders per
share of common stock (4)

$ 5.20 $ 4.68 $ 3.86 $ 3.43 $ 4.48
Diluted $ 5.18 $ 4.66 $ 3.83 $ 3.40 $ 4.44

$ 1.00 $ 0.92 $ 0.80 $ 0.60 $ 0.48
Balance Sheet Data

$ 6,200,294 $ 6,672,314 $ 4,657,481 $ 4,438,447 $ 4,138,798
Total debt (5)(6)(7)(8)(10) $ 3,202,386 $ 4,010,272 $ 2,369,254 $ 1,384,488 $ 1,384,216

Notes to Selected Financial Data

(1) Operating revenues and segment profit (loss) represent the measures used to evaluate the operating performance
of our business segments in accordance with financial accounting standards for disclosures about segments of an 
enterprise and related information. See “Business Segment Results” in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

(2) Segment profiff t is a supuu plemental fiff nanaa cial measuruu e. Ouruu CODM evaluataa es thtt e operataa ing perfoff rmrr anaa ce of ouruu
businesses anaa d makaa es decisions aba outuu thtt e allocataa ion of resouruu ces to thtt e businesses using a measuruu e we refeff r to as
segment profiff t. Segment profit is defined as operating income excluding depreciation, amortization and goodwill 
write-downs. Because segment profit is based on operating income, it excludes interest expense, equity in earnings 
of affiliates, gain on derivatives, gain on sale of investments, other miscellaneous non-operating expenses and 
income taxes, which are included in net income determined in accordance with GAAP. For a reconciliataa ion of tht is
fiff nanaa cial measuruu e to operataa ing income, see “Business Segment Results” in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

(3) As a result of the acquisition of N-Vision B.V., a Dutch Limited Liability Company (“N-Vision”) (see Note 4 – 
Acquisitions), our international operating segment became significant. Therefore, the Company has two reportable
segments: U.S. Networks and International Networks. As a result of the above-mentioned changes, certain prior 
period segment results have been recast to reflect the current presentation.

 (4) Our income tax provision in 2012 reflects a $213.0 million income tax benefit as a result of the reversal of
valuation allowances on deferred tax assets related to capital loss carry-forwards. Previously, we had estimated that 
it would be unable to use any of the capital loss carry-forwards generated from the sale of our Shopzilla and uSwitch 
businesses. As a consequence of a restructuring that was completed to achieve a more efficient tax structure, the 
Company recognized a $574.0 million capital gain that utilized substantially all of its capital loss carry-forwards.  
This income tax benefit was partially offset by $23.1 million of state income tax expenses recognized on the capital 
gain that utilized these capital loss carry-forwards.
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(5) In December 2009, we acquired a 65.0 percent controlling interest in Travel Channel. In connection with this 
acquisition, we completed a private placement of $885.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.55% Senior Notes 
(the “2015 Notes”) that matured and were repaid in 2015.

(6) In 2011, we completed the sale of $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2.70% Senior Notes due 2016 
(the “2016 Notes”). The 2016 Notes matured and were repaid in 2016.

(7) In November 2014, we completed the sale of $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2.75% Senior Notes 
due 2019 (the “2019 Notes”) and $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.90% Senior Notes due 2024 (the 
“2024 Notes”).

(8) In Mayaa 2015, we amended ouruu revolving credit faff cilitytt (“Amended Revolving Credit Facilitytt ”) to permrr it
borrrr owings upuu to ana aggregate principal amounuu t of $900.0 million, which mayaa be increased to $1,150 million at ouruu
option. In JuJ nu e 2015, we compm leted tht e sale of $600.0 million aggregate principal amounu t of 2.80% Senior Notes dudd e
2020 (tht e “2020 Notes”), $400.0 million aggregate principal amounuu t of 3.50% Senior Notes dudd e 2022 (tht e “2022
Notes”) ana d $500.0 million aggregate principal amounu t of 3.95% Senior Notes dudd e 2025 (tht e “2025 Notes”). Also
dudd ru ing JuJ nu e 2015, we entered into a $250.0 million senior unu securuu ed loana (“Termrr Loanaa ”) tht at matutt ru es in JuJ nu e 2017.

On September 15, 2015, TVN executed a partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes totaling €45.1 million, 
comprised of principal of €43.0 million, accrued interest of €0.8 million and premium of €1.3 million.

On November 16, 2015, TVN Finance Corporation III AB (“TVN Finance Corp.”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, executed a second partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes totaling €45.6 million, 
comprised of principal of €43.0 million, accrued interest of €1.3 million and premium of €1.3 million. At December 
31, 2015, €344.0 million was outstanding on the 2020 TVN Notes. 

On November 16, 2015, TVN Finance Corp. executed a full early redemption of 7.88% Senior Notes due 2018 (the
“2018 TVN Notes”) totaling €118.9 million, comprised of principal of €116.6 million, accrued interest of a nominal 
amount and premium of €2.3 million. An additional €4.6 million was paid simultaneously in fulfillment of the
November 15 coupon payment due.

On September 20, 2016, TVN Finance Corp. executed a third partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes totaling
€45.1 million, comprised of principal of €43.0 million,f  accrued interest of €0.8 million and premium of €1.3 million.f

On December 15, 2016, TVN Finance Corp. executed a full early redemption for the balance of the 2020 TVN 
Notes outstanding totaling €323.2 million, comprised of principal of €301.0 million, accrued interest of €11.1 
million and premium of €11.1 million.

(9) 2015 includes activity related to the TVN Transactions.

(10) In connection with the adoption of the FASB guidance on Imputation of Interest, we reclassified $10.2 million 
from other non-current assets to debt (less current portion) in 2014 and an immaterial amount from other non-current 
assets to current portion of debt in 2014. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon the consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto. This discussion should be read in conjunction with those financial statements.
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Overview

We are a global media company with respected high-profile brands and are a leading developer of lifestyle-oriented 
content, providing primarily home, food, travel and other lifestyle-related programming. Our content is distributed
via multiple methods, including television, the internet, digital platforms and licensing arrangements. The SNI 
portfolio of networks includes HGTV, Food Network, Travel Channel, DIY Network, Cooking Channel and Great 
American Country within and outside the United States, with the exception of Great American Country, which is
only distributed in the United States, and Fine Living, AFC and TVN’s portfolio of networks outside the United 
States. Additionally, outside the United States, we participate in UKTV, a joint venture with the BBC. Our 
businesses engage audiences and efficiently serve advertisers by producing and delivering entertaining and highly-
useful content that focuses on specifically-defined topics of interest.

The growth of our international business, through acquisition and joint ventures, as well as organically, has been,
and continues to be, a strategic priority for the Company. During the fourth quarter of 2016, we launched Cooking 
Channel in Canada, marking the first time we distributed this network outside the United States and Caribbean. Also 
in the fourth quarter of 2016, we launched HGTV in the Middle East and North Africa. In the second quarter of 
2016, we launched HGTV as a free-to-air channel in New Zealand as a first-of-its-kind offering in the region. 
During 2015, we acquired TVN, a Polish media company, which operates a portfolio of 13 free-to-air and pay-TV 
lifestyle and entertainment networks. Also in 2015, we launched Travel Channel as a 24/7 free-to-air channel in the 
UK; expanded distribution of Food Network across Latin America and HGTV in APAC; launched Food Network in
Australia in partnership with SBS; secured a large volume output deal with Nine in Australia to launch Food 
Network and HGTV-branded blocks on newly-launched 9LIFE, Australia’s first free-to-air lifestyle network.

Consolidated operating revenues increased $383.2 million, or 12.7 percent, in 2016 compared with 2015 and $352.8 
million, or 13.2 percent, in 2015 compared with 2014. The growth in year-over-year consolidating operating 
revenues in 2016 compared with 2015 was partially attributed to the inclusion of TVN’s results for the entire twelve 
months in 2016 compared with only six months in 2015, while the growth in year-over-year consolidated operating 
revenues in 2015 compared with 2014 was partially attributed to the inclusion of TVN’s results for six months in
2015 compared with not at all in 2014. Consolidated income from operations before income taxes increased $155.9
million, or 13.9 percent, in 2016 compared with 2015, primarily driven by the flow through of the 12.7 percent 
increase in consolidated operating revenues and a $191.8 million gain on sale of investments, partially offset by a 
$32.4 million reduction in gain on derivatives and $21.4 million of incremental interest expense in 2016. 
Consolidated income from operations before income taxes increased $94.0 million, or 9.1 percent, in 2015 compared
with 2014, primarily driven by the flow through of the 13.2 percent increase in consolidated operating revenues and 
a $47.4 million increase in gain on derivatives, more than offset by $55.4 million of incremental interest expense in
2015. 

Although the international business experienced growth, primarily through the acquisition of TVN, U.S. Networks 
continues to account for the majority of the Company’s performance. U.S. Networks generated operating revenues 
of $2,871.4 million, representing 84.4 percent of consolidated operating revenues, for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared with $2,716.7 million, representing 90.0 percent of consolidated operating revenues, for the year 
ended December 31, 2015 and $2,588.4 million, representing 97.1 percent of consolidated operating revenues, for
the year ended December 31, 2014.r

The reduced contribution of U.S. Networks’ operating revenues as a percentage of consolidated operating revenues 
in 2016 compared with the same periods in 2015 and 2014 was primarily driven by the inclusion of TVN’s results 
for the entire twelve months in 2016, only six months in 2015 and not at all in 2014.

International Networks generated operating revenues of $557.1 million, representing 16.4 percent of consolidated 
operating revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with $327.9 million, representing 10.9 percent 
of consolidated operating revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2015 and $90.2 million, representing 3.4 
percent of consolidatedf  operating revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The increased contribution of International Networks’ operating revenues as a percentage of consolidated operating
revenues in 2016 compared with the same periods in 2015 and 2014 was primarily driven by the inclusion of TVN’s
results for the entire twelve months in 2016, only six months in 2015r  and notd  at all in 2014.t



25

Results of Operations

Consolidated Results of Operations
2016 Compared with 2015

Year ended December 31,

( in thousands) 2016 2015
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Operating revenues:

$ 2,416,403 $ 2,062,530 $ 353,873 17.2%
Distribution 894,367 874,984 19,383 2.2%
Other 90,665 80,713 9,952 12.3%

Total operating revenues 3,401,435 3,018,227 383,208 12.7%
Operating expenses:

 depreciation and
amortization 1,193,228 987,357 (205,871) (20.9)%
Selling, general and administrative 806,733 785,179 (21,554) (2.7)%
Depreciation 71,559 73,112 1,553 2.1%
Amortization 123,442 68,647 (54,795) (79.8)%
Goodwill write-down 57,878 - (57,878) NM

Total operating expenses 2,252,840 1,914,295 (338,545) (17.7)%
Operating income 1,148,595 1,103,932 44,663 4.0%
Interest expense, net (129,441) (108,047) (21,394) (19.8)%
Equity in earnings of affiliates 71,382 80,916 (9,534) (11.8)%
Gain on derivatives 17,868 50,256 (32,388) (64.4)%
Gain on sale of investments 191,824 - 191,824 NM
Miscellaneous, net (22,450) (5,193) (17,257) (332.3)%
Income from operations before income taxes 1,277,778 1,121,864 155,914 13.9%
Provision for income taxes 430,330 343,391 (86,939) (25.3)%
NNet income 847,448 778,473 68,975 8.9%
Less: net income attributable to non-controlling interests (173,853) (171,645) (2,208) (1.3)%
NNet income attributable to SNI $ 673,595 $ 606,828 $ 66,767 11.0%

Consolidated operating revenues increased $383.2 million, or 12.7 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 
compared with the same period in 2015, primarily attributed to the inclusion of TVN’s results for the entire twelve 
months in 2016 as well as growth in both advertising sales and distribution fees revenues. Consolidated advertising 
sales increased $353.9 million, or 17.2 percent, in 2016 compared with the respective period in 2015, primarily
driven by the inclusion of TVN’s results for the entire twelve months in 2016 as well as strong pricing in the U.S.
market. Consolidated advertising sales represented 71.0 percent and 68.3 percent of consolidated total operating 
revenues in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Consolidated advertising sales growth was supplemented with consolidated distribution fees growth of $19.4 
million, or 2.2 percent, in 2016 compared with the respective period in 2015, also primarily driven by the inclusion 
of TVN’s results for the entire twelve months in 2016 as well as negotiated contractual rate increases partially offset 
by a rate equalization resulting from the consolidation of certain distributor agreements and a decrease in the number 
of subscribers receiving our networks. Consolidated distribution fees represented 26.3 percent and 29.0 percent of
consolidated total operating revenues in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Cost of servrr ices, which consists of program amortrr ization ana d costs associated witht distrtt ibuting ouruu content, increased
$205.9 million, or 20.9 percent, foff r tht e yearaa ended Decembm er 31, 2016 compm ara ed witht tht e respective period in 2015,
inclusive of TVNVV ’s results foff r tht e entire twtt elve montht s in 2016. Program amortrr ization, which represents tht e laraa gest
expx ense ana d is tht e primaraa yrr drdd iver of flff uctutt ations in cost of servrr ices, increased $151.0 million, or 19.3 percent, in 2016
compm ara ed witht tht e same period in 2015, reflff ecting ouru continun ed investmtt ent in tht e impm roved quqq alitytt ana d vara ietytt of
programming on ouru netwtt orkrr s ana d higher tht ana normrr al program impm airmrr ents. Cost of servrr ices included $5.5 million of
costs related to tht e integration of ouru domestic netwtt orkrr s (tht e “Reorgana ization”) incuru rrr ed dudd ruu ing 2016, while $2.8
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million of costs related to tht e closuruu e of tht e Cincinnati offff iff ce ana d elimination of certrr ain roles witht in tht e Compm ana ynn (tht e
“Restrtt urr ctutt ru ing Plana ”) were incuruu rrr ed dudd ru ing 2015.

Selling, general and administrative, which primarily consists of employee costs, marketing and advertising expenses, 
administrative costs and costs of facilities, increased $21.6 million, or 2.7 percent, for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared with the respective period in 2015, inclusive of TVN’s results for the entire twelve months in 2016. 
Selling, general and administrative included $15.1 million of TVN transaction and integration related expenses and 
$10.8 million of Reorganization costs incurred during 2016. Selling, general and administrative included $28.2 
million of TVN transaction and integration related expenses, $13.3 million of costs related to the Restructuring Plan 
and $3.2 million of Reorganization costs incurred during 2015.

Amortization, which reflects the expense associated with intangible assets, primarily identified through business 
acquisitions, increased $54.8 million, or 79.8 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the 
same period in 2015, primarily driven by the long-lived assets recognized as a result of the Acquisition as well as 
$15.9 million of accelerated amortization related to the write-down of certain long-lived intangible assets in our 
APAC reporting unit within International Networks.

Goodwill write-down increased $57.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the same period 
in 2015 as a result of the impairment of the APAC and EMEA reporting units within International Networks. 

Interest expense, net primarily reflects the interest incurred on our outstanding borrowings. Interest expense, net 
increased $21.4 million, or 19.8 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the same period in 
2015 due to higher average debt levels. We increased our borrowing activity in the second quarter of 2015 to 
generate funds necessary to complete the Acquisition, a tender offer (the “Tender Offer”) and subsequent squeeze-
out (the “Squeeze-out”), together the “Transactions.” The additional debt included the 2020 Notes, the 2022 Notes 
and the 2025 Notes, as well as the Term Loan, all of which were outstanding the entire twelve months in 2016 and
approximately seven months in 2015. Interest expense, net also includes interest income of $7.2 million and $6.9 
million in 2016 and 2015, respectively, primarily related to the UKTV note.

Equity in earnings of affiliates, which represents the proportionate share of net income or loss from each of our
equity method investments, decreased $9.5 million, or 11.8 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared with the same period in 2015, primarily driven by the sale of our 7.3 percent equity interest in Fox BRV 
Southern Sports Holdings (“Fox Sports South”) in the first quarter of 2016. Included in equity in earnings of
affiliates is our proportionate 50.0 percent share of results from UKTV. Amortization expense attributed to 
intangible assets recognized upon acquiring our interest in UKTV reduces equity in earnings we recognize from our 
UKTV investment. Accordingly, equity in earnings of affiliates includes our $46.0 million and $46.5 million 
proportionate share of UKTV’s results in 2016 and 2015, respectively, which were reduced by amortization of $12.9 
million and $16.8 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Equity in earnings of affiliates also included profits of 
$7.4 million and losses of $0.7 million related to nC+ and Onet, TVN’s equity investments, in 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, which were reduced by amortization of $0.9 million and $4.9 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Gain on derivatives represents realized and unrealized positions on derivative contracts, primarily related to foreign
currency hedges. We recognized a $32.4 million, or 64.4 percent, decrease in net gains for the year ended December
31, 2016 compared with the same period in 2015, primarily as a result of various foreign currency hedge contracts 
executed for the Transactions in 2015. 

Gain on sale of investments totaled $191.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, with a $208.2 million 
gain from the sale of our 7.3 percent equity interest in Fox Sports South in the first quarter of 2016, partially offset
by a $16.4 million loss incurred on the sale of a cost method investment in the second quarter of 2016.

Miscellaneous, net includes foreign currency exchange transaction gains and losses, which represented a $16.1 
million net loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with a $22.4 million net loss in the same period in
2015 and the $10.7 million impact of the write-down associated with a certain equity method investment in 2016. 
Also included in miscellaneous, net is a $6.7 million and $8.3 million gain on extinguishment of debt in 2016 and 
2015, respectively, related to the pre-payments of the 2020 TVN Notes in 2016 and to the pre-payment of the 2018
TVN Notes and the 2021 PIK Notes and to the partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes in 2015.
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Our effective tax rate was 33.7 percent for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with 30.6 percent for the 
respective period in 2015, primarily attributable to a combination of unfavorable and favorable tax settlements that 
occurred in 2016 and 2015, respectively, and the goodwill write-down in 2016, which was not deductible for income
tax purposes.  

Non-controlling owners hold a 31.3 percent interest in the Food Network Partnership (the “Partnership”). The non-
controlling owners’ proportionate share of the results of this business are captured in the net income attributable to 
non-controlling interests caption within the consolidated statements of operations and represents the continued 
profitability of the Partnership.

Consolidated Results of Operations
2015 Compared with 2014

Year ended December 31,

( in thousands) 2015 2014
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Operating revenues:

$ 2,062,530 $ 1,816,388 $ 246,142 13.6%
Distribution 874,984 799,178 75,806 9.5%
Other 80,713 49,890 30,823 61.8%

Total operating revenues 3,018,227 2,665,456 352,771 13.2%
Operating expenses:

 depreciation and
amortization 987,357 778,896 (208,461) (26.8)%
Selling, general and administrative 785,179 764,799 (20,380) (2.7)%
Depreciation 73,112 73,849 737 1.0%
Amortization 68,647 55,603 (13,044) (23.5)%

Total operating expenses 1,914,295 1,673,147 (241,148) (14.4)%
Operating income 1,103,932 992,309 111,623 11.2%
Interest expense, net (108,047) (52,687) (55,360) (105.1)%
Equity in earnings of affiliates 80,916 85,631 (4,715) (5.5)%
Gain on derivatives 50,256 2,810 47,446 NM
Miscellaneous, net (5,193) (212) 4,981 NM
Income from operations before income taxes 1,121,864 1,027,851 94,013 9.1%
Provision for income taxes 343,391 301,043 (42,348) (14.1)%
NNet income 778,473 726,808 51,665 7.1%
Less: net income attributable to non-controlling interests (171,645) (181,533) 9,888 5.4%
NNet income attributable to SNI $ 606,828 $ 545,275 $ 61,553 11.3%

Consolidated operating revenues increased $352.8 million, or 13.2 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2015 
compared with the same period in 2014, primarily attributed to the inclusion of TVN’s results for six months in 
2015 as well as growth in both advertising sales and distribution fees revenues from our domestic television
networks. Consolidated advertising sales increased $246.1 million, or 13.6 percent, in 2015 compared with the
respective period in 2014, primarily driven by the inclusion of TVN’s results for six months in 2015 as well as 
strong pricing in the U.S. market. Consolidated advdd ertrr ising sales represented 68.3 percent ana d 68.1 percent of
consolidated total operating revenun es in 2015 ana d 2014, respectively.

Consolidated advdd ertrr ising sales growtht was supuu plemented witht consolidated distrtt ibution feff es growtht of $75.8 million,
or 9.5 percent, in 2015 compm ara ed witht tht e respective period in 2014, also primara ily drdd iven by tht e inclusion of TVNVV ’s
results foff r six montht s in 2015 as well as negotiated contrtt actutt al rate increases para trr ially offff sff et by a decrease in tht e
nun mbm er of subu scribers receiving ouru netwtt orkrr s. Consolidated distrtt ibution feff es represented 29.0 percent ana d 30.0 percent
of consolidated total operating revenun es in 2015 ana d 2014, respectively.



28

Cost of services increased $208.5 million, or 26.8 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with the 
respective period in 2014, inclusive of TVN’s results for six months in 2015. Program amortization increased $162.2
million, or 26.1 percent, in 2015 compared with the same period in 2014, reflecting our continued investment in the
improved quality and variety of programming on our networks and higher than normal program impairments. Cost 
of services included $2.8 million of costs related to the Restructuring Plan incurred during 2015, while $3.9 million 
of costs reacted to the Restructuring Plan were incurred during 2014.

Selling, general and administrative increased $20.4 million, or 2.7 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared with the respective period in 2014, inclusive of TVN’s results for six months in 2015. Selling, general and 
administrative included $28.2 million of TVN transaction and integration related expenses, $13.3 million of costs 
related to the Restructuring Plan and $3.2 million of Reorganization costs incurred during 2015. Selling, general and 
administrative included $10.5 million of costs related to the Restructuring Plan and $9.7 million related to contract 
termination costs incurred during 2014.

Amortization increased $13.0 million, or 23.5 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with the 
same period in 2014, primarily driven by the long-lived assets recognized as a result of thef  Acquisition.

Interest expense, net increased $55.4 million, or 105.1 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared
with the same period in 2014 due to higher average debt levels. At December 31, 2014, we had the 2015 Notes 
outstanding throughout 2014 that were repaid in January 2015 and the 2016 Notes that were outstanding throughout 
all of 2014 and 2015. In November 2014, we issued the 2019 Notes and the 2024 Notes. Additionally, we increased 
our borrowing activity in the second quarter of 2015 to generate funds necessary to complete the Transactions. The
additional debt included the 2020 Notes, the 2022 Notes and the 2025 Notes, as well as the Term Loan, all of which 
were outstanding for approximately seven months in 2015 and not at all in 2014. We also assumed debt as part of 
the Transactions, including the 2018 TVN Notes, the 2020 TVN Notes, an outstanding revolving credit facility (the 
“TVN Facility”) and a cash loan (the “Cash Loan”). Interest expense, net also includes interest income of $6.9
million and $6.7 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, primarily related to the UKTV note.

Equity in earnings of affiliates decreased $4.7 million, or 5.5 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared with the same period in 2014. Included in equity in earnings of affiliates is our proportionate 50.0 percent 
share of results from UKTV. Amortization expense attributed to intangible assets recognized upon acquiring our 
interest in UKTV reduces equity in earnings we recognize from our UKTV investment. Accordingly, equity in 
earnings of affiliates includes our $46.5 million and $44.5 million proportionate share of UKTV’s results in 2015
and 2014, respectively, which were reduced by amortization of $16.8 million and $19.0 million in 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. Equity in earnings of affiliates also included a loss of $0.7 million related to nC+ and Onet, TVN’s
equity investments, in 2015, which was reduced by amortization of $4.9 million in 2015.f

Gain on derivatives represents realized and unrealized positions on derivative contracts, primarily related to foreign
currency hedge contracts. We recognized a $47.4 million increase in net gains for the year ended December 31, 
2015 compared with the same period in 2014, primarily as a result of various foreign currency hedge contracts 
executed for the Transactions in 2015. 

Miscellaneous, net includes foreign currency exchange transaction gains and losses, which represented a $22.4 
million net loss for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with a $4.2 million net loss in the same period in
2014. Also included in miscellaneous, net is an $8.3 million gain on extinguishment of debt related to the pre-
payment of the 2018 TVN Notes and the 2021 PIK Notes and to the partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes in 
2015.

Our effective tax rate was 30.6 percent for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with 29.3 percent for the
respective period in 2014, primarily driven by a decrease in the tax impact of our non-controlling interest benefit in 
2015, state taxes in connection with changes in state tax laws and rates enacted in 2015 and certain non-deductible
expenses incurred in 2015 related to the Transactions.
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Business Segment Results

As discussed in Note 21-Segment Information to the consolidated financial statements, our CODM evaluates the
operating performance of our businesses and makes decisions about the allocation of resources to the businesses
using a measure we refer to as segment profit. Segment profit is defined as operating income excluding depreciation,
amortization and goodwill write-downs. Because segment profit is based on operating income, it excludes interest 
expense, equity in earnings of affiliates, gain on derivatives, gain on sale of investments, other miscellaneous non-
operating expenses and income taxes, which are items included in net income determined in accordance with 
GAAP.

Depreciation and amortization charges are a result of decisions made in prior periods regarding the allocation of 
resources and are, therefore, excluded from segment profit. Also excluded from segment profit are financing, tax
structuring and acquisition and divestiture decisions, which are generally made by corporate executives. Excluding
these items from the performance measure of our businesses enables management to evaluate operating performance
based on current economic conditions and decisions made by the managers of the businesses in the current period.

Total segment profit is the aggregate of the segment profit for each of our two reportable segments. Total segment 
profit is a financial measure that is not intended to replace operating income, the most directly comparable GAAP 
financial measure.  Our management believes that total segment profit is a useful measure of the operating 
profitability of our business since the measure allows for an evaluation of the performance of our segments without
regard to the effect of interest, depreciation and amortization and certain other items. For this reason, operating 
performance measures, such as total segment profit, are used by analysts and investors in our industry. Total
segment profit is not a measure of consolidated operating results under GAAP and should not be considered superior
to, as a substitute for or as an alternative to, operating income or any other measure of consolidated operating results
under GAAP.

Information regarding the operating performance of our business segments, including a reconciliation of segment 
profit to operating income determined in accordance with GAAP, is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Operating revenues:

U.S. Networks $ 2,871,424 $ 2,716,663 $ 154,761 5.7%
International Networks 557,052 327,891 229,161 69.9%
Corporate and Other (27,041) (26,327) (714) (2.7)%

Total operating revenues 3,401,435 3,018,227 383,208 12.7%
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and amortization 1,193,228 987,357 (205,871) (20.9)%
Selling, general and administrative 806,733 785,179 (21,554) (2.7)%
Total segment profit 1,401,474 1,245,691 155,783 12.5%
Depreciation 71,559 73,112 1,553 2.1%
Amortization 123,442 68,647 (54,795) (79.8)%
Goodwill write-down 57,878 - (57,878) NM
Operating income 1,148,595 1,103,932 44,663 4.0%
Interest expense, net (129,441) (108,047) (21,394) (19.8)%
Equity in earnings of affiliates 71,382 80,916 (9,534) (11.8)%
Gain on derivatives 17,868 50,256 (32,388) (64.4)%
Gain on sale of investments 191,824 - 191,824 NM
Miscellaneous, net (22,450) (5,193) (17,257) (332.3)%
Income from operations before income taxes $ 1,277,778 $ 1,121,864 $ 155,914 13.9%
Segment profit (loss):t

U.S. Networks $ 1,413,450 $ 1,337,189 $ 76,261 5.7%
International Networks 100,397 30,893 69,504 225.0%
Corporate and Other (112,373) (122,391) 10,018 8.2%

Total segment profit $ 1,401,474 $ 1,245,691 $ 155,783 12.5%
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Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2015 2014
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Operating revenues:

U.S. Networks $ 2,716,663 $ 2,588,357 $ 128,306 5.0%
International Networks 327,891 90,180 237,711 263.6%
Corporate and Other (26,327) (13,081) (13,246) (101.3)%

Total operating revenues 3,018,227 2,665,456 352,771 13.2%
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and amortization 987,357 778,896 (208,461) (26.8)%
Selling, general and administrative 785,179 764,799 (20,380) (2.7)%
Total segment profit 1,245,691 1,121,761 123,930 11.0%
Depreciation 73,112 73,849 737 1.0%
Amortization 68,647 55,603 (13,044) (23.5)%
Operating income 1,103,932 992,309 111,623 11.2%
Interest expense, net (108,047) (52,687) (55,360) (105.1)%
Equity in earnings of affiliates 80,916 85,631 (4,715) (5.5)%
Gain on derivatives 50,256 2,810 47,446 NM
Miscellaneous, net (5,193) (212) (4,981) NM
Income from operations before income taxes $ 1,121,864 $ 1,027,851 $ 94,013 9.1%
Segment profit (loss):t

U.S. Networks $ 1,337,189 $ 1,268,417 $ 68,772 5.4%
International Networks 30,893 (41,854) 72,747 (173.8)%
Corporate and Other (122,391) (104,802) (17,589) (16.8)%

Total segment profit $ 1,245,691 $ 1,121,761 $ 123,930 11.0%

U.S. Networks

U.S. Networks includes our six national television networks: HGTV, Food Network, Travel Channel, DIY Network,
Cooking Channel and Great American Country. Additionally, U.S. Networks includes websites associated with the 
aforementioned television brands and other internet and digital businesses serving home, food, travel and other 
lifestyle-related categories. U.S. Networks also includes our digital content studio, Scripps Lifestyle Studios. We
own 100.0 percent of each of our networks, with the exception of Food Network and Cooking Channel, of which we
own 68.7 percent. Each of our networks is distributed by cable and satellite operators, telecommunication suppliers 
and other digital service providers. 
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U.S Networks’ Results of Operations 
2016 Compared with 2015

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)

% Change
Fav / 

(Unfav)
Segment operating revenues:

Advertising $ 2,029,095 $ 1,851,574 $ 177,521 9.6%
Distribution 785,849 800,134 (14,285) (1.8)%
Other 56,480 64,955 (8,475) (13.0)%

Segment operating revenues 2,871,424 2,716,663 154,761 5.7%
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and 
amortization 887,554 794,387 (93,167) (11.7)%
Selling, general and administrative 570,420 585,087 14,667 2.5%

Segment profit 1,413,450 1,337,189 76,261 5.7%
Depreciation 59,298 59,428 130 0.2%
Amortization 40,220 40,166 (54) (0.1)%
Segment operating income $ 1,313,932 $ 1,237,595 $ 76,337 6.2%

Supplemental segment information:
Equity in earnings of affiliates $ 23,943 $ 43,851 $ (19,908) (45.4)%
Program amortization $ 783,310 $ 696,232 $ (87,078) (12.5)%
Program payments $ 746,415 $ 764,154 $ 17,739 2.3%
Capital expenditures $ 45,865 $ 40,120 $ (5,745) (14.3)%

U.S. Networks generated operating revenues of $2,871.4 million, an increase of $154.8 million, or 5.7 percent, for 
the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the same period of 2015, with $177.5 million, or 9.6 percent, 
growth in advertising sales during 2016 compared with the respective period in 2015, primarily driven by strong 
pricing. U.S. Networks’ advertising sales represented 70.7 percent and 68.2 percent of U.S. Networks’ total 
operating revenues in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Advertising sales growth was partially offset by a decline in distribution fees of $14.3 million, or 1.8 percent, in 
2016 compared with the respective period in 2015, primarily driven by a rate equalization resulting from the 
consolidation of certain distributor agreements and a decrease in the number of subscribers receiving our networks, 
partially offset by negotiated contractual rate increases and revenues generated from new over-the-top and digital 
entrants, such as those providers streaming on-demand services. U.S. Networks’ distribution fees represented 27.4 
percent and 29.5 percent of U.S. Networks’f  total operating revenues in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Cost of services increased $93.2 million, or 11.7 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the 
respective period in 2015. Program amortization increased $87.1 million, or 12.5 percent, in 2016 compared with the 
same period in 2015 and represented 50.3 percent and 47.1 percent of US Networks’ total operating expenses in
2016 and 2015, respectively. The year-over-year fluctuation in program amortization was impacted by higher than 
normal program impairments that totaled $90.1 million in 2016 and $69.8 million in 2015. Cost of services included 
$5.5 million of Reorganization costs incurred during 2016, while $2.8 million of costs related to the Restructuring 
Plan were incurred during 2015.

Selling, general and administrative decreased $14.7 million, or 2.5 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 
compared with the respective period in 2015. Selling, general and administrative included $5.0 million of 
Reorganization costs incurred during 2016, while $5.8 million of costs related to the Restructuring Plan and $3.1 
million of Reorganization costs were incurred during 2015.
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Equity in earnings of affiliates decreased $19.9 million, or 45.4 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 
compared with the same period in 2015, primarily driven by the sale of our 7.3 percent equity interest in Fox Sports 
South in the first quarter of 2016.f

U.S. Networks’ Supplemental Information l
2016 Compared with 2015

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Operating revenues by network:

HGTV $ 1,089,616 $ 1,007,706 $ 81,910 8.1%
Food Network 932,617 891,578 41,039 4.6%
Travel Channel 321,209 309,157 12,052 3.9%
DIY Network 167,944 167,421 523 0.3%
Cooking Channel 141,218 134,783 6,435 4.8%
Great American Country 29,496 30,487 (991) (3.3)%
Digital 149,815 136,932 12,883 9.4%
Other 41,259 42,953 (1,694) (3.9)%
Intrasegment eliminations (1,750) (4,354) 2,604 NM

Total segment operating revenues $ 2,871,424 $ 2,716,663 $ 154,761 5.7%

U.S Networks’ Results of Operations 
2015 Compared with 2014

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2015 2014
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Segment operating revenues:

Advertising $ 1,851,574 $ 1,787,647 $ 63,927 3.6%
Distribution 800,134 755,950 44,184 5.8%
Other 64,955 44,760 20,195 45.1%

Segment operating revenues 2,716,663 2,588,357 128,306 5.0%
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and amortization 794,387 717,867 (76,520) (10.7)%
Selling, general and administrative 585,087 602,073 16,986 2.8%

Segment profit 1,337,189 1,268,417 68,772 5.4%
Depreciation 59,428 64,490 5,062 7.8%
Amortization 40,166 48,318 8,152 16.9%
Segment operating income $ 1,237,595 $ 1,155,609 $ 81,986 7.1%

Supplemental segment information:
Equity in earnings of affiliates $ 43,851 $ 42,613 $ 1,238 2.9%
Program amortization $ 696,232 $ 606,690 $ (89,542) (14.8)%
Program payments $ 764,154 $ 705,817 $ (58,337) (8.3)%
Capital expenditures $ 40,120 $ 50,042 $ 9,922 19.8%

U.S. Networks generated operating revenues of $2,716.7 million, an increase of $128.3 million, or 5.0 percent, for 
the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with the same period in 2014, with growth in both advertising sales 
and distribution fees revenues. U.S. Networks’ operating revenues included a $63.9 million, or 3.6 percent, growth 
in advertising sales during 2015 compared with the respective period in 2014, primarily driven by strong pricing.
U.S. Networks’ advertising sales represented 68.2 percent and 69.1 percent of U.S. Networks’ total operating 
revenues in 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

Advertising sales growth was supplemented with distribution fees growth of $44.2 million, or 5.8 percent, in 2015
compared with the respective period in 2014, primarily driven by negotiated contractual rate increases, slightly 
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offset by a decrease in the number of subscribers receiving our networks. U.S. Networks’ total distribution fees 
represented 29.5 percent and 29.2 percent of U.S. Networks’ total operating revenues in 2015 and 2014, 
respectively.

Cost of services increased $76.5 million, or 10.7 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with the 
respective period in 2014. Program amortization increased $89.5 million, or 14.8 percent, in 2015 compared with the 
same period in 2014 and represented 47.1 percent and 42.3 percent of US Networks’ total operating expenses in
2015 and 2014, respectively. The year-over-year fluctuation in program amortization was impacted by program 
impairments that totaled $69.8 million in 2015 and $38.4 million in 2014. Cost of services included $2.8 million and
$3.9 million of costs related to the Restructuring Plan incurred during 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Selling, general and administrative decreased $17.0 million, or 2.8 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2015 
compared with the respective period in 2014. Selling, general and administrative included $5.8 million of costs 
related to the Restructuring Plan and $3.1 million of Reorganization costs incurred during 2015, while $8.2 million 
of costs related to the Restructuring Plan were incurred during 2014. The 2.8 percent decrease in selling, general and 
administrative in 2015 reflects the benefit of reduced on-going employee costs associated with the Restructuring 
Plan. 

U.S. Networks’ Supplemental Information l
2015 Compared with 2014

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2015 2014
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Operating revenues by network:

HGTV $ 1,007,706 $ 938,475 $ 69,231 7.4%
Food Network 891,578 888,533 3,045 0.3%
Travel Channel 309,157 314,199 (5,042) (1.6)%
DIY Network 167,421 152,094 15,327 10.1%
Cooking Channel 134,783 120,835 13,948 11.5%
Great American Country 30,487 30,154 333 1.1%
Digital 136,932 122,062 14,870 12.2%
Other 42,953 27,547 15,406 55.9%
Intrasegment eliminations (4,354) (5,542) 1,188 NM

Total segment operating revenues $ 2,716,663 $ 2,588,357 $ 128,306 5.0%

International Networks

International Networks includes the TVN portfolio of networks and other lifestyle-oriented networks available in the
UK, EMEA, APAC and Latin America. International Networks also includes our 50.0 percent share of the results of 
UKTV, a general entertainment and lifestyle platform in the UK. 
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International Networks’ Results of Operations ’
2016 Compared with 2015

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Segment operating revenues:

Advertising $ 387,308 $ 210,956 $ 176,352 83.6%
Distribution 108,529 74,850 33,679 45.0%
Other 61,215 42,085 19,130 45.5%

Segment operating revenues 557,052 327,891 229,161 69.9%
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and amortization 324,429 206,321 (118,108) (57.2)%
Selling, general and administrative 132,226 90,677 (41,549) (45.8)%

Segment profit 100,397 30,893 69,504 225.0%
Depreciation 12,205 10,760 (1,445) (13.4)%
Amortization 83,222 28,481 (54,741) (192.2)%
Goodwill write-down 57,878 - (57,878) NM
Segment operating income (loss) $ (52,908)$ (8,348)$ (44,560) (533.8)%

Equity in earnings of affiliates $ 47,439 $ 37,065 $ 10,374 28.0%
Program amortization $ 168,861 $ 87,224 $ (81,637) (93.6)%
Program payments $ 169,071 $ 111,400 $ (57,671) (51.8)%
Capital expenditures $ 22,983 $ 10,424 $ (12,559) (120.5)%

International Networks generated operating revenues of $557.1 million, an increase of $229.2 million, or 69.9
percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the same period in 2015, primarily attributed to the 
inclusion of TVN’s results for the entire twelve months in 2016 as well as growth in both advertising sales and 
distribution fees revenues. International Networks’ operating revenues included a $176.4 million, or 83.6 percent,
growth in advertising sales during 2016 compared with the respective period in 2015, primarily driven by the 
inclusion of TVN’s results for the entire twelve months in 2016. International Networks’ advertising sales
represented 69.5 percent and 64.3 percent of International Networks’ total operating revenues in 2016 and 2015, 
respectively.

Advertising sales growth was supplemented with distribution fees growth of $33.7 million, or 45.0 percent, in 2016
compared with the respective period in 2015, also driven by the inclusion of TVN’s results for the entire twelve 
months in 2016. International Networks’ distribution fees represented 19.5 percent and 22.8 percent off International
Networks’ total operating revenues in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Cost of services increased $118.1 million, or 57.2 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the 
respective period in 2015, inclusive of TVN’s results for the entire twelve months in 2016. Program amortization
increased $81.6 million, or 93.6 percent, in 2016 compared with the same period in 2015 and represented 27.7 
percent and 25.9 percent of International Networks’ total operating expenses in 2016 andf  2015, respectively.

Selling, general and administrative increased $41.5 million, or 45.8 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared with the respective period in 2015, inclusive of TVN’s results for the entire twelve months in 2016. 
Selling, general and administrative included $11.2 million of TVN transaction and integration related expenses 
incurred during 2016, while $4.6 million of TVN transaction and integration expenses were incurred during 2015.

Amortization increased $54.7 million, or 192.2 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the 
same period in 2015, primarily driven by the long-lived intangible assets recognized as a result of the Acquisition as 
well as $15.9 million of accelerated amortization related the write-down of certain long-lived intangible assets in our 
APAC reporting unit.
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Goodwill write-down increased $57.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared with the same period 
in 2015 as a result of the impairment of our APAC and EMEA reporting units. 

Equity in earnings of affiliates for International Networks accounted for approximately 66.5 percent of consolidated 
equity in earnings of affiliates and was primarily driven by the results of UKTV. Our 50.0 percent portion of 
UKTV’s earnings, net of amortization, was $33.1 million in 2016 compared with $29.7 million in 2015, representing
a $3.4 million, or 11.4 percent increase year-over-year. Equity in earnings of affiliates also included profits of $7.4
million and losses of $0.7 million related to nC+ and Onet, TVN’s equity investments, in 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, which were reduced by amortization of $0.9 million and $4.9 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

International Networks’ Results of Operations ’
2015 Compared with 2014

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2015 2014
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Segment operating revenues:

Advertising $ 210,956 $ 28,741 $ 182,215 634.0%
Distribution 74,850 43,228 31,622 73.2%
Other 42,085 18,211 23,874 131.1%

Segment operating revenues 327,891 90,180 237,711 263.6%
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and 
amortization 206,321 67,547 (138,774) (205.4)%
Selling, general and administrative 90,677 64,487 (26,190) (40.6)%

Segment profit (loss) 30,893 (41,854) 72,747 173.8%
Depreciation 10,760 4,252 (6,508) (153.1)%
Amortization 28,481 7,285 (21,196) (291.0)%
Segment operating loss $ (8,348)$ (53,391)$ 45,043 (84.4)%

Supplemental segment information:
Equity in earnings of affiliates $ 37,065 $ 43,018 $ (5,953) (13.8)%
Program amortization $ 87,224 $ 21,162 $ (66,062) (312.2)%
Program payments $ 111,400 $ 19,765 $ (91,635) (463.6)%
Capital expenditures $ 10,424 $ 8,212 $ (2,212) (26.9)%

International Networks generated operating revenues of $327.9 million, an increase of $237.7 million, for the year 
ended 2015 compared with the same period in 2014, primarily attributed to the inclusion of TVN’s results for six 
months in 2015 as well as growth in both advertising sales and distribution fees revenues. International Networks’
operating revenues included a $182.2 million growth in advertising sales during 2015 compared with the respective
period in 2014, primarily driven by the inclusion of TVN’s results for six months in 2015. International Networks’ 
advertising sales represented 64.3 percent and 31.9 percent of International Networks’ total operating revenues in
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Advertising sales growth was supplemented with distribution fees growth of $31.6 million in 2015 compared with
the respective period in 2014, also driven by the inclusion of TVN’s results for six months in 2015. International
Networks’ distribution fees represented 22.8 percent and 47.9 percent of International Networks’ total operating
revenues in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Cost of services increased $138.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with the respective
period in 2014, inclusive of TVN’s results for six months in 2015. Program amortization increased $66.1 million in 
2015 compared with the same period in 2014 and represented 25.9 percent and 14.7 percent of International
Networks’ total operating expenses in 2015 and 2014, respectively.d
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Selling, general and administrative increased $26.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with 
the respective period in 2014, inclusive of TVN’s results for six months in 2015. Selling, general and administrative
included $4.6 million of TVN transaction and integration related expenses incurred during 2015. 

Amortization increased $21.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with the same period in 
2014, primarily driven by the long-lived intangible assets recognized as a result of the Acquisition.

Equity in earnings of affiliates for International Networks accounted for nearly 45.8 percent of consolidated equity 
in earnings of affiliates and was primarily driven by the results of UKTV. Our 50.0 percent portion of UKTV’s
earnings, net of amortization, was $29.7 million in 2015 compared with $25.5 million in 2014, representing a $4.2 
million, or 16.5 percent increase year-over-year. Equity in earnings of affiliates also included a loss of $0.7 million 
related to nC+ and Onet, TVN’s equity investments, in 2015, which was reduced by amortization of $4.9 million in
2015.

Corporate and Other

Corporate and Other includes the results of businesses not separately identified as reportable segments for external 
financial reporting purposes and will continue to be disclosed separately from the results of U.S. Networks and 
International Networks. The Company generally does not allocate employee-related corporate overhead costs to its 
reportable segments, but rather classifies these expenses within Corporate and Other.

The Corporate and Other loss included $5.8 million of Reorganization costs and $4.0 of TVN transaction and 
integration expenses incurred during 2016. Corporate and Other includes $23.6 million of TVN transaction and
integration related expenses and $7.5 million of costs related to the Restructuring Plan incurred during 2015 and 
$2.3 million of costs related to the Restructuring Plan incurred during 2014. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents on hand, cash flows from operations, available 
borrowing capacity under our Amended Revolving Credit Facility and access to capital markets. Advertising
revenues provide between approximately 68.0 percent and 71.0 percent of consolidated total operating revenues, so
cash flow from operating activities can be adversely affected during recessionary periods. Our cash and cash 
equivalents totaled $122.9 million at December 31, 2016 and $223.4 million at December 31, 2015. Our Amended
Revolving Credit Facility permits $900.0 million in aggregate borrowings, with the option to increase up to $1,150.0
million, and expires in March 2020, with the exception of $32.5 million, which expires in March 2019. There were 
$475.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility at December 31, 2016. 
During the fourth quarter of 2016, we repaid the TVN 2020 Notes and the 2016 Notes, which were funded by a
combination of cash from operating activities and borrowings against the Amended Revolving Credit Facility.

In the fourth quarter of 2014, we issued $1,000.0 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes whose net
proceeds were primarily used to repay the 2015 Notes. In the second quarter of 2015, we issued $1,500.0 million 
aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes and also entered into the $250.0 million Term Loan agreement, whose 
net proceeds were primarily used to fundd  thed  Transactions.

We are in compliance with all financial covenants at December 31, 2016.
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Our cash flow has primarily been used to fund acquisitions and investments, develop new businesses, pay dividends 
on our common stock and repay debt. We expect cash flows generated from operating activities in 2017 to provide 
sufficient liquidity to fund our operations.

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Cash provided by operating activities $ 948,826 $ 812,984 $ 135,842 16.7%
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities 140,731 (604,500) 745,231 123.3%
Cash used in financing activities (1,175,443) (875,743) (299,700) (34.2)%
Effect of exchange rate of cash and cash equivalents (14,621) 12,539 (27,160) (216.6)%
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (100,507) (654,720) 554,213 84.6%
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period 223,444 878,164 (654,720) (74.6)%
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $ 122,937 $ 223,444 $ (100,507) (45.0)%

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2015 2014
$ Change

Fav / (Unfav)
% Change

Fav / (Unfav)
Cash provided by operating activities $ 812,984 $ 789,813 $ 23,171 2.9%
Cash used in investing activities (604,500) (78,337) (526,163) (671.7)%
Cash used in financing activities (875,743) (517,231) (358,512) (69.3)%
Effect of exchange rate of cash and cash equivalents 12,539 (2,452) 14,991 611.4%
(Decrease) increase in cash and cashd  equivalents (654,720) 191,793 (846,513) (441.4)%
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period 878,164 686,371 191,793 27.9%
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $ 223,444 $ 878,164 $ (654,720) (74.6)%

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $100.5 million and $654.7 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively, and 
increased $191.8 million in 2014. Components of these changes are discussed below in more detail.

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities totaled $948.8 million in 2016, $813.0 million in 2015 and $789.8 million in
2014. Operating income totaled $1,148.6 million in 2016, $1,103.9 million in 2015 and $992.3 million in 2014. 
Growth in total operating revenues of $383.2 million, or 12.7 percent, for the year ended December 31, 2016 
compared with the same period in 2015 were primarily driven by the inclusion of TVN’s results for the entire twelve 
months in 2016 compared with the same period in 2015, which includes TVN’s results for only six months. Growth
in total operating revenues of $352.8 million, or 13.2 percent, was primarily driven by the inclusion of TVN’s 
results for six months in 2015 and not at all in 2014. The increase in total operating revenues in 2016 compared with 
2015 and 2015 compared with 2014 was the primary driver of the growth in operating income in the respective
years. Program amortization exceeded program payments by $18.9 million in 2016, increasing cash provided by 
operating activities. Program payments exceeded program amortization by $92.1 million in 2015 and $104.4 million 
in 2014, reducing cash provided by operating activities for the respective periods. Cash provided by operating 
activities was also reduced for income taxes and interest payments paid, totaling $539.4 million in 2016, $414.3 
million in 2015 and $355.4 million in 2014 and was increased for dividends received from equity investments, 
totaling $65.3 million in 2016, $93.6 million in 2015 and $104.2 million in 2014.

Investing Activities

Cash provided by investing activities totaled $140.7 million in 2016, and cash used in investing activities totaled 
$604.5 million and $78.3 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Capital expenditures totaled $74.4 million in 2016, 
$52.5 million in 2015 and $53.8 million in 2014.

In the first quarter of 2016, we sold our 7.3 percent interest in Fox Sports South for $225.0 million. Additionally, in 
the second quarter of 2016, we sold a cost method investment for $1.5 million. f

In the third quarter of 2015, we acquired N-Vision for consideration of $539.3 million of cash outflows, net of cash
acquired, plus debt assumed. This resulted in a 52.7 percent controlling interest in TVN. Additionally, in 2015 we 
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paid a $16.0 million premium for a call option on Euros to fund the Acquisition, which is included as a cash
outflow, while the $65.8 million settlement on various derivatives contracts related to the Transactions positively 
impacted cash flows in 2015.

Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities totaled $1,175.4 million in 2016, $875.7 million in 2015 and $517.2 million in 
2014.

In 2016, we paid $99.0 million to purchase the remaining 35.0 percent non-controlling interest in Travel Channel 
and $4.5 million to purchase the remaining 30.0 percent non-controlling interest in FNLA.

In 2016, we repaid the 2020 TVN Notes for $380.6 million, which is included within early extinguishment of debt.
Also, in 2016 we repaid the 2016 Notes, totaling $500.0 million. Additionally, in 2016 we incurred $475.0 million 
of draws and made $390.0 million of repayments on our Amended Revolving Credit Facility.f

In 2015, we paid $853.9 million to acquire the 47.3 percent non-controlling interest of outstanding TVN shares 
through the Tender Offer and Squeeze-out. Additionally, in 2015 we retired the 2018 TVN Notes and 2021 PIK
Note, totaling $652.1 million, which are included within early extinguishment of debt.f

In 2015, we issued $1,500.0 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes consisting of the 2020 Notes, the 
2022 Notes and the 2025 Notes. As a result of issuing the $1,500.0 million in Senior Notes, we incurred $14.5 
million of deferred loan costs. In 2015, we also entered into the $250.0 million Term Loan. Additionally, in 2015 we 
incurred $1,435.5 million of draws and made $1,045.0 million of repayments on our Amended Credit Revolving 
Facility.

In 2015, we repaid the 2015 Notes, retired the 2021 PIK Notes, redeemed €43.0 million of the 2020 TVN Notes in 
both September and November 2015 and retired ther  2018 TVN Notes.

In 2014, we issued $1,000.0 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes consisting of $500.0 million of the
2019 Notes and $500.0 million of the 2024 Notes. 

Our Repurchase Programs authorized by the Board permits us to acquire the Company’s Class A Common Shares. 
There is no expiration date for the Repurchase Programs, and we are under no commitment or obligation to
repurchase any particular amount of Class A Common Shares under the Repurchase Programs. We did not make any 
repurchases during 2016. During 2015, we repurchased 4.0 million shares for $288.5 million, including 3.0 million 
shares repurchased for $216.8 million from Scripps family members. During 2014, we repurchased 15.4 million 
shares for approximately $1,200.0 million, including 4.5 million shares repurchased for $339.5 million from Scripps 
family members.

We have paid quarterly dividends since our inception as a public company on July 1, 2008. During the first quarter 
of 2016, the Board approved an increase in the quarterly dividend rate to $0.25 per share. Total dividend payments 
to shareholders of our Class A Common Shares and Common Voting Shares were $129.7 million in 2016, $118.9
million in 2015 and $112.9 million in 2014. We currently expect that quarterly cash dividends will continue to be
paid in the future. However, future dividends are subject to our earnings, financial condition and capital
requirements and are not guaranteed.

Pursuant to the terms of the Food Network Partnership agreement, the Partnership is required to distribute available
cash to the general partners. After providing distributions to the partners for respective tax liabilities, available cash 
is then applied against any capital contributions made by partners prior to distributions based upon each partners’ 
ownership interest in the Partnership. During 2012, remaining outstanding capital contributions were returned to the 
respective partners. Cash distributions to Food Network’s non-controlling interest partner were $157.7 million in 
2016, $164.2 million in 2015 and $189.3 million in 2014. Cash distributions to Travel Channel’s non-controlling
interest partner were zero in 2016, $13.0 million in 2015 and $27.6 million in 2014. Cash distributions to other non-
controlling interests were zero in 2016, $12.3 million in 2015 and zero in 2014.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Off-balance sheet arrangements include the following four categories: obligations under certain guarantees or
contracts, retained or contingent interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity or similar arrangements,
obligations under certain derivative instruments and obligations under materiald  variable interests.

We may use operational and economic hedges, as well as currency exchange rate and interest rate derivative
instruments, to manage the impact of currency exchange rate changes on earnings and cash flows. In order to 
minimize earnings and cash flow volatility resulting from currency exchange rate changes, we may enter into 
derivative instruments, principally forward currency exchange rate contracts. These contracts are designed to hedge
anticipated foreign currency transactions and changes in the value of specific assets, liabilities and probable 
commitments.

We do not enter currency exchange rate derivative instruments for speculative purposes. We have not entered into 
arrangements that fall under any of the four categories noted above that would be reasonably likely to have a current 
or future material effect on our results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

Our contractual obligations under certain contracts are included in the following table.

Contractual Obligations

A summary of our contractual cash commitments asf  of December 31, 2016 were as follows:

Less than Years Years Over
(in thousands) 1 Year 2 & 3 4 & 5 5 Years Total
Debt:

Principal amounts 250,000 532,500 1,042,500 1,400,000 3,225,000
Interest on debt 94,630 183,266 116,373 130,781 525,050

Programming:
Available for broadcast 70,403 6,661 - - 77,064
Not yet available for broadcast 289,074 70,640 9,806 - 369,520
Talent contracts 29,217 9,638 - - 38,855

Operating leases:
Non-cancelable 29,573 50,638 38,657 1,960 120,828
Cancelable 2,671 4,830 3,407 437 11,345

Pension obligations:
Minimum pension/SERP funding 13,237 17,707 21,519 30,596 83,059

Other commitments:
Satellite transmission 51,570 48,127 13,497 6,344 119,538
Non-cancelable purchase and service
commitments 19,053 16,359 6,153 3,583 45,148
Other purchase and service commitments 55,350 85,139 2,190 2,007 144,686

Total contractual cash obligations $ 904,778 $1,025,505 $1,254,102 $1,575,708 $ 4,760,093

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into multi-year contracts to obtain distribution of our networks, license
or produce programming, secure on-air talent, lease office space and equipment, obtain satellite transmission 
services and purchase other goods and services.
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Debt

Principal payments on long-term debt reflect the repayment of the Amended Revolving Credit Facility, the Term 
Loan and the various senior notes assuming repayment will occur upon maturity. Interest payments on the fixed rate 
notes are projected based on the contractual rate and maturity of the note. Borrowings under the Amended 
Revolving Credit Facility incur interest charges based on the Company’s credit rating with drawn amounts incurring 
interest at LIBOR plus a range of 69 to 130 basis points and a facility fee ranging from 6 to 20 basis points, also 
subject to the Company’s credit ratings. Borrowings on the Term Loan incur interest at LIBOR plus a range of 62.5
to 137.5 basis points, also subject to the Company’s credit ratings.

Programming

Program licenses generally require payments over the terms of the agreements. Licensed programming includes 
programs that have been delivered and are available for telecast.

We also enter into contracts with certain independent producers for the production of programming that airs on our 
national television networks. Production contracts generally require us to purchase a specified number of episodes of
the program. If the programs are not produced, our commitmentsr  would generally expire without obligation.

We expect to enter into additional program licenses and production contracts to meet our futurer  programming needs.

Talent Contracts

We secure on-air talent through multi-year talent agreements. Certain agreements may be terminated under certain 
circumstances or at certain dates prior to expiration. We expect our key talent contracts will be renewed or replaced 
with similar agreements upon their expiration. Amounts due under the contracts, assuming the contracts are not 
terminated prior to their expiration, are included in the contractual commitments table.

Operating Leases

We obtain certain office space under multi-year lease agreements. Leases for office space are generally not
cancelable prior to their expiration.

We also enter into leases for operating and office equipment which are generally cancelable by either party on 30 to
90 days’ notice; however, we expect such contracts will remain in force throughout the terms of the leases.

The amounts included in the table above represent the amounts due under the agreements assuming the agreements
are not canceled prior to their expiration. Generally, we expect our operating leases will be renewed or replaced with 
similar agreements upon their expiration.

Defined Benefit Plans

We sponsor a qualified defined benefit pension plan (“Pension Plan”) that covers certain of our U.S.-based 
employees. We also have a non-qualified Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”).

Contractual commitments summarized in the contractual obligations table include payments to meet minimum 
funding requirements of our Pension Plan in 2017 and estimated benefit payments for our SERP. Payments for the 
SERP have been estimated over a ten year period. Accordingly, the amounts in the over five years column include
estimated payments for the 2022 through 2026 periods. While benefit payments under these plans are expected to 
continue beyond 2026, we believe it is not practicablet  to estimate payments beyond this period.d

Income Tax Obligationsx

The contractual obligations table does not include any amounts for income taxes due to the fact that we are unable to 
reasonably predict the ultimate amount or timing of settlement of our reserves for income taxes. As of December 31,
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2016, our reserves for income taxes totaled $151.8 million and are reflected in other liabilities on our consolidated
balance sheets (see Note 12-Income Taxes).

Other Purchase Commitments

We obtain satellite transmission, audience ratings, market research and certain other services under multi-year 
agreements. These agreements are generally not cancelable prior to expiration of the service agreement. We expect 
such agreements will be renewed or replaced with similar agreements upon their expiration.

We may also enter into contracts with certain vendors and suppliers. These contracts typically do not require the
purchase of fixed or minimum quantities and generally may be terminated at any time without penalty. Included in 
the table of contractual obligations are purchase orders placed as of December 31, 2016. Purchase orders placed with 
vendors, including those with whom we maintain contractual relationships, are generally cancelable prior to 
shipment. While these vendor agreements do not require us to purchase a minimum quantity of goods or services, 
and we may generally cancel orders prior to shipment, we expect expenditures for goods and services in future 
periods will approximate those in prior years.

Redeemable Non-controlling Interests

A non-controlling owner previously held a 35.0 percent residual interest in the Travel Channel. The owner of the 
non-controlling interest had a put option requiring us to purchase their interest, and we had a call option to acquire 
their interest. We exercised our call option and executed a contract on February 25, 2016 for an agreed upon price of 
$99.0 million. We now own 100.0 percent of Travel Channel. 

A non-controlling owner previously held a 30.0 percent interest in FNLA. In September 2016 we reached an 
agreement with the owner of the non-controlling interest in FNLA to purchase their interest in the entity for $4.5
million and closed this transaction in December 2016.  We now own 100.0 percent of FNLA.f

The Food Network and Cooking Channel are operated and organized under the terms of the Partnership. The 
Company and a non-controlling owner hold interests in the Partnership. During the fourth quarter of 2016, the 
Partnership agreement was extended and specifies a dissolution date of December 31, r 2020. If the term of the 
Partnership is not extended prior to that date, the Partnership agreement permits the Company, as holder of 80.0
percent of the applicable votes, to reconstitute the Partnership and continue its business. If for some reason the 
Partnership is not continued, it will be required to limit its activities to winding up, settling debts, liquidating assets 
and distributing proceeds to the partners in proportion to their partnership interests. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions that affect amounts and related disclosures reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying footnotes, including the selection of appropriate accounting principles that reflect the 
economic substance of the underlying transactions and the assumptions on which to base accounting estimates. In
reaching such decisions, judgment is applied based on analysis of the relevant circumstances, including historical
experience, actuarial studies and other assumptions. We are committed to incorporating accounting principles, 
assumptions and estimates that promote the representational faithfulness, verifiability, neutrality and transparency of 
the accounting information included in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the consolidated financial statements describes the 
significant accounting policies we have selected for use in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements 
and related disclosures. We believe the following to be the most critical accounting policies, estimates and
assumptions affecting our reported amounts and related disclosures.
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Programs and Program Licenses

Production costs foff r programs produced by us or foff r us are capitalized as program assets. Such costs include
direct production costs, production overhead, development costs and acquired production costs. Program licenses
generally have fiff xed terms, limit the number of times we can air the programs and require payments over the
terms of the licenses. Licensed program assets and liabilities are recorded when programs become available foff r
airing. Program assets are amortized over their estimated usefuff l lives, commencing on their fiff rst airing and
typically on an accelerated basis based on fuff ture cash flff ows.

Estimated future cash flows are based on revenues previously generated from similar content and planned program 
usage, which can change based upon market acceptance, advertising sales and distribution fees and the number of 
subscribers receiving our networks. Planned program usage is based on our current expectations of future airings 
taking into account historical usage and of similar content. Accordingly, we periodically review revenue estimates 
and planned usage and revise our assumptions if necessary. If actual demand or market conditions are less favorable 
than projected, a write-down to net realizable value is recorded. Development costs for programs that we have
determined will not be produced are expensed.d

Acquisitions

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are recorded at fair value. We generally determine
fair values using comparisons to market transactions and discounted cash flow analyses. The use of a discounted 
cash flow analysis requires significant judgment for estimating future cash flows of the asset and expected period of
time over which those cash flows will occur and the determination of an appropriate discount rate. Changes in such
estimates could affect the amounts allocated to individual identifiable assets. While we believe our assumptions are 
reasonable, if different assumptions were made, the amounts allocated to finite-lived and indefinite-lived intangible
assets could differ substantially from the reported amounts, and the associated amortization charge could also differ.

Goodwill

Goodwill for each reporting unit is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level at least annually, or when events 
occur or circumstancesr  change that would indicate the fair value of a reporting unit may be below its carrying value.f

To determine the fair value of a reporting unit, we generally use market data, appraised values and discounted cash
flow analyses. The use of a discounted cash flow analysis requires significant judgment to estimate the future cash
flows derived from the asset or business, the expected period of time over which those cash flows will occur and the
determination of an appropriate discount rate. Changes in our estimates and projections or changes in our established 
reporting units could materially affect the determination of fair value for each reporting unit.

The annual goodwill impairment test allows for the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it
is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount. An entity may
choose to perform the qualitative assessment on none, some or all of its reporting units, or an entity may bypass the
qualitative assessment for any reporting unit and proceed directly to step one of the quantitative impairment test. If it 
is determined, on the basis of qualitative factors, that the fair value of a reporting unit is, more likely than not, less 
than its carrying value, the quantitative impairment test is required.

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

Finite-lived intangible assets (e.g., network distribution rights, customer and advertiser lists, tradenames, broadcast 
licenses and other acquired rights) are tested for impairment when a triggering event occurs. Such triggering events 
include the significant disposal of a portion of such assets or the occurrence of an adverse change in the market 
involving the business employing the related asset. Once a triggering event has occurred, the impairment test
employed is based on whether the intent is to hold the asset for continued use or to hold the asset for sale. If the 
intent is to hold the asset for continued use, the impairment test first requires a comparison of undiscounted future 
cash flows to the carrying value of the asset. If the carrying value of such asset exceeds the undiscounted cash flows, 
the asset is deemed to be impaired. Impairment would then be measured as the difference between the fair value of 
the asset and its carrying value with fair value generally determined by discounting the future cash flows associated 
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with that asset. If the intent is to hold the asset for sale and certain other criteria are met (e.g., the asset can currently
be disposed of, appropriate levels of authority have approved the sale or there is an actively pursuing buyer), the
impairment test involves comparing the asset’s carrying value to its fair value. To the extent the carrying value is
greater than the asset’s fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference. 

Significant judgments in this area involve determining whether a triggering event has occurred, estimating future
cash flows of the assets involved and selectingd  the discount rate to be applied in determining fair value.

Income Taxes

The application of income tax law is inherently complex. As such, we are required to make many assumptions and 
judgments regarding our income tax positions and the likelihood of whether such tax positions would be sustained if 
challenged. Interpretations and guidance surrounding income tax laws and regulations may change over time. As
such, changes in our assumptions and judgments can materially affect amounts recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements.

We have deferred tax assets and record valuation allowances to reduce such deferred tax assets to the amount that is
more likely than not to be realized. We consider on-going prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing
the need for a valuation allowance. In the event we determine that a deferred tax asset would be greater or less than 
the net amount recorded, an adjustment is made to the tax provision in that period.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, delivery occurs or services are 
rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinabled  and collectability is reasonably assured.

New Accounting Standards

A discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements is provided in Note 3-Accounting - Standards Updates of
the notes to consolidated financial statements.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk related to interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. We use, or expect to use, 
derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to risks from fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates and to limit the impact of our earnings and cash flows. In accordance with our policy, we do not use 
derivative instruments unless there is an underlying exposure, and we do not hold or enter into derivative
instruments for speculative trading purposes.

We are subject to interest rate risk associated with our Amended Revolving Credit Facility, as borrowings bear 
interest at LIBOR plus a spread that is determined by our Company’s debt rating. Accordingly, the interest we pay 
on our borrowings is dependent on interest rate conditions and the timing of our financing needs. Aggregate 
principal amounts of outstanding debt at December 31, 2016 included $1,486.6 million of Senior Notes issued in
June 2015, which includes the 2020 Notes, the 2022 Notes and the 2025 Notes, a $249.9 million Term Loan, also 
issued in June 2015, and $990.8 million of Senior Notes issued in November 2014, which includes the 2019 Notes 
and the 2024 Notes. A 100 basis point increase or decrease in the blended level of interest rates, respectively, would 
decrease or increase the total aggregate fair value of all outstanding Senior Notes by approximately $123.8 million 
and $120.1 million, respectively.
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The following table presents additional information about market-risk-sensitive financial instruments as of
December 31:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

(in thousands) Maturity
Net Carrying 

Amount Fair Value
Net Carrying 

Amount Fair Value
Financial instruments subject to 
interest rate risk:
Amended Revolving Credit Facility 2019-2020 $ 475,000 $ 475,000 $ 389,170 $ 389,170
Term Loan 2017 249,932 249,932 249,129 249,129
2.70% Senior Notes 2016 - - 499,174 504,415
2.75% Senior Notes 2019 496,855 506,575 495,750 494,290
TVN 7.38% Senior Notes 2020 - - 399,986 408,110
2.80% Senior Notes 2020 595,224 602,946 593,796 585,558
3.50% Senior Notes 2022 396,065 404,784 395,309 388,348
3.90% Senior Notes 2024 493,977 507,470 493,210 480,490
3.95% Senior Notes 2025 495,333 508,155 494,748 478,475
Total debt $ 3,202,386 $ 3,254,862 $ 4,010,272 $ 3,977,985

We are also subject to interest rate risk associated with the notes receivable acquired in the UKTV transaction. The 
notes, totaling $93.9 million at December 31, 2016 and $112.1 million at December 31, 2015. The note accrues
interest at variable rates related to either the spread over LIBOR or other identified market indices. Because the 
interest on the note is variable, the carrying amount of such note receivable is believed to approximate fair value.

We are exposed to market risk related to interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates as we conduct business
in various countries outside the United States, resulting in exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates when 
translating from the local currency to the functional currency. Our primary exposures to foreign currencies are the
exchange rates between the USD and the Canadian Dollar (“CAD”), the USD and the British Pound (“GBP”), the 
USD and the Euro, the USD and the Polish Zloty (“PLN”), the GBP and the Euro and the Euro and the
PLN. Reported earnings and assets may be reduced in periods in which the USD increases in value relative to these 
currencies.

Our objective in managing exposure to foreign currency fluctuations is to reduce volatility of earnings and cash 
flow. Accordingly, we may enter into derivative instruments, principally forward and option foreign currency 
contracts, that change in value as foreign exchange rates change. The change in fair value of non-designated 
contracts is included within gain on derivatives in our consolidated statements of operations. The gross notional 
amount of these contracts outstanding was the USD equivalent of zero at December 31, 2016 and $118.6 million at 
December 31, 2015. 

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceduresf

The effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) was evaluated as of the date of the financial statements. This 
evaluation was carried out under the supervision of and with the participation of management, including the CEO
and the Chief Financial Officer (the “CFO”). Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and the CFO concluded that the
design and operation of these disclosure controls and procedures are effective. There were no changes to the 
Company’s internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) during the fourth
quarter covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.



45

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

SNI’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

• pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;f

• provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with GAAP and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the Company; 
and

• provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations, including the possibility of
human error, collusion and the improper overriding of controls by management. Accordingly, even effective internal
control can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. 
Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control mayf  vary over time.r

As required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, management assessed the effectiveness of Scripps 
Networks Interactive and subsidiaries’ (the “Company”) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2016. Management’s assessment is based on the criteria established in the Internal Control — Integrated 
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee ofk  Sponsoringf  Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based upon
our assessment, management believes that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2016.f

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016.

Date: February 24, 2017

BY:

/s/ Kenneth W. Lowe
Kenneth W. Lowe
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officerf

/s/ Lori A. Hickok
Lori A. Hickok
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors andf  Shareholders of
Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc.
Knoxville, Tennessee

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and subsidiaries 
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The 
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.r

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit 
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the 
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected 
by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures mayr  deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 31, 2016, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thef  Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of the Company as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2016 and our report dated February 24, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on those 
financial statements and financial statement schedule.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
February 24, 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors andf  Shareholders of
Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc.
Knoxville, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2016. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule at Page S-2. These financial 
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial 
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, 
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on the criteria 
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 24, 2017 expressed an unqualified
opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.r

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
February 24, 2017
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SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and par valuet  amounts)

December 31,
2016 2015

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 122,937 $ 223,444
Accounts receivable, net of allowances: 2016 - $26,118; 2015 - $12,569 808,133 816,679
Programs and program licenses 591,378 588,999
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 135,651 98,759

Total current assets 1,658,099 1,727,881
Programs and program licenses (less current portion) 500,022 522,899
Investments 699,481 807,630
Property and equipment, netd  of accumulated depreciation: 2016 - $354,435; 
2015 - $299,153 286,399 293,230
Goodwill, net 1,642,169 1,804,748
Intangible assets, net 1,092,682 1,262,664
Deferred income taxes 175,291 91,954
Other non-current assets 146,151 161,308
Total Assets $ 6,200,294 $ 6,672,314
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 42,223 $ 35,308
Accrued liabilities 152,480 159,969
Employee compensation and benefits 123,506 115,266
Program rights payable 70,403 68,892
Deferred revenue 77,987 96,040
Current portion of debt 249,932 499,174

Total current liabilities 716,531 974,649
Debt (less current portion) 2,952,454 3,511,098
Other non-current liabilities 302,881 250,391
Total liabilities 3,971,866 4,736,138
Commitments and contingencies (Note 20)
Redeemable non-controlling interests (Note 17) — 99,000
Equity:
SNI shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par -r  authorized: 25,000,000 shares; none outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.01 par:

Class A Common Shares - authorized: 240,000,000 shares; issued and 
outstanding: 2016 - 95,491,477 shares; 2015 - 94,838,600 shares 954 948
Common Voting Shares - authorized: 60,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding: 2016 - 33,850,481 shares; 2015 - 33,850,481 shares 339 339

Total common stock 1,293 1,287
Additional paid-in capital 1,390,411 1,347,491
Retained earnings 871,766 305,386
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (363,701) (130,233)

SNI shareholders’ equity 1,899,769 1,523,931
NNon-controlling interest  (Note 17) 328,659 313,245
Total equity 2,228,428 1,837,176
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 6,200,294 $ 6,672,314
See notes to consolidated financiald statements.l
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SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except pert  sharer  amounts) Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Operating revenues:

Advertising $ 2,416,403 $ 2,062,530 $ 1,816,388
Distribution 894,367 874,984 799,178
Other 90,665 80,713 49,890

Total operating revenues 3,401,435 3,018,227 2,665,456
Operating expenses:

Cost of services, excluding depreciation and amortization 1,193,228 987,357 778,896
Selling, general and administrative 806,733 785,179 764,799
Depreciation 71,559 73,112 73,849
Amortization 123,442 68,647 55,603
Goodwill write-down 57,878 - -

Total operating expenses 2,252,840 1,914,295 1,673,147
Operating income 1,148,595 1,103,932 992,309
Interest expense, net (129,441) (108,047) (52,687)
Equity in earnings of affiliates 71,382 80,916 85,631
Gain on derivatives 17,868 50,256 2,810
Gain on sale of investmentsf 191,824 - -
Miscellaneous, net (22,450) (5,193) (212)
Income from operations before income taxes 1,277,778 1,121,864 1,027,851
Provision for income taxes 430,330 343,391 301,043
NNet income 847,448 778,473 726,808
Less: net income attributable to non-controlling interests (173,853) (171,645) (181,533)
NNet income attributable to SNI $ 673,595 $ 606,828 $ 545,275

NNet income attributable to SNI common shareholders per share of 
common stock:

Basic $ 5.20 $ 4.68 $ 3.86
Diluted $ 5.18 $ 4.66 $ 3.83

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 129,529 129,665 141,297
Diluted 130,104 130,255 142,193

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands) Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
NNet income $ 847,448 $ 778,473 $ 726,808
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax: 2016 - 
($3,652); 2015 - $1,695; 2014 - $1,273 (226,355) (76,937) (37,877)
Pension Plan and SERP liability adjustments, net of tax: 2016 -
$4,067; 2015 - ($1,878); 2014 - $4,783 (6,999) 775 (7,791)

Comprehensive income 614,094 702,311 681,140
Less: comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling
interests (173,967) (167,825) (181,227)
Comprehensive income attributable to SNI $ 440,127 $ 534,486 $ 499,913
See notes to consolidated financiald statements.l
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SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands) Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Operating Activities:
NNet income $ 847,448 $ 778,473 $ 726,808
Adjustments to reconcile net incomet  to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 71,559 73,112 73,849
Amortization 123,442 68,647 55,603
Goodwill write-down 57,878 — —
Investment write-down 10,701 — —
Program amortization 934,419 783,456 621,210
Program payments (915,486) (875,554) (725,582)
Equity in earnings of affiliates (71,382) (80,916) (85,631)
Share-based compensation 35,198 29,568 35,474
Gain on derivatives (17,868) (50,256) (2,810)
Gain on sale of investments (191,824) — —
Dividends received from equity investments 65,277 93,624 104,185
Deferred income taxes (10,427) (24,678) 7,175
Changes in working capital accounts (excluding the effects of acquisition):f

Accounts receivable, net (2,462) (79,070) (10,932)
Other assets (17,657) (12,702) (2,188)
Accounts payable 8,887 (1,501) 3,593
Deferred revenue (17,150) 44,040 (19,258)
Accrued / refundable income taxes 29,480 41,201 (18,947)
Other liabilities 11,790 32,360 9,548

Other, net (2,997) (6,820) 17,716
Cash provided by operating activities 948,826 812,984 789,813

Investing Activities:
Additions to property and equipment (74,406) (52,480) (53,775)
Collections of note receivablef 4,073 4,655 4,481
Purchases of investments (15,916) (35,023) (17,042)
Sale of investments 226,484 — —
Purchase of subsidiary companies, net of cash acquired (450) (539,309) —
Investment in intangible (11,634) — —
Foreign currency call option premium — (16,000) —
Settlement of derivativesf 18,482 65,824 —
Other, net (5,902) (32,167) (12,001)
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities 140,731 (604,500) (78,337)

Financing Activities:
Proceeds from debt 475,000 3,180,764 1,189,555
Repayments of debtf (890,000) (1,930,000) (195,000)
Debt issuance costs — (14,491) (9,026)
Early extinguishment of debt (380,648) (652,104) —
Purchases of non-controlling interests (103,500) (853,853) —
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (157,687) (189,539) (216,860)
Dividends paid (129,725) (118,857) (112,943)
Repurchases of Class A Common Sharesf — (288,502) (1,198,962)
Proceeds from stock options 15,110 9,207 39,605
Other, net (3,993) (18,368) (13,600)
Cash used in financing activities (1,175,443) (875,743) (517,231)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (14,621) 12,539 (2,452)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cashd  equivalents (100,507) (654,720) 191,793
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period 223,444 878,164 686,371
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $ 122,937 $ 223,444 $ 878,164

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures:
Interest paid, excluding amounts capitalized $ 131,158 $ 95,336 $ 45,917
Income taxes paid $ 408,275 $ 318,920 $ 309,519

See notes to consolidated financial statements.l



52

SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)t

Common 
Stock

Additional 
Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Non-
controlling

Interest
Total 

Equity

Redeemable 
Non-

controlling 
Interests

As of December 31, 2013r $ 1,462 $1,447,496 $ 662,574 $ (12,529) $ 319,889 $ 2,418,892 $ 133,000
Comprehensive income (loss) 545,275 (45,362) 171,548 671,461 9,679
Redeemable non-controlling interest fair valuer
adjustments 18,865 18,865 (18,865)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (189,297) (189,297) (27,563)
Dividends declared and paid: $0.80 per share (112,943) (112,943)
Repurchases of Class A Common Shares: f
15,447,884 shares (154) (165,031) (1,033,777) (1,198,962)
Share-based compensation 35,474 35,474
Exercise of employee share options:
1,007,676 shares issued 10 39,595 39,605
Other share-based compensation, net: 513,690 
shares issued; 175,239 shares repurchased 3 (10,850) (10,847)
Tax impact of compensation plansf 12,339 12,339
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 1,321 $1,359,023 $ 79,994 $ (57,891) $ 302,140 $ 1,684,587 $ 96,251
Comprehensive income (loss) 606,828 (72,342) 170,585 705,071 (2,760)
Redeemable non-controlling interest fair valuer
adjustments (17,794) (17,794) 17,794
Addition to non-controlling interests 858,530 858,530 700
Purchase of non-controlling interest (853,853) (853,853)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (164,157) (164,157) (12,985)
Dividends declared and paid: $0.92 per share (118,857) (118,857)
Repurchases of Class A Common Shares: f
3,986,275 shares (40) (43,677) (244,785) (288,502)
Convert 466,690 Common Voting Shares to
Class A Common Shares - -
Share-based compensation 29,568 29,568
Exercise of employee share options: 285,938 
shares issued 2 9,207 9,209
Other share-based compensation, net: 515,010
shares issued; 164,104 shares repurchased 4 (7,860) (7,856)
Tax impact of compensation plansf 1,230 1,230
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 1,287 $1,347,491 $ 305,386 $ (130,233) $ 313,245 $ 1,837,176 $ 99,000
Comprehensive income (loss) 673,595 (233,468) 172,949 613,076 1,018
Redeemable non-controlling interest fair valuer
adjustments (3,482) (3,482) 3,482
Addition to non-controlling interest 152 152
Purchase of non-controlling interest - (103,500)
Tax impact of purchase of non-controlling f
interest 26,058 26,058
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (157,687) (157,687)
Dividends declared and paid: $1.00 per share (129,725) (129,725)
Share-based compensation 35,198 35,198
Exercise of employee share options: 351,973 
shares issued 3 15,107 15,110
Other share-based compensation, net: 450,005
shares issued; 149,101 shares repurchased 3 (6,950) (6,947)
Tax impact of compensation plansf (501) (501)
Impact of ASC 718 implementation 66 (66) -
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 1,293 $1,390,411 $ 871,766 $ (363,701) $ 328,659 $ 2,228,428 $ -
See notes to consolidated financiald statements.l
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATIONS

As used in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the terms “SNI,” “Scripps,” “the Company,” “we,”
“our,” “us” or similar terms may, depending on the context, refer to Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc., to one or
more of its consolidated subsidiary companies or to all of them taken as a whole.

Description of Business

SNI operates in the media industry and has interests in domestic and international television networks and internet-
based media properties.

The Company has two reportable segments: U.S. Networks and International Networks. U.S. Networks includes our 
six domestic television networks: HGTV, Food Network, Travel Channel, DIY Network, Cooking Channel and 
Great American Country. Additionally, U.S. Networks includes websites associated with the aforementioned 
television brands and other internet and digital businesses serving home, food, travel and other lifestyle-related
categories. U.S. Networks also includes our digital content studio, Scripps Lifestyle Studios. We own 100.0 percent
of each of our networks, with the exception of Food Network and Cooking Channel, of which we own 68.7 percent.f

International Networks includes TVN, which operates a portfolio of free-to-air and pay-TV lifestyle and 
entertainment networks in Poland, including TVN, TVN24, TVN Style, TTV, TVN Turbo, TVN24 Biznes i Świat.
Also included in TVN is TVN Media, an advertising sales house. Additionally, International Networks includes the
lifestyle-oriented networks available in the UK, EMEA, APAC and Latin America. International Networks also 
includes our 50.0 percent share of the results of UKTV, a general entertainment and lifestyle channel platform in the
UK.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of SNI and its majority-owned or controlled subsidiaries
after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. Investments in which the Company lacks control but 
has the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Investments in entities in which SNI has no control or significant influence and is not 
the primary beneficiary are accounted for using the cost method of accounting.f

The results of companies acquired or disposed of are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates, 
judgements and assumptions that affect amounts and related disclosures reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying footnotes, including the selection of appropriate accounting principles that reflect the 
economic substance of the underlying transactions and the assumptions on which to base accounting estimates. In
reaching such decisions, judgment is applied based on analysis of the relevant circumstances, including historical
experience, actuarial studies and other assumptions. Actual results could differ from estimates.

Estimates, judgments, and assumptions inherent in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements include: 
accounting for business acquisitions and dispositions, asset impairments, equity method investments, revenue
recognition, program assets, depreciation and amortization, defined benefit plans, share-based compensation, 
income taxes, redeemable non-controlling interests in subsidiaries, fair value measurements and contingencies.
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Concentration Risks

The Company’s primary sources of revenues include adverting sales and distribution fees, with between 
approximately 68.0 percent and 71.0 percent of our consolidated total operating revenues derived from advertising 
sales. Operating results can be affected by changes in the demand for such services both nationally and in individual 
markets.

The four largest distributors in the United States provide service to approximately 78.6 percent of homes receiving
HGTV, Food Network and Travel Channel. Combined, the eight largest distributors in the United States provide 
service to more than 98.7 percent of homes receiving HGTV, Food Network and Travel Channel. The loss of
distribution of our networks by any of these cable or satellite television systems could adversely affect our business.

Foreign Currency Translation

The reporting currency of the Company is the USD. The functional currency of most of the Company’s international
subsidiaries is the local currency. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange 
rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and equity balances are translated at historical rates. Revenues and expenses 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at average exchange rates for the respective periods. Foreign 
currency translation adjustments are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss within 
stockholders’ equity, net of applicable taxes.

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the subsidiaries’ functional currencies are recorded based on 
exchange rates at the time such transactions arise. Changes in exchange rates with respect to amounts recorded in the 
consolidated balance sheets related to these items will result in unrealized foreign currency transaction gains and
losses based upon period-end exchange rates. These unrealized foreign currency transaction gains and losses are 
recorded within miscellaneous, net in the consolidated statements of operations.f

Reclassifications

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company reclassified where gains and losses on disposal of property 
and equipment are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows. 
The impact was a $0.7 million gain for the year ended December 31, 2016, a $4.2 million loss for the year ended 
December 31, 2015 and a $0.9 million loss for the year ended December 31, 2014, which were all reclassified from 
loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment to depreciation within the consolidated statements of operations. 
This change also resulted in these same amounts being reclassified from other, net to depreciation within operating 
activities in the consolidated statements of cashf  flows for each respective period. r

During the second quarter of 2016, the Company adopted new guidance related to the accounting for employee
share-based payments (see Note 3 – Accounting Standards Updateg ). This change resulted in a reclassification of
$0.1 million and $0.1 million cumulative effect of forfeited share-based payments from retained earnings to 
additional paid-in capital on our consolidated balance sheets and our consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity 
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Additionally, this change resulted in a 
reclassification of $1.2 million of cash outflows and $12.2 million of cash inflows of excess tax benefits from other,
net within financing activities to other, net within operating activities in the consolidated statements of cashf  flows
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalentsd

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and marketable securities with an original maturity of less than
three months. Cash equivalents, which primarily consists of money market funds, are carried at cost plus accrued 
income, which approximates fair value.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable includes amounts billed and currently due from customers and are presented net of an estimate 
for uncollectible accounts. The Company periodically evaluates outstanding receivable balances to assess
collectability. Allowances for uncollectible accounts are generally based on market trends, economic conditions, 
aging of receivables,f  historical experience and customer specific risks of default.f

We extend credit to customers based upon our assessment of their individual financial condition. Collateral is
generally not required from customers.

Investments

The Company holds investments that are accounted for using both the equity method and cost method of
accounting. We utilize the equity method of accounting to account for investments if we have the ability to exercise 
significant influence over operating and financial policies of the investee. Significant influence typically exists if a
20.0 percent to 50.0 percent ownership interest in an entity is held unless persuasive evidence to the contrary exists.
Under the equity method of accounting, investments are initially recorded at cost and subsequently increased or
decreased to reflect our proportionate share of earnings or losses of the equity method investees. Cash payments to 
equity method investees, such as additional investments, advances and expenses incurred on behalf of investees, as
well as payments from equity method investees, such as dividends, distributions and repayments of advances, are 
recorded as adjustments to investment balances. Goodwill and other intangible assets arising from the acquisition of 
an equity method investment are included in the carrying value of the investment. As goodwill is not reported 
separately, it is not separately tested for impairment. Instead, the entire equity method investment is tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of such investments
may not be recoverable.

We utilize the cost method of accounting to account for investments where we do not have the ability to exercise 
significant influence over operating and financial policies of the investee. Under the cost method of accounting, 
investments are initially recorded at cost and not adjusted to reflect our proportionate share of earnings or losses of 
the cost method investee.

We regularly review our investments to determine if there has been any other-than-temporary decline in values. 
These reviews require management judgments that often include estimating the outcome of future events and 
determining whether factors exist that indicate impairment has occurred. We evaluate, among other factors, the 
extent to which the carrying value of the investment exceeds fair value, the duration of the decline in fair value 
below carrying value and the current cash position, earnings and forecasts and near term prospects of the investee. 
The carrying value of an investment is adjusted when a decline in fair value below cost is determined to be other-
than-temporary.

Programs and Program Licenses

Programming is either produced by us or for us by independent production companies or licensed under agreements
with independent producers.

Costs of produced content include direct production costs, production overhead, development costs and acquired
production costs. Costs incurred for produced content are capitalized, and costs incurred to produce content not 
expected to be rebroadcast are expensed as incurred. Program licenses generally have fixed terms, limit the number 
of times we can air the programs and require payments over the terms of the licenses. Licensed program assets and
liabilities are recorded when programs become available for airing. Program licenses are not discounted for imputed
interest. Program assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, commencing on their first airing and
typically on an accelerated basis, based on estimated future cash flows, and are included within cost of services in 
the consolidated statements of operations.

Estimated future cash flows are based on revenues previously generated from similar content and planned program 
usage, which can change based upon market acceptance, advertising sales and distribution fees and the number of 
subscribers receiving our networks. Planned program usage is based on our current expectation of future airings 
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taking into account historical usage of similar content. Accordingly, we periodically review revenue estimates and 
planned program usage and revise our assumptions if necessary. If actual demand or market conditions are less
favorable than projected, a write-down to net realizable value is recorded. Development costs for programs that we
have determined will not be produced are expensed.

Deposits and the portion of the unamortized balance expected to be amortized within one year are classified as a 
current asset within programs and program licenses on the consolidated balance sheets, while those expected to be 
amortized after one year are separately stated as a non-current asset on the consolidated balance sheets.

Program liabilities payable within one year are classified as a current liability as program rights payable on the 
consolidated balance sheets, while program liabilities payable after one year are included within other non-current 
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The carrying value of our program rights liabilities approximate fair 
value.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, including internal use software, is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairments. Costs incurred in the preliminary project stage to develop or acquire internal use software or 
websites are expensed as incurred. Upon completion of the preliminary project stage and management authorization 
of the project, costs to acquire or develop internal use software, which primarily include coding, designing and
developing system interfaces, installation and testing, are capitalized if it is probable the project will be completed 
and the software will be used for its intended function. Costs incurred after implementation, such as maintenance
and training, are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation commences when property or equipment is placed in service for its intend use and is computed using a 
straight-line method over its estimated useful life as follows:

Category                                       g y
Buildings and improvements

Useful Life                               
35 to 45 years

Leasehold improvements Term of lease or useful life
Program production equipment 3 to 15 years
Office and other equipment 3 to 10 years
Computer hardware and software 3 to 5 years

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of acquisitions in excess of the fair value of the acquired businesses’ tangible assets
and separately identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is allocated to the Company’s reporting units, which 
are defined as operating segments or groupings of businesses one level below the operating segment level. As of 
December 31, 2016, our reporting units for purposes of performing the impairment test for goodwill were U.S.
Networks, International Networks conducting business in EMEA, International Networks conducting business in
APAC and TVN.

Goodwdd ill is not amortrr ized, but is tested foff r impm airmrr ent at tht e reportrr ing unu it level at least anaa nun ally in tht e foff uruu trr ht quqq ara trr er
foff r tht e Compm ana ynn , or when events occuru or circumstana ces chana ge tht at would indicate tht e faff ir value of a reportrr ing unu it
mayaa be below its cara rrr yrr ing value. The ana nun al goodwdd ill impm airmrr ent test allows foff r tht e option to fiff rst assess quqq alitative
faff ctors to determrr ine whetht er it is more likely tht ana not tht at tht e faff ir value of a reportrr ing unu it is greater tht ana its cara rrr yrr ing
amounuu t. If it is determrr ined, on tht e basis of quqq alitative faff ctors, tht at tht e faff ir value of a reportrr ing unu it is, more likely tht ana
not, less tht ana its cara rrr yrr ing value, tht e quqq ana titative impm airmrr ent test is requqq ired. The quqq ana titative impm airmrr ent test is a twtt o-
step process. The fiff rst step compm ara es tht e faff ir value of tht e reportrr ing unuu it, utilizing a combm ination of a discounu ted cash
flff ow ana d mara krr et apaa proach, to its caraa rrr yrr ing amounu t, including goodwdd ill. If tht e cara rrr yrr ing amounuu t of a reportrr ing unu it
exceeds its faff ir value, tht e second step compm ara es tht e impm lied faff ir value of tht e reportrr ing unu it’s goodwdd ill witht tht e cara rrr yrr ing
amounuu t of tht at goodwdd ill. If tht e cara rrr yrr ing amounu t of tht e reportrr ing unu its’ goodwdd ill exceeds tht e impm lied faff ir value of tht at
goodwdd ill, ana impm airmrr ent loss is recognized in ana amounuu t equqq al to tht at excess. The impm lied faff ir value of goodwdd ill is
determrr ined in tht e same mana ner apaa plied to calculate goodwdd ill recognized in a business combm ination.  



57

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

Finite-lived intangible assets consist mainly of the value assigned to network distribution rights, customer and
advertiser lists, tradenames, broadcast licenses and other acquired rights.r

Network distribution rights represent the value assigned to programming services’ relationships with cable and
satellite operators and telecommunication suppliers that distribute our content. These relationships provide the
opportunity to deliver advertising to viewers. We amortize these contractual relationships on a straight-line basis 
over the terms of the distribution contracts and expected renewal periods, which approximate 20 years.

Customer and advertiser lists, tradenames, broadcast licenses, acquired rights and other intangible assets are 
amortized in relation to their expected future cash flows or on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of up
to 25 years.

Impairment of Long-Livedf Assetsd

Long-lived assets, primarily property and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or circumstances indicate the fair value of the assets may be below its carrying amount. 
Recoverability for long-lived assets is determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted cash flows of the
operation to which the assets relate to the carrying amount of the assets. If the undiscounted cash flows are less than 
the carrying amount of the assets, then the carrying value of the assets are written down to estimated fair values, 
which are primarily based on forecasted discounted cash flows. Fair value of long-lived assets is determined based 
on a combination of a discounted cash flow and market approach.

Income Taxes

One of our consolidated subsidiary companies is a general partnership. Generally, income taxes on partnership 
income and losses accrue to the individual partners. Accordingly, our consolidated financial statements do not 
include any significant provision for income taxes on the non-controlling partners’ share of this consolidated 
subsidiary company’s income.

No provision has been made for U.S. or foreign income taxes that could result from future remittances of 
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that management intends to indefinitely reinvest outside the
United States.

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income
taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred taxes are measured using rates 
the Company expects to apply to taxable income in years in which those temporary differences are expected to
reverse. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not such assets will be
unrealized. 

In determining the Company’s tax provision for financial reporting purposes, we establish a reserve for uncertain tax 
positions taken, or expected to be taken, on a tax return unless the Company determines that such positions are more 
likely than not to be sustained upon examination based on their technical merits, including the resolution on any 
appeals or litigation. Interest and penalties associated with such tax positions are included in the provision for 
income taxes in the consolidated statements of income. The liability for additional taxes, penalties and interest is
included within other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balancer  sheets.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, delivery occurs or services are
rendered, the sales price is fiff xed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue is reported net
of sales taxes, value added taxes and other taxes collected frff om our customers.
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Our primary sources of revenues are frff om advertising sales on our television and digital networks and frff om
distribution feff es earned frff om the right to distribute our content.

Advertisingg

Advertising revenues are recognized, net of agency commissions, when advertisements are displayed. 

Advertising contracts for television may guarantee advertisers a minimum audience level for the programs in which 
their advertisements are broadcast. Advertising revenues are recognized for the actual audience level delivered. We 
provide the advertiser with additional advertising spots in future periods if guaranteed audience levels are not 
delivered. If guaranteed audience levels are not met, revenues are deferred for any shortfall until guaranteed 
audience levels are delivered and, an accrual for “make-good” advertisements is recorded as a reduction of revenue. 
The estimated make-good accrual is adjusted throughout the term of the advertising contracts.

Digital advertising includes (i) fixed duration campaigns whereby a banner, text or other advertisement appears for a
specified period of time for a fee; (ii) impression-based campaigns where the fee is based upon the number of times 
an advertisement appears in web pages viewed by a user; and (iii) click-through based campaigns where the fee is
based upon the number of users who click on an advertisement and are directed to the advertiser’s 
website. Advertising revenue from fixed duration campaigns are recognized over the period in which the advertising
appears. Internet and digital advertising revenue that is based upon the number of impressions delivered or the 
number of click-throughs achieved is recognized as impressions are delivered or click-throughs occur.

Distribution 

Cable, satellite and telecommunication service providers typically pay a per subscriber fee for the right to distribute 
our content under the terms of multi-year distribution contracts. Programming is delivered throughout the term of 
the agreement, and revenue is recognized as programming is provided based on contracted programming rates and 
reported subscriber levels. The amount of distribution fees received by the Company are based on amounts reported 
by distributors based on actual subscriber levels. Since actual subscriber information is not received until after the 
close of the reporting period, the number of subscribers receiving the Company’s programming is estimated for the 
reporting period. Adjustments to record actual subscribers have historically not been materially different from
estimates.

Distribution fees are reported net of volume discounts and incentives, which include cash payments, provided to 
distributors in exchange for initial multi-year distribution contracts. Launch incentives are capitalized as assets upon
the launch of a network and amortized as a reduction of distribution fees based on the ratio of each period’s revenue 
to expected total revenue over the term of ther  contract.

Revenues associated with digital distribution arrangements are recognized when we transfer control and the rights to
distribute the content to a customer.

Merchandise Sales

TVN operates an online retail business whereby merchandise is sold to individual customers. Merchandise sales are 
recognized when goods are shipped to the customer, with a right to return within ten days. Historical experience is 
used to estimate and provide for such returns at the time of sale.

Cost of Services

Cost of services reflects the cost of providing our broadcast signal, programming and other content to various
distribution platforms. The expenses captured within cost of services in our consolidated statements of operations 
include programming, primarily amortization, satellite transmission fees, production and operations and other direct 
costs. Cost of services also includes the cost incurred to buy or produce inventory for TVN’s online retail business.
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Marketing and Advertising

Marketing and advertising costs, which totaled $161.1 million in 2016, $169.1 million in 2015 and $160.4 million in 
2014, are reported within selling, general and administrative in the consolidated statements of operations and include 
costs incurred to promote our businesses and attract traffic to our websites. Advertising production costs are deferred 
and expensed the first time the advertisement is shown. Marketing and other advertising costs are expensed as 
incurred.

Share-Based Compensation

We have a Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “LTI Plan”) that was amended in the second quarter of 2015 (the “2015
Amended LTI Plan”) and which is described more fully in Note 18 – Shareholders’ Equity. The 2015 Amended LTI 
Plan provides for long-term incentive compensation for key employees and members of the Board. The 2015 
Amended LTI Plan authorizes the grant of a variety of discretionary awards for employees and non-employee 
directors  in the form of incentive or non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares,
restricted share units (“RSUs”), performance shares, performance-based restricted share units (“PBRSUs”) and other 
share-based awards and dividend equivalents. 

Compensation expense is based on the grant date fair value of the award. The fair value of awards that grant an 
individual the underlying shares, such as RSUs and PBRSUs, is measured by the fair value of a Class A Common 
Share of SNI stock. The fair value of awards that grant an individual the right to the appreciation of the underlying 
shares, such as stock options, is measured using a binomial lattice model. A Monte Carlo simulation model is used 
to determine the fair value of awards with market conditions.f

Certain awards of Class A Common Shares have performance and service conditions under which the number of
shares granted is determined by the extent to which such conditions are satisfied (“Performance Shares”). 
Compensation expense for Performance Shares not based on market conditions is measured by the grant date fair
value of a Class A Common Share. In periods prior to completion of the performance period, compensation expense 
is based on estimates of the number of shares that will be earned. If the estimated achievement of the performance
condition changes, a cumulative adjustment to compensation expense is recognized in the current period. 
Compensation expense related to Performance Shares with a market-based condition is recognized regardless of
whether the market condition is satisfied, provided the requisite service has been provided.

Compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award, with the 
impact of forfeitures realized as terminations occur. The requisite service period is generally the vesting period 
stated in the award. A portion of our share-based grants generally vest upon the retirement of the employee, so
grants to retirement-eligible employees are expensed immediately, and grants to employees who will become
retirement-eligible prior to the end of the stated vesting period are expensed over such shorter period.

Net Income per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing net income attributable to SNI by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding, including participating securities outstanding. Diluted EPS is similar to 
basic EPS, but adjusts for the effect of the potential issuance of common shares. We include all unvested share-
based awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents, whether paid or unpaid, in
both the number of basic and diluted sharesd  outstanding EPS.
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The following table presents information about basic and diluted weighted average sharesd  outstanding:

Year ended December 31,
( in thousands ) 2016 2015 2014
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 129,529 129,665 141,297
Effect of dilutive securities:f

Unvested share units and shares held by employees 245 189 228
Stock options held by employees and directors 330 401 668

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 130,104 130,255 142,193
Anti-dilutive share awards 1,057 863 298

For the years ended December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the anti-dilutive share-based 
awards were not included in the computation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding. 

3. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS UPDATES S

Issued and Adopted

In November 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued new accounting guidance related to 
the classification and presentation of restricted cash, Statement of Cash Flows, Restricted Cash, which requires that 
a statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in total cash, cash equivalents and amounts described 
as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. The guidance is effective January 1, 2018, and we early adopted this 
guidance in the fourth quarter of 2016. This implementation did not have a material effect on our consolidated 
financial statements and related disclosures.

In October 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to variable interest entities, Interests Held 
Through Related Parties Under Common Control, which amends the consolidation guidance applied to indirect 
interests in the entity held through related parties under common control with the reporting entity when determining
whether it is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity. The guidance is effective January 1, 2017, and we 
early adopted this guidance in the fourth quarter of 2016. This implementation did not have a material effect on our 
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to statements of cash flows, Classification of 
Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments, which is intended to clarify existing guidance on classification issues
and reduce potential diversity in practice. The guidance identifies cash flow situations whereby there has been 
diversity in application and provides specific guidance as to the treatment. The guidance is effective January 1, 
2018, and we early adopted this guidance in the fourth quarter of 2016. This implementation did not have a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to investments, Investments – Equity Method and 
Joint Ventures: Simplifying the Transition to the Equity Method of Accounting, which simplifies the accounting for a 
transition to equity method investment of accounting as a result of an increase in level of ownership or degree of 
influence and eliminates the requirement to retroactively adjust the investment for all periods the investment was 
held. The amendments in the update require that an entity that has an available-for-sale equity security becomes 
qualified for the equity method of accounting if they recognize earnings through the unrealized holding gain or loss
in accumulated other comprehensive income at the date the investment qualifies for equity method treatment. The 
guidance is effective January 1, 2017, and we early adopted this guidance in the fourth quarter of 2016. This
implementation did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to share-based compensation, Improvements to 
Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, which simplifies several aspects of the accounting for share-based 
payments, including forfeitures, accounting for income taxes and statutory withholding requirements. Additionally, 
this guidance provides clarity around presentation of items within the statements of cash flows. The guidance is 
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effective January 1, 2017, and we early adopted this guidance in the second quarter of 2016. This implementation
did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Issued and Not Yet Adopted

In January 2017, the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to intangibles – goodwill and other, Simplifying 
the Test for Goodwill Impairment, which eliminates Step Two from the goodwill impairment test and requires an 
entity to perform its annual or interim goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with 
its carrying amount. The guidance also eliminates the requirements for any reporting unit with a zero or negative
carrying amount to perform a qualitative assessment. The guidance is effective January 1, 2020, and early adoption
is permitted for testing dates after January 1, 2017. We adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2017 and will
apply the guidance to all tests subsequent to that date. We do not expect the new guidance to have a material impact 
on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to revenue recognition, Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers: Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net), which is intended to 
improve the operability and understandability of the implementation guidance on principal versus agent 
considerations within the new revenue recognition guidance by clarifying the indicators. This guidance updates the 
revenue recognition guidance issued in May 2014, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In May 2014, the FASB
issued new accounting guidance related to revenue recognition, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which 
requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised 
goods or services to customers. The guidance will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP. 
The guidance is effective January 1, 2018, and early adoption is permitted. We have partially completed our 
assessment of the new guidance to determine the impact it will have on our consolidated financial statements and 
related disclosures. As a result of our assessment, we are tentatively planning on applying the modified retrospective
method of adoption forf  this guidance. We expect ther  remainder of our assessment tor  be completed by mid-2017.

In February 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to leases, Leases, which requires the 
recognition of an asset and liability arising from leasing arrangements for leases extending beyond an initial period 
of twelve months. The guidance will increase transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing 
lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. The 
guidance is effective January 1, 2019, and early adoption is permitted. We have partially competed our evaluation of 
the new guidance to determine the impact it will have on our consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures. We expect this assessment to be completed by mid-2017.

In January 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to financial assets and liabilities, Recognition 
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which requires equity investments not accounted for 
under the equity method to be measured at fair value with changes recognized in net income. Additionally, the
guidance simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values by 
requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairments, requiring public business entities to use the exit price
notion when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes, requiring an entity to present 
separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from
a change in the instrument-specific credit risk when an entity has elected to measure the liability at fair value, 
requiring separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of 
financial asset either on the balance sheet or in the accompanying notes and clarifying that an entity should evaluate
the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sale securities in combination with
the entity’s other deferred tax assets. The guidance will reduce diversity in current practice. The guidance is
effective January 1, 2018, and early adoption is not permitted. We have evaluated the guidance and do not expect it 
to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

4. ACQUISITIONS

N-Vision and TVN

On July 1, 2015 (the “Acquisition Date”), we acquired, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, 100.0 percent of the 
outstanding shares of N-Vision, which held a majority interest in TVN, for approximately €1,440.0 million, or 
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$1,608.6 million, comprised of €584.0 million, or $652.4 million cash, and €856.0 million, or $956.2 million debt, 
including €556.0 million, or $621.1 million, of debt directly attributed to TVN (the Acquisition). The Acquisition 
was funded with a portion of the net proceeds from the $1,500.0 million debt offering executed in June 2015 (the 
“Financing”) (see Note 13 – Debt). The majority of the remaining debt proceeds were used to purchase the residual 
outstanding shares of TVN through the Tender Offer for approximately $831.5 million and Squeeze-out for 
approximately $22.4 million, which were both completed during the third quarter of 2015. Together, the
Acquisition, Tender Offer and Squeeze-out are referred to herein as the Transactions. Total consideration for the 
Transactions was approximately $2,462.5 million.

The primary purpose of the Acquisition was to obtain N-Vision’s 52.7 percent controlling interest in the voting
shares of TVN, a public media company listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange (the “WSE”).  

To minimize the volatility in the purchase price that may have resulted from Euro to USD currency exchange rate 
changes, we entered into a foreign currency option contract during the first quarter of 2015 that effectively set the 
USD cash consideration for the Acquisition. We paid a $16.0 million premium to provide the Company a call option 
on €584 million at a cost of $625.0 million. The premium is reflected as both an expense in gain on derivatives 
within operating activities and as a cash outflow from foreign currency call option premium within investing
activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015. The foreign currency 
option contract was settled during the second quarter of 2015, and the $31.9 million resulting gain is included as
both a gain in gain on derivatives within operating activities and a cash inflow from settlement of derivatives within 
investing activities in our consolidated statements of cashf  flows for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The net impact of the various foreign currency contracts executed as a result of the Transactions resulted in a $44.2 
million net gain for the year ended December 31, 2015, which is included within gain on derivatives in our 
consolidated statements of operations. We also recognized $24.2 million of net losses for the year ended December
31, 2015 related to the foreign currency effects on cash balances held for the Transactions. These losses are included 
within miscellaneous, net in our consolidated statements of operations.

Within three months of completing the Acquisition, the Company was required under Polish law to launch a 
mandatory public tender offer for a minimum ownership of 66.0 percent of TVN’s total voting shares outstanding.
On June 9, 2015 the Company announced its intention to tender for all remaining outstanding voting shares of TVN 
to achieve 100.0 percent ownership. On July 6, 2015, the Company tendered for the remaining outstanding voting 
shares of TVN at a purchase price equal to PLN 20.0 per share. Final cash consideration paid was approximately
$853.9 million.  The window to tender shares opened July 24, 2015 and continued through August 24, 2015, 
resulting in the acquisition of an additional 156.7 million shares, or a cumulative 98.8 percent ownership of TVN’s 
outstanding share capital. This enabled the Company to effectuate the Squeeze-out for the remaining unredeemed 
shares, which was completed on September 28, 2015 and resulted in 100.0 percent ownership of TVN. As part of the
integration of TVN, the Company, through TVN, filed the documentation required under Polish law to effect the
delisting of TVN sharesf  from the WSE, which became effective December 3, 2015.

The incremental shares purchased through the Tender Offer and Squeeze-out were financed through a combination
of cash on hand, borrowings under our Amended Revolving Credit Facility and net proceeds from our Term Loan 
(see Note 13 – Debt). The initial 52.7 percent acquisition is reflected as a purchase of subsidiary companies within
investing activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows, while the subsequent Tender Offer and Squeeze-out 
are included as a purchase of non-controlling interests within financing activities in our consolidated statements of 
cash flows.

We incurred $15.1 million and $28.3 million of transaction and integration related expenses for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. These transaction and integration expenses are included 
within selling, general and administrative in our consolidated statements of operations and reduced net income
attributable to SNI by $11.5 million and $17.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively.

On July 31, 2015, the Company paid €364.9 million to retire the €300.0 million Senior PIK Toggle Notes due 2021 
(“the 2021 PIK Notes”), which was debt at the parent of TVN and included as a component of the debt assumed in
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the Acquisition purchase price. The payment included the aggregate principal and a required make-whole 
component totaling €363.4 million, as well as accrued interest of €1.5 million.

On September 15, 2015, TVN executed a partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes totaling €45.1 million, 
comprised of principal of €43.0 million, accrued interest of €0.8 million and premium of €1.3 million.  

On November 16, 2015, TVN Finance Corp. executed a second partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes totaling 
€45.6 million, comprised of principal of €43.0 million,f  accrued interest of €1.3 million and premium of €1.3 million.f

On November 16, 2015, TVN Finance Corp. executed a full early redemption of the 2018 TVN Notes totaling 
€118.9 million, comprised of principal of €116.6 million, accrued interest of a nominal amount and premium of €2.3
million. An additional €4.6 million was paid simultaneously in fulfillment of the November 15 coupon payment due.

On September 20, 2016, TVN Finance Corp. executed a third pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes totaling €45.1 
million, comprised of principal of €43.0 million, accrued interest of €0.8 million and premium of €1.3 million. f

On December 15, 2016, TVN Finance Corp. executed an early redemption for the balance of the 2020 TVN Notes 
outstanding totaling €323.2 million, comprised of principal of €301.0 million, accrued interest of €11.1 million and 
premium of €11.1 million.

The Acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, which requires, among other things, 
that we allocate the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values as of the 
Acquisition Date. We have reported the results of operations for TVN in our consolidated financial statements for 
the period beginning on the Acquisition Date. As of December 31, 2016, we have repaid in full all debt acquired in
the Acquisition.



The following table summarizes the final fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the
Acquisition Date.

(in thousands)
Balance Sheet Classification

Fair Value as of July 1,
2015

Cash consideration transferred $ 652,365
Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:d
Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents 105,714
Restricted cash 7,342
Accounts receivable 110,387
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 21,592
Investments 354,719
Property and equipment 92,133
Programs and program licenses 79,211
Intangible assets 760,636

Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable (28,941)
Accrued liabilities (64,767)
Employee compensation and benefits (27,896)
Program rights payable (current portion) (19,395)
Deferred revenue (2,132)
Deferred income taxes (23,651)
Program rights payable (less current portion) (3,492)
2018 TVN Notes (128,577)
2020 TVN Notes (528,205)
2021 PIK Notes (409,549)
Term Loan (18,178)
Other non-current liabilities (5,624)

NNon-controlling interest (858,530)
Goodwill 1,239,568
NNet assets acquired $ 652,365

The following table represents the final fair value of identifiable intangible assets and their assumed estimated useful
lives.

(in thousands)
Intangible Asset Category Type

Weighted Average 
Life in Years

Fair Value as of July
1, 2015

Copyrights and other tradenames Amortizable 23 $ 333,912
Broadcast licenses Amortizable 25 128,017
Advertiser lists Amortizable 7 106,681
Customer lists Amortizable 15 26,670
Acquired network distribution rights and other Amortizable 20 165,356

$ 760,636

As a result of the Acquisition, we recognized goodwill of $1,239.6 million. The purchase price was assigned to
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the Acquisition Date, and the excess 
was allocated to goodwill, as shown in the Balance Sheet Classification table above. Goodwill represents the value 
we expect to achieve through the Acquisition and is recorded in the International Networks segment. The fair value 
of this goodwill is not deductible for U.S. income tax purposes.
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We utilized various valuation techniques to determine fair value, primarily market transactions and discounted cash
flow analyses. Discounted cash flows analysis requires the use of significant unobservable inputs, or Level 3 inputs, 
as defined by the fair value hierarchy (see Note 6 – Fair Value Measurement). Under this valuation approach, we are 
required to make estimates and assumptions about sales, operating margins, growth rates and discount rates based on 
budgets, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flow and marketplace data.

The following unaudited pro forma information presents the combined results of operations as if the Transactions 
had occurred at the beginning of fiscal year 2014, with TVN’s pre-acquisition results combined with SNI’s historical 
results prior to the Transactions. The 2016 consolidated financial statements include the results of TVN for the
entire period. The pro forma results contained in the following table include adjustments for amortization of 
acquired intangibles, depreciation expense, transaction costs, interest expense as a result of the Financing and related 
income taxes. Any potential cost savings or other operational efficiencies that could result from the Transactions are 
not included in these pro forma results. These pro forma results do not necessarily reflect what would have occurred 
if the Acquisition had taken place January 1, 2014, nor do they represent the results that may occur ind  the future.

 (in thousands) Year ended December 31,
Pro Forma Results (unaudited) 2015 2014
Pro Forma Revenues $ 3,236,344 $ 3,166,652
Pro forma net income attributable to SNI $ 584,618 $ 499,767
Pro forma net income attributable to SNI shareholders per share of common stock:

Basic $ 4.51 $ 3.54
Diluted $ 4.49 $ 3.51

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 129,665 141,297
Diluted 130,255 142,193

We did not recognize any contingent consideration arising from the Acquisition.

TVN contributed operating revenues of $224.7 million and operating income of $36.7 million for the year ended 
2015 from the Acquisition Date through December 31, 2015.r

Other Transactions

On June 16, 2016, we acquired a new network distribution right in Italy for €10.4 million, or approximately $11.6 
million. The new distribution right was recorded as an intangible asset with a four year straight-line amortizable life.
The acquisition of this asset is reflected as an investing activity within our consolidated statements of cash flows.

On December 31, 2016, we completed the purchase of the remaining 30.0 percent non-controlling interest in FNLA 
for $4.5 million and now own 100.0d  percent of FNLA.

5. EMPLOYEE TERMINATION PROGRAMS

Restructuring Plan

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we executed the Restructuring Plan and provided qualified employees with 
voluntary early retirement packages and notified employees of the elimination of certain positions within the 
Company. We also announced that we would be closing our Cincinnati office location in late 2015 and relocating
certain positions to our Knoxville headquarters. Our 2016, 2015 and 2014 operating results include a gain of $0.3 
million, expense of $17.9 million and expense of $14.4 million, respectively. The $17.9 million of expense in 2015
was classified as $13.3 million of selling, general and administrative, $2.8 million of cost of services and $1.8 
million of depreciation. The $14.4 million of expense in 2014 was classified as $9.6 million of selling, general and
administrative, $3.9 million of cost of services and $0.9 of depreciation. As a result, net income attributable to SNI 
was increased by $0.2 million in 2016 and reduced by $11.1 million and $8.9 million in 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. The Restructuring Plan was complete as of December 31, 2016.
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A rollforward of the liability related to Restructuring charges by segment is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2016

(in thousands) U.S. Networks
International 

Networks
Corporate and 

Other Total
Liability as of December 31, 2015f $ 605 $ - $ 5,314 $ 5,919

Net accruals 5 - (315) (310)
Payments (610) - (4,315) (4,925)
Non-cash (a) - - (684) (684)

Liability as of December 31, 2016f $ - $ - $ - $ -
(a) Primarily represents the reclassification of current period charges ford accelerated depreciation, pensionr  payments made from 
the pension plan and share-based compensation.

Year ended December 31, 2015

(in thousands) U.S. Networks
International 

Networks
Corporate and 

Other Total
Liability as of December 31, 2014f $ 12,041 $ - $ 2,031 $ 14,072

Net accruals 7,403 - 10,519 17,922
Payments (17,265) - (4,809) (22,074)
Non-cash (a) (1,574) - (2,427) (4,001)

Liability as of December 31, 2015f $ 605 $ - $ 5,314 $ 5,919

(a) Primarily represents the reclassification of current period charges for accelerated depreciation, pension payments made from 
the pension plan and share-based compensation.

Reorganization

During the fourth quarter of 2015, we executed the Reorganization and committed to undertaking activities intended 
to streamline and integrate the management of our domestic networks, creating a cohesive and holistic organization. 
As part of the Reorganization, we announced we would be relocating certain employees during 2016. Our 2016 and 
2015 operating results include expense of $16.3 million and $3.9 million, respectively, for severance, retention, 
benefits and relocation costs incurred as a result of the Reorganization. The $16.3 million of expense in 2016 was 
classified as $10.8 million of selling, general and administrative and $5.5 million of cost of services, while the $3.9
million of expense in 2015 was classified as $3.2 million of selling, general and administrative and $0.7 million of 
cost of services. As a result, net income attributable to SNI was reduced by $10.1 million and $2.4 million in 2016
and 2015, respectively. The Reorganization was substantially completed as of December 31, 2016.f

A rollforward of the liability related to the Reorganization charges by segment is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2016

(in thousands) U.S. Networks
International

Networks
Corporate and 

Other Total
Liability as of December 31, 2015f $ 3,258 $ - $ 8 $ 3,266

Net accruals 10,539 - 5,765 16,304
Payments (11,159) - (3,043) (14,202)
Non-cash (b) (683) - (1,145) (1,828)

Liability as of December 31, 2016f $ 1,955 $ - $ 1,585 $ 3,540
(b) Primarily represents the reclassification of current period charges for share-based compensation.

Year ended December 31, 2015

(in thousands) U.S. Networks
International

Networks
Corporate and 

Other Total
Liability as of December 31, 2014f $ - $ - $ - $ -

Net accruals 3,835 - 31 3,866
Payments (19) - (23) (42)
Non-cash (b) (558) - - (558)

Liability as of December 31, 2015f $ 3,258 $ - $ 8 $ 3,266
(b) Primarily represents the reclassification of current period charges for share-based compensation.
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The liability for both the Restructuring Plan and Reorganization is included within accrued liabilities on our 
consolidated balance sheets.

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is an exit price representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are classified in one of three categories described below.

• Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2 — Inputs, other than quoted market prices in active markets, that are observable either directly
or indirectly. Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or model driven valuations in
which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets.

• Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or 
significant value drivers are unobservable.

There have been no transfers of assets or liabilities between the fair value measurement classifications during the 
periods presented.

Recurring Measurements

December 31, 2016
(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Cash equivalents $ 658 $ 658 $ - $ -
Foreign currency derivative - - $ - -

Total $ 658 $ 658 $ - $ -

Temporary equity - Redeemable non-controlling interests $ - $ - $ - $ -

December 31, 2015
(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Cash equivalents $ 80,944 $ 80,944 $ - $ -
Foreign currency derivative 615 - 615 -

Total $ 81,559 $ 80,944 $ 615 $ -

Temporary equity - Redeemable non-controlling interests $ 99,000 $ - $ - $ 99,000

Foreign currency derivatives include free-standing foreign currency forward contracts, which are marked to market
at each reporting period. We classify our foreign currency forward contracts as Level 2, as the valuation inputs are 
based on quoted prices and market observable data of similar instruments.

At December 31, 2015, we determined the fair value of our redeemable non-controlling interest in Travel Channel
using a combination of a discounted cash flow valuation model and a market approach that applies revenues and
earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) estimates against the calculated 
multiples of comparable companies. Operating revenues and EBITDA were key assumptions utilized in both the 
discounted cash flow valuation model and the market approach. The selected discount rate of approximately 10.5 
percent was also a key assumption in our discounted cash flow valuation model (See Note 17—Redeemable — Non-
controlling Interests and Non-controlling Interest). On February 25, 2016, we agreed to pay the non-controlling
interest owner $99.0 million to acquire the 35.0 percent interest in Travel Channel, resulting in our 100.0 percent 
ownership (see Note 17 – Redeemable Non-controlling Interest and Non-controlling Interest).g
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Other Financial Instruments

The carrying values of our financial instruments do not materially differ from their estimated fair values as of
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, except for debt, which is disclosed in Note 13 – Debt, and redeemable
non-controlling interests, which is disclosed in Note 17 – Redeemable Non-controlling Interests and Non-
controlling Interest.

Non-Recurring Measurements

The majority of the Company’s non-financial instruments, which include goodwill, other intangible assets and 
property and equipment, are not required to be carried at fair value on a recurring basis; however, if certain 
triggering events occur, or at least annually for goodwill, such that a non-financial instrument is required to be 
evaluated for impairment, a resulting asset impairment would require that the non-financial instrument be recorded 
at the lower of cost or fair value.f

7. INVESTMENTS

Investments consisted of the following:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015
Equity method investments $ 641,327 $ 741,823
Cost method investments 58,154 65,807
Total investments $ 699,481 $ 807,630

Investments accounted for using the equity method include the following:

December 31,
2016 2015

UKTV 50.0% 50.0%
HGTV Magazine 50.0% 50.0%
Food Network Magazinek 50.0% 50.0%
Everytap 40.0% 40.0%
HGTV Canada 33.0% 33.0%
nC+ 32.0% 32.0%
Food Canada 29.0% 29.0%
Cooking Channel Canada 29.0% -
Onet 25.0% 25.0%
Fox Sports South - 7.3%

UKTV

UKTV receives financing through a loan provided by us. The loan, totaling $93.9 million and $112.1 million at 
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, is reported within other non-current assets on our
consolidated balance sheets. As a result of this financing arrangement and the level of equity investment at risk, we 
have determined that UKTV is a variable interest entity (“VIE”). SNI and its partner in the venture share equally in
the profits of the entity, have equal representation on UKTV’s board of directors and share voting control in such
matters as approving annual budgets, initiating financing arrangements and changing the scope of the business. 
However, our partner, the BBC, maintains control over certain operational aspects of the business related to
programming content, scheduling and the editorial and creative development of UKTV. Additionally, certain key 
management personnel of UKTV are employees of our partner. Since we do not control these activities that are 
critical to UKTV’s operating performance, we have determined that we are not the primary beneficiary of the entity 
and account for the investment under the equity method of accounting. The Company’s investment in UKTV totaled 
$305.1 million and $353.4 million at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
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A portion of the purchase price from our 50.0 percent investment in UKTV was attributed to amortizable intangible 
assets, which are included in the carrying value of our UKTV investment. Amortization expense attributed to
intangible assets recognized upon acquiring our interest in UKTV reduces equity in earnings we recognize from our 
UKTV investment. Accordingly, equity in earnings of affiliates includes our $46.0 million and $46.5 million 
proportionate share of UKTV’s results for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, 
respectively, which were reduced by amortization of $12.9 million and $16.8 million for the years ended December 
31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The table below summarizes estimated amortization that we expect 
to reduce the Company’s equity in UKTV’s earnings for future periods:

 ( in thousands )
Estimated

Amortization*
2017 $ 11,840
2018 $ 12,031
2019 $ 12,222
2020 $ 12,413
2021 $ 11,516
Thereafter $ 80,438
* The functional currency of UKTV is the GBP, so these amounts are subject to change as the GBP to USD exchange rate fluctuates.

nC+

The Company, through its ownership of TVN, has an investment in nC+, which is managed under the terms of a 
shareholders’ agreement. The nC+ shareholders’ agreement contains various standard provisions with regards to the
management of the business and related matters, as well as terms regarding disposition of ownership by either party. 
A portion of the purchase price from our 32.0 percent investment in nC+ was attributed to amortizable intangible 
assets, which are included in the carrying value of our nC+ investment. Amortization expense attributed to 
intangible assets recognized upon acquiring our interest in nC+ reduces equity in earnings we recognize from our 
nC+ investment. Accordingly, equity in earnings of affiliates includes our $6.6 million and $1.4 million 
proportionate share of nC+’s results for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively,
which were reduced by amortization of $0.9 million and $4.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 
December 31, 2015, respectively.

The table below summarizes estimated amortization that we expect to reduce the Company’s equity in nC+’s 
earnings for future periods:

 ( in thousands )
Estimated

Amortization*
2017 $ 3,970
2018 $ 3,970
2019 $ 3,970
2020 $ 3,970
2021 $ 3,970
Thereafter $ 22,768

* The functional currency of nC+ is the PLN, so these amounts are subject to change as the PLN to USD exchange rate fluctuates.

Fox Sports South 

On February 24, 2016, the Company sold its 7.3 percent equity interest in Fox Sports South to the controlling
interest holder for a sale price of $225.0 million upon the exercise of the Company’s put right. The sale of this 
ownership interest resulted in a gain of $208.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, which is recorded in
gain on sale of investments in our consolidated statements of operations and as both a gain on sale of investments 
within operating activities and as a cash inflow from sale of investments within investing activities in our
consolidated statements of cash flows. Further, the gain on sale resulted in tax expense of approximately $73.7 
million for ther  year ended December 31, 2016.
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Other Purchases and Disposals

On June 12, 2016, an investment in which the Company accounted for using the cost method was sold. The proceeds
from the sale totaled $1.5 million and resulted in a $16.4 million loss recognized for the year ended December 31, 
2016, which is recorded in gain on sale of investments in our consolidated statements of operations and as both a 
gain on sale of investments within operating activities and as a cash inflow from sale of investments within investing
activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows.

During the third quarter of 2016, the Company, through TVN, notified the controlling interest holder of Onet that it
is exercising its rights under the put option of its agreement. Discussions are currently ongoing regarding the value 
of the Company’s interest and the associated timing of finalization. 

The Company invested $5.0 million in Pluto TV and an additional $4.7 million in Refinery29 in 2016. Both 
investments are accounted for using the cost method of accounting.

During the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company launched Cooking Channel Canada, with an initial investment of
7.5 million CAD, or approximately $5.7 million, for a 29.0 percent non-controlling interest.

Supplemental Equity Method Investment Information 

Aggregated statements of operations data for investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting is as
follows:

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Operating revenues $ 1,499,020 $ 1,973,515 $ 1,333,239
Operating income $ 534,321 $ 753,249 $ 708,958
NNet income $ 197,090 $ 568,358 $ 522,435

During the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company became aware of updated financial projections that were below 
previous projections for an equity method investment, resulting in an impairment analysis. As a result, we identified 
a write-down of $10.7 million associated with this equity-method investment. This impact was recorded in 
miscellaneous, net within our consolidatedr  statements of operations.

Aggregated balance sheet information for investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting is as
follows:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015

Current assets $ 658,567 $ 847,444
Non-current assets 493,962 677,069

Total Assets $ 1,152,529 $ 1,524,513
Current liabilities $ 418,201 $ 475,582
Non-current liabilities 141,976 150,412
Equity 592,352 898,519

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 1,152,529 $ 1,524,513
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8. PROGRAMS AND PROGRAM LICENSES

Programs and program licenses consisted of the following:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015
Cost of programs available for broadcast $ 2,610,364 $ 2,588,311
Accumulated amortization (1,823,985) (1,764,532)
Cost of programs available for broadcast, net 786,379 823,779
Progress payments on programs not yet available for broadcast 305,021 288,119
Total programs and program licenses $ 1,091,400 $ 1,111,898

In addition to the programs owned or licensed by us included in the table above, we have commitments to license 
certain programming that is not yet available for broadcast. Additional remaining obligations under contracts to 
purchase or license programs not yet available for broadcast totaled approximately $272.5 million and $240.0
million as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. If the programs are not produced, our 
commitment to license the programs would generally expire without obligation.

Actual amortization in each of the next five years will exceed the amounts currently recorded as assets and presented 
above as we will continue to produce and license additional programs. Estimated amortization of recorded program
assets and the remaining obligations under contracts to purchase or license programs not yet available for broadcast, 
for each of the next five years is as follows:

Programs Programs Not
Available for Yet Available

(in thousands) Broadcast for Broadcast Total
2017 $ 433,829 $ 272,312 $ 706,141
2018 228,198 181,943 410,141
2019 94,999 73,198 168,197
2020 26,195 38,215 64,410
2021 2,745 11,699 14,444
Later years 413 160 573
Total $ 786,379 $ 577,527 $ 1,363,906

Program and program license expense, which consists of program amortization and program impairments, is
included within cost of services in our consolidated statements of operations. Program impairments totaled $90.7 
million in 2016, $70.4 million in 2015 and $38.4 million in 2014.

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015
Land and improvements $ 22,744 $ 23,606
Buildings and improvements 193,146 190,199
Equipment 188,908 172,302
Computer software 236,036 206,276
Total 640,834 592,383
Accumulated depreciation (354,435) (299,153)
Property and equipment, net $ 286,399 $ 293,230
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10. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill consisted of the following:f

December 31, 2016

(in thousands) Gross
Accumulated 

Impairments (1) Net
Goodwill $ 1,744,433 $ (102,264) $ 1,642,169
(1) All accumulated impairments to goodwill are within International Networks.

December 31, 2015

(in thousands) Gross
Accumulated 

Impairments (1) Net
Goodwill $ 1,849,134 $ (44,386) $ 1,804,748
(1) All accumulated impairments to goodwill are within International Networks.

Activity related to goodwill by business segment consisted of the following:

 (in thousands)
Goodwill U.S. Networks

International
Networks

Corporate 
and Other Total

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 510,484 $ 62,635 $ - $ 573,119
Purchase price allocation adjustment during the
measurement period - - - -
Additions - business acquisitions - 1,259,447 - 1,259,447
Foreign currency translation adjustment - (27,818) - (27,818)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 510,484 $ 1,294,264 $ - $ 1,804,748
Purchase price allocation adjustments - (46,124) - (46,124)
Additions - business acquisitions - 450 - 450
Goodwill write-down - (57,878) - (57,878)
Foreign currency translation adjustment - (59,027) - (59,027)
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 510,484 $ 1,131,685 $ - $ 1,642,169

To determine the fair value of our reporting units, we used market data and discounted cash flow analyses. As the 
primary determination of fair value is determined using a discounted cash flow model, the resulting fair value is
considered a Level 3 measurement. During the annual impairment analysis in 2016, management identified goodwill 
that was deemed to be impaired based upon economic conditions that differ from those forecasted in previous
periods. We wrote down the full value of the goodwill related to our EMEA and APAC reporting units, totaling 
$57.9 million, which is included within goodwill write-down in our consolidated statements of operations. No
impairment charges were identified as a result of our goodwill analyses in 2015.



73

Intangible assets consisted of the following:

December 31, 2016
(in thousands)
Intangible assets Gross

Accumulated 
Amortization Net

Acquired network distribution rights $ 717,834 $ (232,856) $ 484,978
Customer and advertiser lists 209,314 (93,232) 116,082
Copyrights and other tradenames 362,236 (61,286) 300,950
Broadcast licenses 114,832 (7,861) 106,971
Acquired rights and other 119,885 (36,184) 83,701
Total $ 1,524,101 $ (431,419) $ 1,092,682

December 31, 2015
(in thousands)
Intangible assets Gross

Accumulated 
Amortization Net

Acquired network distribution rights $ 744,962 $ (195,678) $ 549,284
Customer and advertiser lists 223,726 (81,892) 141,834
Copyrights and other tradenames 390,111 (30,875) 359,236
Broadcast licenses 124,030 (2,524) 121,506
Acquired rights and other 120,267 (29,463) 90,804
Total $ 1,603,096 $ (340,432) $ 1,262,664

Activity related to intangible assets by business segment consisted of thef  following:

 (in thousands)
Intangible Assets U.S. Networks

International
Networks

Corporate 
and Other Total

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 524,765 $ 71,116 $ - $ 595,881
Purchase price allocation adjustment during the
measurement period - - - -
Additions - business acquisitions - 761,362 - 761,362
Amortization (40,166) (28,481) - (68,647)
Foreign currency translation adjustment - (25,932) - (25,932)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 484,599 $ 778,065 $ - $ 1,262,664
Additions - other licenses - 11,634 - 11,634
Amortization (40,220) (67,279) - (107,499)
Intangible assets write-down - (15,943) - (15,943)
Other intangible write-downs (387) (387)
Foreign currency translation adjustment - (57,787) - (57,787)
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 444,379 $ 648,303 $ - $ 1,092,682

We recognized a $15.9 million impairment on the long-lived intangible assets of our APAC reporting unit, which 
was recognized as accelerated amortization in 2016. We did not record any long-lived intangible asset impairment in
2015.

Separately acquired intangible assets reflect the acquisition of certain rights that will expand our opportunity to earn 
future revenues. Cash payments for these acquired rights totaled $9.9 million, $11.0 million and $10.9 million in 
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are reported as other, net within investing activities in our consolidated 
statements of cash flows.
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Amortization expense associated with intangible assets for each of the next five years is expected to be as follows:

 ( in thousands ) Estimated Amortization *
2017 $ 98,413
2018 $ 96,484
2019 $ 96,431
2020 $ 82,512
2021 $ 79,404
Thereafter $ 639,438

* The functional currency of certain foreign subsidiaries differs from the USD, so these amounts are subject to
change as exchange rates fluctuate.

11. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued current liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015
Rent $ 19,899 $ 21,736
Advertising rebates 15,966 20,808
Marketing and advertising 14,385 11,437
Interest 6,644 8,400
Taxes payable 456 2,029
Other accrued expenses 95,130 95,559
Total accrued liabilities $ 152,480 $ 159,969

12. INCOME TAXES

We file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return, unitary tax returns in certain states and separate income tax
returns for certain of our subsidiary companies in other states, as well as in foreign jurisdictions. Included in our
federal and state income tax returns is our proportionate share of the taxable income or loss of partnerships and 
limited liability companies that are treated as partnerships for tax purposes (“pass-through entities”). Our 
consolidated financial statements do not include any significant provision for income taxes on the income of pass-
through entities attributed to the non-controlling interests.

Food Network and Cooking Channel are operated under thek  Partnership. 

Income (loss) from operations before income taxes consisted of the following:

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
United States $ 1,393,410 $ 1,187,353 $ 1,063,942
Foreign (115,632) (65,489) (36,091)
Total $ 1,277,778 $ 1,121,864 $ 1,027,851

The determination of US/non-US is primarily based on legald  entity structure, which differs from our reportable 
segment structure.
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The provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Current:

Federal $ 334,744 $ 345,204 $ 269,047
State and local 107,550 32,393 31,155
Foreign (1,553) (6,183) 2,038

Total current income tax provision 440,741 371,414 302,240
Deferred:

Federal (7,808) (31,731) 694
State and local (586) 5,611 85
Foreign (2,017) (1,903) (1,976)

Total deferred income tax (benefit) provision (10,411) (28,023) (1,197)
Provision for income taxes $ 430,330 $ 343,391 $ 301,043

During the year ended December 31, 2016 we had a current tax expense of $0.5 million allocated directly to
shareholders’ equity for compensation expense for tax purposes in excess of amounts recognized for financial 
reporting purposes. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, a current tax benefit of $1.2
million and $12.3 million, respectively, was allocated directly to shareholders’ equity for compensation expense for 
tax purposes in excess of amounts recognized forf  financial reporting purposes.

The difference between the statutory rate for federal income tax and the effective income tax rate was as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Effect of:

U.S. state and local income taxes, net of federal income
   tax benefit 5.6 2.2 2.2
Income of pass-through entitiesf  allocated to
   non-controlling interests (4.8) (5.4) (6.2)
Section 199 - Domestic Production Activities deduction (2.4) (2.5) (2.3)
Other 0.3 1.3 0.6

Effective income tax rate 33.7% 30.6% 29.3%
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The approximate effect of the temporary differences giving rise to deferred income tax (assets) liabilities were as 
follows:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses $ (32,120) $ (30,764)
Deferred compensation (85,524) (73,672)
Capital loss carry-forwards — (9,316)
NNet operating loss carry-forwards (145,414) (157,475)
Investments (129,113) (80,992)
State taxes and interest (52,999) (35,671)
Property and equipment (34,267) (30,885)
Other (32,310) (26,530)
Total deferred tax assets: (511,747) (445,305)
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets 157,675 178,132
Programs and program licenses 54,908 45,897
Other 5,544 5,880
Total deferred tax liabilities: 218,127 229,909
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 118,329 123,442
NNet deferred tax asset $ (175,291) $ (91,954)

As of December 31, 2016, there were $1.6 million of net operating loss carry-forwards for federal income tax
purposes with expiration beginning in 2032, $19.3 million of net operating loss carry-forwards in various state
jurisdictions with expiration dates between 2028 and 2034 and $702.3 million of net operating loss carry-forwards in 
various foreign jurisdictions. Some of the foreign losses have an indefinite carry-forward period and certain of the
foreign losses expire beginning in 2017. A large portion of the deferred tax assets for the foreign and state loss
carry-forwards has been reduced by a valuation allowance of $111.1 million, as it is more likely than not that these 
loss carry-forwards will not be realized.

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets totaling $118.3 million and $123.4 
million as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, as management believes it is more likely 
than not that certain deferred tax assets will not be realized in future tax periods. Future reductions in the valuation 
allowance associated with a change in management’s determination of the Company’s ability to realize these 
deferred tax assets may result in a decrease in the provision for income taxes. The decrease in valuation allowance is
primarily related to the impact of currency fluctuations in jurisdictions with historical valuation allowances partially
offset by an increase related to certain prior year foreign net operating losses that management has concluded will 
not be used within the applicable carryforward period. The valuation allowance was further impacted by 
management’s determination that it is more likely than not that certain foreign net operating losses incurred during
the year ended December 31, 2016r  will not be realized.

No provision has been made for United States federal and state income taxes or international income taxes that may
result from future remittances of the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries that are determined to be 
indefinitely reinvested, which were approximately $150.4 million at December 31, 2016. Determination of the 
amount of any unrecognized deferred income tax liability on these is not practicable.f
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the total amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as
follows:

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Gross unrecognized tax benefits - beginning of year $ 109,693 $ 96,166 $ 109,462
Increases in tax positions for prior years 9,567 19,679 2,169
Decreases in tax positions for prior years (19,243) - (11,254)
Increases in tax positions for current year 30,142 17,712 15,149
Settlements with taxing authorities (782) 495 -
Lapse in statute of limitationsf (58) (24,359) (19,360)
Gross unrecognized tax benefits - end of year $ 129,319 $ 109,693 $ 96,166

The total net unrecognized tax benefits that would affect the effective tax rate if recognized were $84.2 million at
December 31, 2016, $78.3 million at December 31, 2015 and $62.8 million at December 31, 2014. We accrue 
interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in our provision for income taxes. We recognized interest 
expense and penalties of approximately $7.4 million in 2016, $0.1 million in 2015 and $0.5 million in 2014. We 
have accrued gross interest and penalties of approximately $22.5 million in 2016, $11.5 million in 2015 and $10.9 
million in 2014.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. and in various state, local and foreign jurisdictions. We are routinely 
examined by tax authorities in these jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2016, the Company is no longer subject to 
U.S. federal examinations for years before 2013. It is possible that examinations by tax authorities in state and 
foreign jurisdictions may be resolved within twelve months. Exclusive of interest and penalties, it is reasonably 
possible that our gross unrecognized tax benefits may decrease within the next twelve months by a range of zero to 
$56.3 million, primarily due to settlement of taxf  examinations and expiration of thef  statute of limitations.f

With a few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to examinations by state, local or foreign tax authorities 
for years prior to 2012.
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13. DEBT

Debt consisted of the following:

December 31, 2016

(in thousands) Maturity Gross Debt Issuance Costs
Net Carrying 

Amount
Amended Revolving Credit Facility 2019 - 2020 475,000 $ - 475,000
Term Loan 2017 250,000 (68) 249,932
2.70% Senior Notes 2016 - - -
2.75% Senior Notes 2019 498,979 (2,124) 496,855
TVN 7.38% Senior Notes 2020 - - -
2.80% Senior Notes 2020 598,602 (3,378) 595,224
3.50% Senior Notes 2022 399,040 (2,975) 396,065
3.90% Senior Notes 2024 497,110 (3,133) 493,977
3.95% Senior Notes 2025 499,200 (3,867) 495,333
Total debt 3,217,931 (15,545) 3,202,386
Current portion of debt (250,000) 68 (249,932)
Debt (less current portion) $ 2,967,931 $ (15,477) $ 2,952,454
Fair value of debt *f $ 3,254,862

December 31, 2015

(in thousands) Maturity Gross Debt Issuance Costs
Net Carrying 

Amount
Amended Revolving Credit Facility 2019 - 2020 $ 390,000 $ (830) $ 389,170
Term Loan 2017 250,000 (871) 249,129
2.70% Senior Notes 2016 499,888 (714) 499,174
2.75% Senior Notes 2019 498,625 (2,875) 495,750
TVN 7.38% Senior Notes 2020 399,986 - 399,986
2.80% Senior Notes 2020 598,193 (4,397) 593,796
3.50% Senior Notes 2022 398,864 (3,555) 395,309
3.90% Senior Notes 2024 496,743 (3,533) 493,210
3.95% Senior Notes 2025 499,106 (4,358) 494,748
Total debt 4,031,405 (21,133) 4,010,272
Current portion of debt (499,888) 714 (499,174)
Debt (less current portion) $ 3,531,517 $ (20,419) $ 3,511,098
Fair value of debt *f $ 3,977,985

*The fair value of the Senior Notes was estimated using level 2 inputs comprised of quoted prices in active
markets, market indices and interest rate measurements for debt with similar remaining maturity.

Revolving Credit Facilitiest

In May 2015, we entered into the Amended Revolving Credit Facility. The Amended Revolving Credit Facility 
provides $250.0 million additional revolving loan capacity permitting borrowings up to an aggregate principal
amount of $900.0 million, which may be increased to $1,150.0 million at our option. Additionally, the Amended
Revolving Credit Facility extends the maturity date to March 2020, with the exception of $32.5 million, which 
remains scheduled to mature in March 2019.

Borrowings under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility incur interest charges based on the Company’s credit 
rating with drawn amounts incurring interest at LIBOR plus a range of 69 to 130 basis points and a facility fee 
ranging from 6 to 20 basis points, also subject to the Company’s credit ratings.
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The Company had outstanding borrowings of $475.0 million and $389.2 million under the Amended Revolving 
Credit Facility at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. Interest was calculated at an average
rate of approximately 1.83% and 1.44% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, 
respectively. The Company had $0.8 million and $1.1 million of outstanding letters of credit under the Amended 
Revolving Credit Facility at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

At the Acquisition Date, TVN had the TVN Facility in the amount of PLN 300.0 million and the Cash Loan in the 
amount of €25.0 million bearing interest at a floating rate of EURIBOR for the relevant interest period, plus the 
bank’s margin. The TVN Facility and Cash Loan were scheduled to mature in June 2017, but both were repaid in 
full and cancelledd  as of December 31, 2015.

Term Loan

In June 2015, we entered into a $250.0 million senior unsecured Term Loan agreement. The Term Loan has a
maturity date of June 2017, with outstanding borrowings incurring interest at LIBOR plus a range of 62.5 to 137.5 
basis points, subject to the Company’s credit ratings. The weighted average interest rate on the Term Loan was
1.71% and 1.37% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The Term Loan is
classified within current portion of debt on our consolidatedr  balance sheets in 2016.

Senior Notes

In September 2013, TVN Finance Corp. issued the 2020 TVN Notes.  Prior to December 15, 2016, TVN Finance 
Corp may redeem up to 40.0 percent of the original principal amount of the 2020 TVN Notes with net cash proceeds 
of one or more equity offerings at a redemption price of 107.38% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the redemption date.  Also, prior to December 15, 2016, TVN Finance Corp. may redeem up to 
10.0 percent of the original principal amount of the 2020 TVN Notes at a redemption price equal to 103.00% of the 
aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. A 10.0 percent
redemption was executed in September 2015, November 2015 and September 2016.

In November 2014, we completed the sale of the 2019 Notes and the 2024 Notes. Interest is due on the 2019 Notes
and 2024 Notes on May 15th and November 15th each year. Net proceeds from the issuance of these notes were
utilized to repay the 2015 Notes that matured in January 2015. 

In June 2015, we completed the sale of the 2020 Notes, the 2022 Notes and the 2025 Notes, the “Newly Issued 
Notes”. The Newly Issued Notes are unsecured senior obligations of the Company and rank equally in right of 
payment with the Company’s existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. The proceeds of the
Newly Issued Notes were used, in part, to fund thed  Transactions (see Note 4 – Acquisitions).

On July 31, 2015, the Company paid €364.9 million to retire the €300.0 million 2021 PIK Notes, which was debt at 
the parent of TVN and included as a component of the debt assumed in the Acquisition purchase price. The payment 
included the aggregate principal and a required make-whole component totaling €363.4 million, as well as accrued
interest of €1.5 million. The extinguishment of debt, including the make-whole component, is separately reflected 
within financing activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows.

On September 15, 2015 TVN Finance Corp. executed a partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes totaling €45.1 
million, comprised of principal of €43.0 million, accrued interest of €0.8 million and premium of €1.3 million. The 
extinguishment of debt is separately reflected withinf  financing activities in our consolidated statement of cashf  flows.

On November 16, 2015, TVN Finance Corp. executed a full early redemption of the 2018 TVN Notes totaling 
€118.9 million, comprised of principal of €116.6 million, accrued interest of a nominal amount and premium of €2.3
million. An additional €4.6 million was paid simultaneously in fulfillment of the November 15 coupon payment due.
The extinguishment of debt is separately reflected within financing activities in our consolidated statement of cash 
flows. 
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On November 16, 2015, TVN Finance Corp. executed a second partial pre-payment of the 2020 TVN Notes totaling 
€45.6 million, comprised of principal of €43.0 million, accrued interest of €1.3 million and premium of €1.3 million. 
At December 31, 2015, €344.0 million was outstanding on the 2020 TVN Notes. The extinguishment of debt is 
separately reflected within financing activities in our consolidated statement of cash flows.

On September 20, 2016, TVN Finance Corp. executed a third pre-payment of its 2020 TVN Notes totaling €45.1 
million, comprised of principal of €43.0 million, accrued interest of €0.8 million and premium of €1.3 million. The 
extinguishment of debt is separately reflected withinf  financing activities in our consolidated statement of cashf  flows.

On December 15, 2016, TVN Finance Corp. executed an early redemption for the balance of the 2020 TVN Notes 
outstanding totaling €323.2 million, comprised of principal of €301.0 million, accrued interest of €11.1 million and 
premium of €11.1 million. The extinguishment of debt is separately reflected within financing activities in our
consolidated statement of cash flows.

On December 15, 2016, the 2016 Notes matured and were repaid in full. The balance outstanding on the 2016 Notes 
is classified within current portion of debt on our consolidated balance sheets in 2015.

Amounts capitalized and included as a reduction against debt on our consolidated balance sheets, included $15.5 
million and $20.4 million of debt issuance costs as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
Debt issuance costs of $1.1 million and $0.8 million related to the Amended Revolving Credit Facility as of 
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, are included within other non-current assets and as a 
reduction against debt on our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, 
respectively. Debt issuance costs are related to the Amended Revolving Credit Facility, Term Loan and Newly 
Issued Notes that were undertaken to finance the Transactions. We amortized $6.0 million and $6.0 million of debt
issuance costs for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, within interest expense,
net in our consolidated statements of operations.

Debt Covenants

The Amended Revolving Credit Facility, Term Loan, all of our Senior Notes include certain affirmative and 
negative covenants, including limitations on the incurrence of additional indebtedness and maintenance of a 
maximum leverage ratio. 

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Plans

We sponsor the Pension Plan, which covers certain of our U.S.-based employees. Expense recognized in relation to 
the Pension Plan is based upon actuarial valuations. Inherent in those valuations are key assumptions including 
discount rates and, where applicable, expected returns on assets and projected future salary rates. The discount rates 
used in the valuation of the Pension Plan are evaluated annually based on current market conditions. Benefits are
generally based on the employee’s compensation and years of service.

We also have a SERP. The SERP, which is unfunded, provides defined pension benefits, in addition to what is
provided under the Pension Plan, to eligible executives based on average earnings, years of service and age at
retirement.

In 2009, the Pension Plan was amended whereby no additional service benefits will be earned by participants after 
December 31, 2009. The amount of eligible compensation that is used to calculate a plan participant’s pension 
benefit will continue to include any compensation earned by the employee through December 31, 2019, after which 
time all plan participants will have a frozen pension benefit.
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The measurement date used for the Pension Plan and SERP is December 31. The expense components consisted of
the following:

Pension Plan SERP
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Interest cost $ 3,133 $ 2,940 $ 3,279 $ 1,519 $ 1,713 $ 1,685
Expected return on plan
assets, net of expenses (3,851) (3,876) (4,571) - - -
Amortization of net loss 2,256 2,095 1,239 2,471 2,354 2,188
Special termination benefits - 860 1,838 - 290 365
Settlement charges - 3,345 2,021 2,514 1,121 2,279
Total $ 1,538 $ 5,364 $ 3,806 $ 6,504 $ 5,478 $ 6,517

In the fourth quarter of 2014, we announced the Restructuring Plan, providing each affected employee the benefit of
an additional three years of credited service related to the applicable Pension Plan and SERP for which they qualify
(see Note 5 – Employee Termination Programs). The special termination benefits charge represents the cost of
providing these additional benefits to the employees retiring under the terms of the Restructuring Plan.r

We made a contribution of $10.0 million to fund the Pension Plan during the year ended December 31, 2016 and did
not make any contributions during the year ended December 31, 2015. We do not anticipate contributing any cash to 
fund the Pension Plan in 2017.

We made $5.7 million and $2.7 million in SERP benefit payments during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 
December 31, 2015, respectively. We anticipate contributing $11.8 million to fund current benefit payments for the 
SERP in 2017.

Assumptions used in determining the annual retirement plans expense were as follows:

Pension Plan SERP
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Discount rate 3.75% 3.46% 4.27% 3.39% 3.14% 3.62%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% N/A N/A N/A
Increase in compensation levels 4.32% 4.54% 5.05% 3.10% 4.41% 4.83%

Input Description
Discount rate Based on a bond portfolio approach that includes securities rated Aa or 

bbetter with maturities matching our expected benefit payments from the
pplans

Long-term rate of return on plan assets Based on the weighted-average expected rate of return and capital 
market forecasts for each asset class employed and also considers our 
historical compounded return on plan assets for ten and 15 year periods

Increase in compensation levels Based on actual past experience and the near-term outlook
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Obligations and Funded Statusd

Defined benefit pension plan obligations and funded status are actuarially valued as of the end of each year. The 
following table presents information about our plan assets and obligations:

Pension Plan SERP
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 88,733 $ 78,859 $ 49,520 $ 46,428
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of yearf $ 84,621 $ 92,384 $ 52,274 $ 52,374
Interest cost 3,133 2,940 1,519 1,713
Benefits paid (3,750) (484) (251) (251)
Actuarial losses (gains) 10,728 (525) 7,395 566
Curtailments - - - -
Special termination benefits - 860 - 290
Settlement charges - (10,554) (5,473) (2,418)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year 94,732 84,621 55,464 52,274
Plan assets:
Fair value at beginning of year 45,713 59,096 - -
Actual return on plan assets 3,667 (2,345) - -
Company contributions 10,000 - 5,724 2,669
Benefits paid (3,750) (484) (251) (251)
Settlement charges - (10,554) (5,473) (2,418)
Fair value at end of year 55,630 45,713 - -
Under funded status $ (39,102) $ (38,908) $ (55,464) $ (52,274)
Amounts recognized as assets and liabilities in
  the consolidated balance sheets:
Current liabilities $ - $ - $ (11,832) $ (17,500)
NNon-current liabilities (39,102) (38,908) (43,632) (34,774)
Total $ (39,102) $ (38,908) $ (55,464) $ (52,274)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
loss consist of:
NNet loss $ 36,158 $ 27,502 $ 25,142 $ 22,731

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive 
loss consist of:

Pension Plan SERP
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
NNet actuarial loss $ 10,912 $ 5,695 $ 14,801 $ 7,395 $ 566 $ 6,650
Amortization of net loss (2,256) (2,095) (1,239) (2,471) (2,354) (2,188)
Curtailment charges - - (1,097) - - (53)
Settlement charges - (3,345) (2,021) (2,514) (1,121) (2,279)
Total recognized in other comprehensive 
loss (income) 8,656 255 10,444 2,410 (2,909) 2,130
NNet periodic benefit cost 1,538 5,364 3,806 6,504 5,478 6,517
Total recognized in net periodic benefit
cost and
   other comprehensive loss $ 10,194 $ 5,619 $ 14,250 $ 8,914 $ 2,569 $ 8,647
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We expect to recognize $3.1 million and $2.4 million of amortization related to the Pension Plan and SERP, 
respectively, from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost for the net actuarial loss
during 2017.

Information for defined benefit plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets was as follows:

Pension Plan SERP
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 88,733 $ 78,859 $ 49,520 $ 46,428
Fair value of plan assetsf $ 55,630 $ 45,713 $ - $ -

Information for defined benefit plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets was as follows:

Pension Plan SERP
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Projected benefit obligation $ 94,732 $ 84,621 $ 55,464 $ 52,274
Fair value of plan assetsf $ 55,630 $ 45,713 $ - $ -

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for the defined plans were as follows:

Pension Plan SERP
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rate 3.60% 3.75% 3.13% 3.39%
Rate of compensation increases 4.20% 4.32% 3.37% 4.26%

Plan Assets

Our investment policy is to maximize the total rate of return on plan assets to meet the long-term funding obligations 
of the Pension Plan. Plan assets are invested using a combination of active management and passive investment 
strategies. Risk is controlled through diversification among multiple asset classes, managers, styles and securities. 
Risk is further controlled both at the manager and asset class level by assigning return targets and evaluating 
performance against these targets. Information related to our Pension Plan asset allocations by asset category were 
as follows:

Target Allocations December 31,
Investment Type for 2017 2016 2015
U.S. equity securities 27.0% 32.7% 25.1%
NNon-U.S. equity securities 39.0% 35.1% 43.0%
Fixed-income securities 30.0% 27.2% 22.4%
Other 4.0% 5.0% 9.5%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Investment Type Description
U.S. equity securities Includes common stocks of large, medium and smalld  companies that are

ppredominantly U.S.-based
NNon-U.S. equity securities Includes common stocks of large, medium and smalld  companies that are 

domiciled outside the U.S.
Fixed-income securities Includes securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government and corporate

debt obligations as well as investments in hedge fund products
Other Includes real estate investment, such as office, retail, apartment and industrial 

pproperties
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Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following table sets forth our plan asset categories that are measured at fair value as of December 31, 2016 and 
December 31, 2015 and the level of inputs utilized for fair value.

December 31, 2016
(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
U.S. equity securities

Mutual funds $ 18,222 $ 18,222 $ — $ —
NNon-U.S. equity securities

Mutual funds 19,563 19,563 — —
Fixed income securities

Mutual funds 15,135 15,135 — —
Other

Alternative investment funds 2,609 2,609 —
Subtotal $ 55,529 $ 52,920 $ 2,609 $ —
Cash 102 102 — —
Total $ 55,631 $ 53,022 $ 2,609 $ —

December 31, 2015
(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
U.S. equity securities

Mutual funds $ 11,457 $ 11,457 $ — $ —
NNon-U.S. equity securities

Mutual funds 19,634 19,634 — —
Fixed income securities

Mutual funds 10,222 10,222 — —
Other

Alternative investment funds 3,681 — 3,681 —
Subtotal $ 44,994 $ 41,313 $ 3,681 $ —
Cash 719 719 — —
Total $ 45,713 $ 42,032 $ 3,681 $ —

The estimated future benefit payments expected to be paid out of the defined benefit plans for the next ten years are 
as follows:

(in thousands) Pension Plan SERP
2017 $ 5,605 $ 11,832
2018 $ 6,335 $ 5,923
2019 $ 5,907 $ 5,432
2020 $ 6,997 $ 10,849
2021 $ 6,448 $ 2,687
Thereafter $ 33,179 $ 12,785

Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

Substantially all U.S.-based employees of the Company are covered by a Company-sponsored defined contribution 
plan (“DC Plan”). The Company matches a portion of employees’ voluntary contribution to this plan and makes 
additional contributions to eligible employees’ 401K accounts in accordance with enhanced provisions to the DC 
Plan. The amount contributed to each employee’s account is a percentage of the employee’s total eligible 
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compensation based on age and service with the Company as of the first day of each year. Expense related to our 
DC plan was $17.8 million in 2016, $17.4 million in 2015 and $17.5 million in 2014.d

Employees of TVN and their subsidiaries are covered by state managed defined contribution plans. Contributions to
these defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement in the period to which they relate.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

We have a non-qualified executive deferred compensation plan (“Deferred Compensation Plan”) that is available to 
certain management level employees and directors of the Company. Under the Deferred Compensation Plan, 
participants may elect to defer receipt of a portion of their annual base compensation and/or bonus. The Deferred 
Compensation Plan is intended to be an unfunded plan maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred 
compensation benefits. We use corporate-owned life insurance contracts held in a rabbi trust to support the plan. We 
had investments within this rabbi trust valued at $45.0 million, including $34.4 million of cash surrender value of 
Company-owned life insurance contracts and $10.6 million held in mutual funds, at December 31, 2016. We had 
investments within this rabbi trust valued at $42.8 million, including $27.0 million of cash surrender value of 
Company-owned life insurance contracts and $15.8 million held in mutual funds, at December 31, 2015. These
mutual funds are valued using Level 1 and Level 2 inputs. These instruments are included within other non-current 
assets on our consolidated balance sheets. Gains or losses related to these insurance contracts are included within
miscellaneous, net in our consolidated statements of operations. The unsecured obligation to pay the deferred 
compensation, adjusted to reflect the positive or negative performance of investment measurement options selected
by each participant, totaled a negative performance of $1.7 million and a positive performance of $1.7 million at
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, and is included within employee compensation and 
benefits on our consolidated balance sheets. Additionally, the non-current portion of the unsecured obligation to pay 
the deferred compensation was $47.0 million and $42.0 million at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, 
respectively, which is included within other non-current liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets.

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other non-current liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015
Pension and post-employment benefits $ 82,734 $ 73,683
Deferred compensation 47,008 41,992
Uncertain tax positions 151,821 101,908
Other 21,318 32,808
Other non-current liabilities $ 302,881 $ 250,391

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIALE  INSTRUMENTS

In order to minimize earnings and cash flow volatility resulting from foreign currency exchange rate changes we 
may enter into derivative instruments, principally forward and option foreign currency contracts. These contracts are 
designed to hedge anticipated foreign currency transactions and changes in the value of specific assets, liabilities and 
probable commitments. We do not enter into derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes. r

The free-standing derivative forward contracts are used to offset our exposure to the change in value of specific 
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. These derivatives are not designated as hedges. Changes in the 
value of these contracts are recognized in earnings, thereby offsetting the current earnings effect of the related 
change in functional currency value of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. The gross notional 
amount of these contracts outstandingf  was zero at December 31, 2016 and $118.6 million at December 31, 2015. 

We recognized $17.9 million and $50.3 million of net gains from derivatives for the years ended December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015, respectively, included within gain on derivatives in the consolidated statements of 
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operations. Additionally, we have foreign exchange transaction losses of $16.1 million and $22.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, which are included within miscellaneous, net 
in our consolidated statements of operations.

17. REDEEMABLE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTG

Redeemable Non-controlling Interests

A non-controlling owner previously held a 35.0 percent residual interest in the Travel Channel. The owner of the 
non-controlling interest had a put option requiring us to purchase their interest, and we had a call option to acquire 
their interest. We exercised our call option and executed a contract on February 25, 2016 for an agreed upon price of 
$99.0 million. We now own 100.0 percent of Travel Channel. 

A non-controlling owner previously held a 30.0 percent interest in FNLA. In September 2016, we reached an
agreement with the owner of the non-controlling interest in FNLA to purchase their interest in the entity for $4.5
million, and closed this transaction in December 2016. We now own 100.0 percent of FNLA.f

The following table summarizes the activity for account balances whose fair value measurements are estimated 
utilizing Level 3 inputs:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015
Redeemable non-controlling interests beginning period balance $ 99,000 $ 96,251

Net income (loss) 1,018 (2,760)
Fair value adjustments 3,482 17,794
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - (12,985)
Additions to non-controlling interests - 700
Purchase of non-controlling interest (103,500) -

Redeemable non-controlling interests ending period balance $ - $ 99,000

The net income amounts reflected in the table above are reported within net income attributable to non-controlling
interests in our consolidated statements of operations.

Non-controlling Interest

The Food Network and Cooking Channel are operated and organized under the terms of the Partnership. The 
Company and a non-controlling owner hold interests in the Partnership. During the fourth quarter of 2016, the 
Partnership agreement was extended and specifies a dissolution date of December 31, r 2020. If the term of the 
Partnership is not extended prior to that date, the Partnership agreement permits the Company, as holder of 80.0
percent of the applicable votes, to reconstitute the Partnership and continue its business. If for some reason the 
Partnership is not continued, it will be required to limit its activities to winding up, settling debts, liquidating assets 
and distributing proceeds to the partners in proportion to their partnership interests. 

18. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Capital Stock

SNI’s capital structure includes Common Voting Shares and Class A Common Shares. Our Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation provide that the holders of Class A Common Shares, who are not entitled to vote on any 
other matters except as required by Ohio law, are entitled to elect the greater of three or one-third of the directors.
The Common Voting Shares and Class A Common Shares have equal dividend distribution rights.
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Incentive Plans

The Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. 2015 Amended LTI Plan provides for long-term equity incentive 
compensation for key employees and members of the Board. The 2015 Amended LTI Plan authorizes the grant of 
discretionary awards for employees and non-employee directors in the form of incentive or non-qualified stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, RSU, performance shares, PBRSUs and other share-based 
awards and dividend equivalents. The Company has reserved 8.0 million Class A Common Shares for issuance 
under the 2015 Amended LTI Plan.

The 2015 Amended LTI Plan will remain in effect until February 2025, unless terminated sooner by the Board. 
Termination will not affect outstanding grants and awards. The 2015 Amended LTI Plan replaced the Scripps 
Networks Interactive, Inc. 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Prior LTI Plan”), and no further awards will be
made under the Prior LTI Plan; however, awards granted under the Prior LTI Plan remain outstanding in accordance 
with their terms.

We satisfy stock option exercises and vested stock awards with newly-issued shares. Shares available for future 
share compensation grants totaled 6.7 million at December 31, 2016.

Stock Options

Stock options grant the recipient the right to purchase Class A Common Shares at not less than 100.0 percent of the 
fair market value on the date the option is granted. Stock options granted to employees generally vest ratably over a
three year period conditioned upon the individual's continued employment through that period, while those granted 
to non-employee directors vest over a one year period. Stock options generally vest immediately upon retirement,
death or disability of the employee or upon a change in control of the Company or of the business in which the 
individual is employed. Unvested awards are forfeited if employment is terminated for other reasons. Stock options 
granted to employees generally have eight year terms, while those granted to non-employee directors have a ten year 
term for options granted prior to 2010. Stock options granted in 2010 and later have eight year terms.

Options generally become exercisable over a three year period. Information about options outstanding and options
exercisable is as follows:

 (shares in thousands)
Number of 

Shares

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price

Weighted 
Average

Remaining
Term (in years)

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2015 2,371 $ 57.38
Granted 585
Exercised (352)
Forfeited (36)

Outstanding at December 31, 2016 2,568 60.04 4.6 $ 25,211
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2016 2,568 60.04 4.6 25,211
Options exercisable at December 31, 2016 1,713 $ 56.77 3.5 $ 25,211

The following table presents additional information on exercises of stock options:f

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Cash received upon exercise $ 15,110 $ 9,207 $ 39,605
Intrinsic value $ 7,925 $ 6,030 $ 40,961

Restricted Stock Units

RSUs are converted into equal number of Class A Common Shares at the vesting date. The fair value of RSUs is
based on the closing price of Class A Common Shares on the grant date. RSUs vest over a range of one to five years 
conditioned upon the individual’s continued employment through that period. RSUs generally vest immediately
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upon retirement, death or disability of the employee or upon a change in control of the Company or of the business 
in which the individual is employed. Unvested RSUs are forfeited if employmentf  is terminated for other reasons.

The following table presents additional information about RSUs:

Grant Date Fair Value
(shares in thousands) Units Weighted Average
Unvested units at December 31, 2015 494 $ 60.26

Granted 308 $ 62.25
Converted (406) $ 69.38
Forfeited (16) $ 63.41

Unvested units at December 31, 2016 380 $ 46.48

In addition, PBRSUs that have been awarded represent the right to receive a grant of RSUs if certain performance
measures are met. Each award specifies a target number of shares to be issued and the specific performance criteria
that must be met. The number of shares that an employee receives may be less or more than the target number of 
shares, depending on the extent to which the specified performance measures are attained. The shares earned are 
issued as RSUs following the performance period and vest over a service period from the date of issuance. During
2016, PBRSUs with a target of 367,528 Class A Common Shares were granted with a weighted-average grant date 
fair value of $61.17 and have a two year performance period based on the Company’s cash flow initiatives (the 
“2016 PBRSUs”). During 2015, PBRSUs with a target of 61,390 Class A Common Shares were granted with a 
weighted-average grant date fair value of $72.30 and have a two year performance period based on the Company’s 
cash flow initiatives (the “2015 PBRSUs”). The Company achieved 106.8 percent of the target for the 2015 
PBRSUs. We expect all unvested PBRSUs to vest. 

Share-Based Compensation

Compensation expense is based on the grant date fair value of the award. The fair value of awards that grant an 
individual the underlying shares such as RSUs and PBRSUs, is measured by the fair value of a Class A Common 
Share of SNI stock. The fair value of awards that grant an individual the right to the appreciation of the underlying 
shares, such as stock options, is measured using a binomial lattice model. A Monte Carlo simulation model is used
to determine the fair value of awards with market conditions.f

Compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award, with the 
impact of forfeitures realized as terminations occur. The requisite service period is generally the vesting period 
stated in the award. A portion of our share-based grants generally vest upon the retirement of the employee, so
grants to retirement-eligible employees are expensed immediately, and grants to employees who will become
retirement-eligible prior to the end of the stated vesting period are expensed over such shorter period.

The weighted-average assumptions SNI used in the model are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Weighted-average fair value of stock options granted $ 12.53 $ 15.18 $ 19.20
Assumptions used to determine fair value:

Dividend yield 1.62% 1.28% 0.99%
Risk-free rate of return 1.29% 1.49% 1.53%
Expected life (years) 4.9 5.0 5.0
Expected volatility 25.2% 24.7% 27.2%
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Input Description
Dividend yield Considers our historical dividend yield paid and expected dividend yield over the lifer  of thef

options
Risk-free rate Based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant
Expected life Represents the weighted-average period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding

and is a derived output of the valuation model
Expected volatility Based on a combination of historical share price volatility for a longer period and the implied 

volatility of exchange-traded options on our Class A Common Sharesf

Share-based compensation was as follows:

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Stock options $ 7,337 $ 7,399 $ 7,692
RSUs and PBRSUsd 27,861 22,169 27,782
Total share-based compensation $ 35,198 $ 29,568 $ 35,474

Unrecognized share-based compensation expense as of December 31, 2016 was as follows:

 (in thousands) Amount Weighted-Average Period
Stock options $ 1,791 1.9 years
RSUs and PBRSUsd 24,539 1.9 years
Total unrecognized share-based compensation $ 26,330

Share Repurchase Program

The Repurchase Programs authorized by the Board permit us to acquire the Company’s Class A Common Shares.
We did not repurchase any shares during the year ended December 31, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 
2015, we repurchased 4.0 million shares for $288.5 million, including 3.0 million shares repurchased for $216.8 
million from Scripps family members. During the year ended December 31, 2014, we repurchased 15.4 million 
shares for $1,200.0 million, including 4.5 million shares repurchased for $339.5 million from Scripps family 
members. 

As of December 31, 2016, $1,512.5 million in authorization remains available for repurchase under the Repurchase
Programs. All shares repurchased under the Repurchase Programs are retired and returned to authorized and 
unissued shares. There is no expiration date for the Repurchase Programs, and we are under no commitment or 
obligation to repurchase any particular amount of Class A Common Shares under the Repurchase Programs.
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19. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Changes in the accumulated other comprehensive income or loss (“AOCI”) balance by component consisted of the
following:

Year ended December 31, 2016

(in thousands)
Foreign Currency 

Translation
Pension Plan and 
SERP Liability

Total Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

(Loss) Income
Beginning period balance $ (98,239) $ (31,994) $ (130,233)
Other comprehensive (loss) before reclassifications (226,469) (11,066) (237,535)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI — 4,067 4,067
NNet current-period other comprehensive (loss) (226,469) (6,999) (233,468)
Ending period balance $ (324,708) $ (38,993) $ (363,701)

Year ended December 31, 2015

(in thousands)
Foreign Currency 

Translation
Pension Plan and 
SERP Liability

Total Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

(Loss) Income
Beginning period balance $ (25,122) $ (32,769) $ (57,891)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications (73,117) 2,653 (70,464)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI — (1,878) (1,878)
NNet current-period other comprehensive (loss) income (73,117) 775 (72,342)
Ending period balance $ (98,239) $ (31,994) $ (130,233)

Year ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands)
Foreign Currency 

Translation
Pension Plan and 
SERP Liability

Total Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

(Loss) Income
Beginning period balance $ 12,449 $ (24,978) $ (12,529)
Other comprehensive (loss) before reclassifications (37,571) (13,291) (50,862)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI — 5,500 5,500
NNet current-period other comprehensive (loss) (37,571) (7,791) (45,362)
Ending period balance $ (25,122) $ (32,769) $ (57,891)

Amounts reported in the table above are net of income tax.

Amounts reclassified to net earnings for Pension Plan and SERP liability adjustments relate to the amortization of 
actuarial losses and settlement charges. These amounts are included within selling, general and administrative in our 
consolidated statements of operations (see Note 14 - Employee Benefit Plans).

20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We are involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business, none of which is expected to result in a 
material loss.

Minimum payments on non-cancelable leases at December 31, 2016 are as follows:

 ( in thousands )
2017 $ 29,573
2018 $ 27,910
2019 $ 22,728
2020 $ 20,486
2021 $ 18,171
Thereafter $ 1,960
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We expect that the majority of our operating leases will be replaced with leases for similar facilities upon their
expiration.

Rental expense for cancelable and non-cancelable leases was as follows:

 ( in thousands )
2016 $ 26,643
2015 $ 28,444
2014 $ 29,230

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into long-term service contracts to obtain satellite transmission services 
or other services. Liabilities for such commitments are recorded when the related services are rendered.

Minimum payments on satellite transmission services at December 31, 2016 are asr  follows:

 ( in thousands )
2017 $ 51,570
2018 $ 28,735
2019 $ 19,392
2020 $ 9,543
2021 $ 3,954
Thereafter $ 6,344

We expect these contracts will be replaced with similar contracts upon their expiration.

21. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s operating segments are determined based upon our management and internal reporting structure.

The Company has two reportable segments: U.S. Networks and International Networks. 

U.S. Networks includes our six domestic television networks: HGTV, Food Network, Travel Channel, DIY 
Network, Cooking Channel and Great American Country. Additionally, U.S. Networks includes websites associated 
with the aforementioned television brands and other internet and digital businesses serving home, food, travel and
other lifestyle-related categories. U.S. Networks also includes our digital content studio, Scripps Lifestyle Studios. 
We own 100.0 percent of each of our networks, with the exception of Food Network and Cooking Channel, of 
which we own 68.7 percent. Each of our networks is distributed by cable and satellite operators, telecommunication
suppliers and other digital providers, such as those providing streaming or on-demand services. U.S. Networks
generates revenues primarily from advertising sales and distribution fees earned from the right to distribute our 
programming content. U.S. Networks also earns revenue from licensing content to third parties and brands for 
consumer products.

International Networks includes the TVN portfolio of networks and other lifestyle-oriented networks available in the
UK, EMEA, APAC and Latin America. International Networks also includes our 50.0 percent share of the results of 
UKTV, a general entertainment and lifestyle channel platform in the UK.

Corporate and Other includes the results of businesses not separately identified as reportable segments for external 
financial reporting purposes and will continue to be disclosed separately from the results of U.S. Networks and 
International Networks. The Company generally does not allocate employee-related corporate overhead costs to its 
reportable segments, but rather classifies these expenses within Corporate and Other.

Intersegment revenue eliminations are included in Corporate and Other and totaled $27.0 million and $26.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
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Our CODM, whom we have identified as our CEO, evaluates the operating performance of our businesses and 
makes decisions about the allocation of resources to the businesses using a measure we refer to as segment profit. 
Segment profit is defined as operating income excluding depreciation, amortization and goodwill write-downs. 
Because segment profit is based on operating income, it excludes interest expense, equity in earnings of affiliates,
gain on derivatives, gain on sale of investments, other miscellaneous non-operating expenses and income taxes, 
which are included in net income determined in accordance with GAAP.

Information regarding our segmentsr  is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2016

(in thousands) U.S. Networks
International

Networks
Corporate and

Other Consolidated
Operating revenues:

Advertising $ 2,029,095 $ 387,308 $ — $ 2,416,403
Distribution 785,849 108,529 (11) 894,367
Other 56,480 61,215 (27,030) 90,665

Total operating revenues 2,871,424 557,052 (27,041) 3,401,435
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and
amortization 887,554 324,429 (18,755) 1,193,228
Selling, general and administrative 570,420 132,226 104,087 806,733

Segment profit (loss)t 1,413,450 100,397 (112,373) 1,401,474
Depreciation 59,298 12,205 56 71,559
Amortization 40,220 83,222 — 123,442
Goodwill write-down — 57,878 — 57,878
Operating income (loss) $ 1,313,932 $ (52,908) $ (112,429) $ 1,148,595

Equity in earnings of affiliates $ 23,943 $ 47,439 $ — $ 71,382
Additions to property and equipment: $ 45,865 $ 22,983 $ 7,017 $ 75,865

Year ended December 31, 2015

(in thousands) U.S. Networks
International

Networks
Corporate and

Other Consolidated
Operating revenues:

Advertising $ 1,851,574 $ 210,956 $ — $ 2,062,530
Distribution 800,134 74,850 — 874,984
Other 64,955 42,085 (26,327) 80,713

Total operating revenues 2,716,663 327,891 (26,327) 3,018,227
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and
amortization 794,387 206,321 (13,351) 987,357
Selling, general and administrative 585,087 90,677 109,415 785,179

Segment profit (loss)t 1,337,189 30,893 (122,391) 1,245,691
Depreciation 59,428 10,760 2,924 73,112
Amortization 40,166 28,481 — 68,647
Operating income (loss) $ 1,237,595 $ (8,348) $ (125,315) $ 1,103,932

Equity in earnings of affiliates $ 43,851 $ 37,065 $ — $ 80,916
Additions to property and equipment: $ 40,120 $ 10,424 $ 1,936 $ 52,480
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Year ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands) U.S. Networks
International

Networks
Corporate and

Other Consolidated
Operating revenues:

Advertising $ 1,787,647 $ 28,741 $ — $ 1,816,388
Distribution 755,950 43,228 — 799,178
Other 44,760 18,211 (13,081) 49,890

Total operating revenues 2,588,357 90,180 (13,081) 2,665,456
Cost of services, excluding depreciation and
amortization 717,867 67,547 (6,518) 778,896
Selling, general and administrative 602,073 64,487 98,239 764,799

Segment profit (loss)t 1,268,417 (41,854) (104,802) 1,121,761
Depreciation 64,490 4,252 5,107 73,849
Amortization 48,318 7,285 — 55,603
Operating income (loss) $ 1,155,609 $ (53,391) $ (109,909) $ 992,309

Equity in earnings of affiliates $ 42,613 $ 43,018 $ — $ 85,631
Additions to property and equipment: $ 50,042 $ 8,212 $ 540 $ 58,794

No single customer provides more than 10.0 percent of our revenue.

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Operating revenues by geographic location:

United States $ 2,884,474 $ 2,726,124 $ 2,602,103
Poland 443,388 $ 224,720 $ -
Other International 73,573 67,383 63,353

Total operating revenues $ 3,401,435 $ 3,018,227 $ 2,665,456

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Assets:

U.S. Networks $ 2,800,137 $ 2,937,428 $ 2,864,074
International Networks 2,991,607 3,276,989 660,215
Corporate and Other 408,550 457,897 1,133,192

Total assets $ 6,200,294 $ 6,672,314 $ 4,657,481
Long-lived assets by geographic location:

United States $ 1,809,919 $ 1,903,918 $ 1,919,692
Poland 2,172,743 2,406,842 -
Other International 384,242 541,719 562,363

Total long-lived assets $ 4,366,904 $ 4,852,479 $ 2,482,055

Other additions to long-lived assets include investments, capitalized intangible assets and capitalized programs.

As of December 31, assets held by our businesses outside of the United States totaled $2,955.8 million for 2016, 
$3,238.2 million for 2015 and $590.0 million for 2014.
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22. SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
Year ended December 31, 2016

(in thousands, except pert  sharer  data)
1st 

Quarter
2nd 

Quarter
3rd 

Quarter
4th

Quarter Total
Operating revenues $816,878 $ 892,771 $ 803,085 $ 888,701 $ 3,401,435
Operating expenses:

 depreciation and amortization 279,667 286,999 298,207 328,355 1,193,228
Selling, general and administrative 198,821 191,133 200,820 215,959 806,733
Depreciation 17,297 16,089 20,370 17,803 71,559
Amortization 31,062 25,654 25,771 40,955 123,442
Goodwill write-down - - - 57,878 57,878

Total operating expenses 526,847 519,875 545,168 660,950 2,252,840
Operating income 290,031 372,896 257,917 227,751 1,148,595
Interest expense, net (33,745) (33,175) (32,609) (29,912) (129,441)
Equity in earnings of affiliates 25,678 21,712 8,473 15,519 71,382
Gain on derivatives 2,766 8,267 2,827 4,008 17,868
Gain (loss) on sale of investments 208,197 (16,373) - - 191,824
Miscellaneous, net 6,066 (21,672) 21,276 (28,120) (22,450)
Income from operations before income taxes 498,993 331,655 257,884 189,246 1,277,778
Provision for income taxes 159,047 98,303 76,043 96,937 430,330
NNet income 339,946 233,352 181,841 92,309 847,448
Less: net income attributable to non-controlling interests (49,049) (48,744) (35,844) (40,216) (173,853)
NNet income attributable to SNI $290,897 $ 184,608 $ 145,997 $ 52,093 $ 673,595

NNet income attributable to SNI common shareholders per share of
common stock:

$ 2.25 $ 1.42 $ 1.13 $ 0.40 $ 5.20
Diluted $ 2.24 $ 1.42 $ 1.12 $ 0.40 $ 5.18

Weighted average shares outstanding:
129,295 129,562 129,586 129,661 129,529

Diluted 129,790 130,141 130,124 130,350 130,104

Cash dividends declared per share of common stock $ 0.25 $ 0.25 $ 0.25 $ 0.25 $ 1.00
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Year ended December 31, 2015

(in thousands, except pert  sharer  data)
1st 

Quarter
2nd

Quarter
3rd 

Quarter
4th 

Quarter Total
Operating revenues $658,250 $732,102 $776,122 $851,753 $3,018,227
Operating expenses:

199,147 195,087 270,150 322,973 987,357
Selling, general and administrative 202,187 178,498 193,645 210,849 785,179
Depreciation 19,411 14,842 18,399 20,460 73,112
Amortization 11,695 11,640 22,932 22,380 68,647

Total operating expenses 432,440 400,067 505,126 576,662 1,914,295
Operating income 225,810 332,035 270,996 275,091 1,103,932
Interest expense, net (12,967) (16,835) (50,439) (27,806) (108,047)
Equity in earnings of affiliates 18,945 27,290 23,392 11,289 80,916
Gain on derivatives 5,933 37,198 4,037 3,088 50,256
Miscellaneous, net (402) (13,194) (9,543) 17,946 (5,193)
Income from operations before income taxes 237,319 366,494 238,443 279,608 1,121,864
Provision for income taxes 71,249 120,326 75,110 76,706 343,391
NNet income 166,070 246,168 163,333 202,902 778,473
Less: net income attributable to non-controlling interests (42,227) (52,450) (38,774) (38,194) (171,645)
NNet income attributable to SNI $123,843 $193,718 $124,559 $164,708 $ 606,828

NNet income attributable to SNI common shareholders per 
share of common stock:

$ 0.94 $ 1.50 $ 0.96 $ 1.27 $ 4.68
Diluted $ 0.94 $ 1.49 $ 0.96 $ 1.27 $ 4.66

Weighted average shares outstanding:
131,259 129,225 129,177 129,211 129,665

Diluted 131,942 129,868 129,704 129,728 130,255

Cash dividends declared per share of common stock $ 0.23 $ 0.23 $ 0.23 $ 0.23 $ 0.92

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONSY

Members of the Scripps family who are parties to the Scripps Family Agreement hold a controlling interest in the 
Scripps Company (“EWS”); therefore, EWS is a related party of the company. The Scripps Family Agreement 
governs the transfer and voting of all Common Voting Shares held by certain descendants of Robert P. Scripps, 
descendants of John P. Scripps, certain trusts of which descendants of John P. Scripps or Robert P. Scripps are 
trustees or beneficiaries and an estate of a descendent of Robert P. Scripps, who are signatories to such agreement. 

SNI made payments to EWS totaling $2.2 million, $4.8 million and $12.6 million for the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. These payments were made pursuant to a 2008 agreement for certain rights 
granted by a subsidiary of EWS with varying durations. These amounts are included within selling, general and 
administrative within the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company had transactions with its equity-method investment, nC+, resulting in $13.4 million and $5.1 million 
of revenues for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

The Company surrenders a portion of its taxable losses incurred in the UK to UKTV as consortium relief in 
accordance with the UK tax law. UKTV compensates the Company for the use of the taxable losses at a rate of 83.3 
percent. The Company recognized a tax benefit related to the surrender of UK losses of approximately $4.9 million, 
$7.9 million, and $1.3 million at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, and
the net receivable due related to those tax benefits was approximately $1.6 million, $4.5 million and $0.8 million at 
of the end of each period, respectively.f
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Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

for the Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 Schedule II

Schedule II
Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E Column F

(in thousands)
Classification

Balance 
Beginning of 

Period

Additions
Charged to
Revenues, 

Costs,
Expenses

Deductions
Amounts

Charged Off-
Net

Increase
(Decrease)
Recorded

Acquisitions
(Divestitures)

Balance
End of 
Period

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable
December 31,
2016 $ 12,569 $ 30,917 $ 17,368 $ - $ 26,118
2015 $ 7,889 $ 8,090 $ 3,410 $ - $ 12,569
2014 $ 6,853 $ 2,400 $ 1,364 - $ 7,889
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SCRIPPS NETWORKS INTERACTIVE, INC. INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description of Item Footnote

Exhibit No.
Incorporated

    2.1 Separation and Distribution Agreement between Scripps Networks 
Interactive, Inc. and The E. W.d  Scripps Company

(1) 2.01

    2.2 Contribution Agreement among TCM Parent, LLC, TCM Sub, LLC, Gulliver
Media Holdings, LLC, Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc., Cox TMI, Inc.,
and Cox Communications, Inc.

(5) 2.1

    2.3 Agreement among Flextech Broadband Limited, Virgin Media Investment 
Holdings Limited, Southbank Media Ltd. and Scripps Networks Interactive,
Inc.

(9) 2.3

    2.4 Agreement for Sale and Purchase of Shares in the Capital of N-Vision B.V.
among ITI Media Group Limited, Groupe Canal + S.A., Southbank Media 
Ltd. And Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc.1

(22) 2.1

    3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc.

(4) 3.1

    3.2 Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of Scripps Networks Interactive,
Inc.

(4) 3.2

    4.1 Specimen Certificate of Class A Common Shares of Scripps Networks 
Interactive, Inc.

(3) 4.1

    4.2 Indenture between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and U.S. National Bank 
Association, as trustee

(27) 4.1

    4.3 First Supplemental Indenture (2.70% Senior Notes Due 2016) between 
Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee

(10) 4.2

    4.4 Second Supplemental Indenture (2.75% Senior Notes Due 2019 and 3.90%
Senior Notes Due 2024) between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee

(19) 4.1

    4.5 Third Supplemental Indenture (2.80% Senior Notes Due 2020, 3.50% Senior 
NNotes Due 2022 and 3.95% Senior Notes Due 2025) between Scripps 
NNetworks Interactive, Inc. and U.S. National Bank Association, as trustee

(24) 4.1

    4.6 Form of Global Note Representing the 2016 Notes (10) 4.3
    4.7 Form of Global Note Representing the 2019 Notes (19) 4.2
    4.8 Form of Global Note Representing the 2024 Notes (19) 4.3
    4.9 Form of Global Note Representing the 2020 Notes (24) 4.1
    4.10 Form of Global Note Representing the 2022 Notes (24) 4.1
    4.11 Form of Global Note Representing the 2025 Notes (24) 4.1
  10.1 Tax Allocation Agreement between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and 

The E. W. Scripps Company
(2) 10.13

  10.2 Employee Matters Agreement between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc.
and The E. W. Scripps Company

(2) 10.12

  10.3 Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan (21) Appendix I
  10.4 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (2015 Long-Term Incentive 

Plan)
(20) 4.4

  10.5 Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement (2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan) (20) 4.5
  10.6 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Share Unit Agreement (2015 Long-

Term Incentive Plan)
(20) 4.6

  10.7 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (Non-Employee Directors)
(2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan)

(20) 4.7

  10.8 Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement (Non-Employee Directors) (2015
Long-Term Incentive Plan)

(20) 4.8

  10.9 Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (31) 10.4
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Exhibit
Number Description of Item Footnote

Exhibit No.
Incorporated

  10.10 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (2008 Long-Term Incentive 
Plan)

(32) 10.5

  10.11 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Share Unit Agreement (2008 Long-
Term Incentive Plan)

(33) 10.6

  10.12 Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (2008 Long-Term Incentive
Plan)

(33) 10.7

  10.13 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Share Unit Agreement (2008 Long-
Term Incentive Plan)

(32) 10.8

  10.14 Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement (2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan) (32) 10.8.B

  10.15 Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Annual
Incentive Plan*

(21) Appendix 
II

  10.16 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (amended and restated effective
January 1, 2011)*

(13) 10.1

  10.17 2008 Deferred Compensation and Stock Plan for Directors (3) 10.11
  10.18 Executive Change in Control Plan (as amended and restated on November 16, 

2012)*
(28) 10.12

  10.19 2012 Executive Change in Control Plan* (28) 10.13
  10.20 Executive Severance Plan (as amended and restated effective October 6, 

2014)*
(28) 10.14

  10.21 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan* (29) 10.20
  10.22 Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan* (6) 10.20.B
  10.23 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (30) 10.21
  10.24 Amended and Restated Scripps Family Agreement among The E. W. Scripps 

Company, Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and the Family Shareholders2
(37) 10.24

  10.25 Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and 
Kenneth W. Lowe*

(7) 10.1

  10.26 Amendment to Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Kenneth W. Lowe*d

(8) 10.2

  10.27 Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Kenneth W. Lowe*d

(11) 10.3

  10.28 Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Kenneth W. Lowe*d

(16) 10.4

  10.29 Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and 
Burton Jablin*

(14) 10.31

  10.30 Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Burton Jablin*d

(26) 10.31A

  10.31 Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and 
Joseph G. NeCastro*

(7) 10.2

  10.32 Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Joseph G. NeCastro*d

(12) 10.1

  10.33 Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Joseph G. NeCastro*d

(15) 10.1

  10.34 Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Joseph G. NeCastro* d

(37) 10.34

  10.35 Separation Agreement and General Release between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Joseph G. NeCastro* d 3

(37) 10.35

  10.36 Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and 
Mark S. Hale*

(18) 10.33

  10.37 Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and 
Cynthia L. Gibson*

(13) 10.35
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Exhibit
Number Description of Item Footnote

Exhibit No.
Incorporated

  10.38 Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. and Lori 
Hickok*

(34) 10.34

  10.39 Five-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility Agreement (17) 10.4
  10.40 Amendment to Five-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit 

Facility Agreement
(23) 10.40A

  10.41 Senior Unsecured Term Loan Agreement among Scripps Networks 
Interactive, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and the Banksd

(25) 10.41

  10.42 Amendment No. 4 to Employment Agreement between Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc. and Kenneth W. Lowe*d

(36) 10.42

  10.42 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement bby andd among Cox TMI, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, Cox Communications, Inc., a Delaware corporation,

r Media Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, 
Scripps NNetworks Interactive, Inc., an Ohio corporation, and d TCM Parent, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

(35) 10.42

  10.43 Purchase agreement by and between FSN Southern Holdings, Inc., a
Colorado Corporation, Scripps Networks, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, and FOX-BRV Southern Sports Holdings, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company.

(35) 10.43

  12.1 Earnings to Fixed Charge Ratio**
  14.1 Code of Ethics for CEO and Senior Financialr  Officers (33) 14
  21.1 Material Subsidiaries of Scrippsf  Networks Interactive, Inc.**
  23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm**
  31(a) Section 302 Certifications**
  31(b) Section 302 Certifications**
  32(a) Section 906 Certifications**
  32(b) Section 906 Certifications**
101.INS XBRL Instance Document†
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document†
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document†
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document†
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document†
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document†

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
June 17, 2008, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 7, 
2008, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(3) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement on Form 10, filed June 11, 2008, Commission File No.
001-34004.

(4) Incorprr orated by refeff rence to tht e Scripps Netwtt orkrr s Interactive, Inc. Annun al Reportrr on Formrr 10-K, fiff led Mara ch 5,
2009, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
November 10, 2009, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(6) Incorprr orated by refeff rence to tht e Scripps Netwtt orkrr s Interactive, Inc. Annun al Reportrr on Formrr 10-K, fiff led Mara ch 1,
2010, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 1, 
2010, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
October 12, 2010, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed 
November 9, 2011.

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
December 1, 2011.
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(11) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
August 3, 2012.

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
November 20, 2012.

(13) Incorprr orated by refeff rence to tht e Scripps Netwtt orkrr s Interactive, Inc. Annun al Reportrr on Formrr 10-K, fiff led Mara ch 1,
2013.

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed 
November 12, 2013.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
November 19, 2013.

(16) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
March 5, 2014.

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 3, 
2014.

(18) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed 
November 6, 2014.

(19) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
November 24, 2014.

(20) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed 
November 30, 2015.

(21) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. definitive proxy statement, filed April 1, 
2015.

(22) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
March 16, 2015.

(23) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
May 18, 2015.

(24) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed June 2, 
2015.

(25) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
June 30, 2015.

(26) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
August 24, 2015.

(27) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-3, filed 
November 14, 2014.

(28) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed 
February 27, 2015.

(29) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Registration Statement on Form 10, filed 
June 6, 2008, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(30) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Registration Statement on Form 10, filed 
June 3, 2008, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(31) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed 
February 29, 2012.

(32) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed 
March 1, 2011.

(33) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Registration Statement on Form 10, filed 
March 26, 2008, Commission File No. 001-34004.

(34) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 7, 
2015.

(35) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
February 29, 2016.

(36) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed 
November 7, 2016.

(37) Incorporated by reference to the Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed 
February 25, 2016.

* Indicates management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.
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** Filed herewith.

† Attached as Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K are the following formatted in XBRL (Extensible 
Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, r 2016 and Decemberd  31,r 2015, 
(ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, (iii) 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, d (iv) Consolidated 
Statements of Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, and (v) Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements.
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Kenneth W. Lowe
Chairman, President and Chief 
Executive Officer

Burton Jablin
Chief Operating Officer

Cynthia L. Gibson
Executive Vice President, Chief 
Legal Officer

Mark S. Hale
Executive Vice President, Global 
Operations and Chief Technology 
Officer

Lori A. Hickok
Executive Vice President, Chief 
Financial Officer

Nello-John Pesci, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief 
Human Resources Officer

Kenneth W. Lowe
Chairman, President and Chief 
Executive Officer, Scripps 
Networks Interactive, Inc.

Gina L. Bianchini
Founder and Chief Executive 
Officer, Mighty Software, Inc.

Michael R. Costa
Former Head of Mergers and 
Acquisitions and Vice Chairman
of Investment Banking, Cowen
and Company

David A. Galloway
Former President and Chief 
Executive Officer, Torstar 
Corporation

Donald E. Meihaus
Former President, Miramar 
Services, Inc.

Jarl Mohn
President and Chief Executive 
Officer, National Public Radio

Richelle P. Parham
General Partner, Camden Partners

Nicholas B. Paumgarten
Founder, Corsair Capital, LLC

Mary Peirce
Former Trustee of The Edward W.
Scripps Trust

Jeffrey Sagansky
Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer, Double Eagle Acquisition 
Corp.

Wesley W. Scripps
Founder and Owner, Forlio 
Designs, LLC

Ronald W. Tysoe
Former Senior Advisor, Perella 
Weinberg Partners L.P.; Retired 
Vice Chairman,
Federated Department Stores, Inc. 
(now Macy’s Inc.)

Board of Directors

Executive Officers

Melissa Mick
Senior Vice President, Global 
Controller

Mark F. Schuermann
Senior Vice President, Treasurer 
and Enterprise Risk Management

Eleni Stratigeas
Senior Vice President, Business
and Legal Affairs and Corporate 
Secretary

John E. Viterisi
Senior Vice President, Tax

Henry Ahn
President, Content Distribution
and Marketing

Kathleen Finch
Chief Programming, Content and 
Brand Officer

Steven J. Gigliotti
Chief Revenue Officer

Dylan Jones
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Communications Officer

Jim Samples
President, International

Jon Steinlauf
President, Advertising Sales and 
Marketing

Corporate Officers Key Operating Managers



Stock and Trading
The company’s Class A Common
Shares are traded on the Nasdaq 
listing exchange, under the ticker 
symbol “SNI”. As of January 31,
2017, there were approximately 

Class A Common Shares based on

owners of the company’s Common
Voting Shares, which do not have an
established public market.

Market Prices

2016 HIGH LOW
First Quarter ..........
Second Quarter ......
Third Quarter .........
Fourth Quarter ....... $ 73.71 $ 60.63

Dividends 2016

First Quarter ............................... $0.25
Second Quarter ........................... $0.25
Third Quarter .............................. $0.25
Fourth Quarter ............................ $0.25
Total ........................................... $1.00

Form 10-K
Scripps Networks Interactive’s Form 
10-K is filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. Additional
printed copies of the Form 10-K are 
available at no charge upon written 
request to the company’s office of 
investor relations.

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of shareholders 
will be held on May 9, 2017 at 2:30
p.m. ET at:
502 E. Lamar Alexander Parkway

Transfer Agent
Our transfer agent is Wells Fargo 
Shareowner Services. You may 
contact the transfer agent at:

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

Certified and overnight delivery:
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
1110 Centre Pointe Curve, Suite 101
Mendota Heights, MN 55120

651.450.4064

Shareholder Website:
www.shareowneronline.com

For Additional Information 
Contact:
Michael L. Gallentine
Senior Vice President, Investor 
Relations
Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc.
9721 Sherrill Blvd.
Knoxville, TN 37932

(Mailing Address)

Knoxville, TN 37932

For company information 
online, visit www.
scrippsnetworksinteractive.com.

Committee charters, corporate 
governance guidelines and the
company’s code of ethics are on the 
company website or are available 
upon request in printed format.

Shareholder Information
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